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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of SMIT
Holdings Limited (“SMIT” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am

pleased to announce the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

In 2022, the global integrated circuit industry remained in a
tense situation. With the gradual recovery of the market, the
Group has made great efforts to seize the opportunity and
has been constantly exploring new revenue growth points in
the course of business transformation. The Group recorded
revenue of USD29.4 million for 2022 (2021: USD36.2 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 18.9%. Gross profit
for the year decreased by 29.1% year-on-year to USD12.1
million. Basic earnings per share for the year was USD17.9
cents (2021: basic earnings per share of USD3.1 cents). In
appreciation of shareholders’ support for the Group, the Board
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of USDO.1
cent per share, totaling USD410,992.

During the year, the Group completed the acceptance of
all government projects, continued to make technological
breakthroughs in new products, and obtained a number of
joint development projects. Its research and development
capabilities were fully verified in market expansion. In addition,
the Group carried out a series of restructuring in terms of
capital deployment in line with business transformation, and
continued to optimize its organizational structure through
exploration.
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Jarch 20 2, in view of the substantial capital expenses
required to sustain the development of EDA products, the
Board has resolved to formulate a plan to scale down and
cease the research and development of electronic design
automation (“EDA") products when appropriate. However,
the Board remains optimistic on the long term prospect of
the EDA industry as a whole, since EDA technology is the
foundation of automation in chip design and at the upstream
of the integrated circuit (“IC") design industry. Therefore,
the Company will continue to participate in the EDA industry
through existing equity investments, and further adjustments
to the existing deployment have completed during the year.

On 23 September 2022, SMIT Shenzhen (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and SMIT Xintech (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the SMIT Shenzhen) entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreements with each of the Investors and the
Employee Shareholding Platforms, pursuant to which SMIT
Shenzhen would conditionally transfer an aggregate of
approximately 51.22% equity interest in SMIT Xintech to
the Investors and the Employee Shareholding Platforms.
Immediately after Completion, SMIT Xintech would cease to be
a subsidiary. The Group, as its major shareholder, will continue
to pay attention to its operating progress to continuously
consolidate capital deployment of the Group.

PROSPECTS

The Group will adhere to the diversification strategy with
IC design solutions at the core, and will keep focusing on
key IC technologies in the course of adjusting its business
strategy in the future. While upgrading traditional proprietary
technologies, the Group will continue to explore new areas
such as smart sensing technology solutions and develop more
new technologies and products.
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been roIIed out toa number of malnstream TV manufacturers.
On the one hand, the European market focuses on solving
the trading plans of major Russian customers under the
new situation; on the other hand, it follows up the mass
shipment of new standard products of major CA companies.
According to the needs of various regions, emerging markets
will promote Cl+ 2.0 product mandatory standardization in
a targeted manner, and simultaneously explore the potential
space of new products such as USB CAM. In the domestic
market, efforts will be made to develop more cross-field chip
application solutions based on the multi-point deployment of
engineering USB Dongles for operator hotel engineering. New
product lines, such as intelligent perception technology, will
also continue to focus on the frontiers in the sub-segments
and expand the product portfolio.

For the cloud service business, the Group will continue
to provide high-quality and efficient customer services in
response to customer needs, ensure the execution of orders,
and support the security maintenance of core equipment of
the cloud platform with an excellent management system.

For the IC solutions business, with the enrichment of the
Group'’s chip application landscape, the application areas have
been gradually broadened. Following the strategic adjustment,
the existing business has been seeking for changes in the
midst of stability, actively participating in industry research
and keeping abreast of trends in the gradually recovering
open market. The Group has developed its own internal and
external mechanisms to improve its operational management
and industry integration, and has persisted in its technological
development and commercialization efforts to improve its
research and development level and consolidate its position in
the industry.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude

to all shareholders, business partners and customers for
their ongoing support and trust to the Group, as well as to
our Board members, management team and staff for their
dedication and contributions over the year. In 2023, we will
continue to expand our business in order to create greater
value for our shareholders.

Huang Xueliang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay-TV broadcasting access. It designs, develops and markets
security devices primarily for the pay-TV industry worldwide
through sales of conditional access modules, or CAMs,
products which provide end users with access to pay-TV
content.

The Group actively developed the semi-conductor IC smart
technology business, gradually expanded into the two main
new business lines of cloud service and integrated circuit (“1C")
solutions.

CAM

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately USD13.7 million from CAM, around
35.2% less than last year, and accounted for around 46.5%
of the Group’s total revenue. The European market (excluding
Russia) remained the largest market for the Group’s CAM sales
business, and made up around 64.1% of total CAM sales,
which was approximately 25.4% less than the previous year.
The share of revenue from Russia accounts for about 3.1% of
CAM’s total sales, which decreases about 89.4% year-on-year.
Other emerging markets, accounted for approximately 14% of
the Group’s total CAM sales, reported a year-on-year decrease
of around 4.4%. The Mainland China market contributed
approximately 18.8% of the Group’'s total CAM sales,
representing an increase of around 4.1% year-on-year.
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-year 1 n sale . : region,
the largest market for CAM products, was mainly due to

the energy crisis caused by the conflicts between Russia and
Ukraine, which directly led to large-scale inflation in European
countries, increase in unemployment rate, weakening the
consumption power of the public and they tends to purchase

o the Europea

low-price OTT programs with flexible payment, which had a
great impact on the DVB programs of operators. The sales
volume of OTT box and the powerful hybrid box increased,
while the demand for traditional STB and CAM declined. The
year-on-year decrease in sales in Russia region was also due
to the impact of the conflicts between Russia and Ukraine.
The European countries imposed several rounds of sanctions
against Russia. A number of CA companies have completely
stopped trading with Russian customers. The Group are still
trying to resolve the transaction mechanism with the major
customers in Russia region. The year-on-year decrease in
sales in emerging markets was mainly due to the fact that
operators in Kenya, the major market, reduced the scale of
hardware procurement due to the social unrest in the year of
election; Uganda’s CAM inventory consumption was slow due
to rising prices caused by inflation. A number of projects in
the domestic market have completed the joint research and
development of iterative products and entered the stage of
field testing or acceptance promotion. However, the shipment
was delayed due to the impact of the pandemic last year,
resulting in a decrease in regional sales as compared with last
year.




B R
ﬂiﬁiﬁ\ﬁuuﬁrﬁé‘éﬁ’lﬂiﬂ*ﬁ BN 7 35 %1 F & SR AR & RCAM
HEZRCAM @ AR KE P OHF 6 Y5 KB 2 i E fl
Em ORIHEEBBERE MEMBEC + 2.0Em1L
EFERIERZ RAMATVERRE - HVE M IEMNTI5 1 E 2@
ME BAMBIEREGHNAEEERE E/# £ HUSB
dongleZEm RFITERIFT - BB TERARELHTE - U
TRTEZ2HOBMATRFT R - WINERBEERBRS
EOARRENHEHABRREBEPE-—SRREME - —F
“=FERINRBEBRRNEZEFRBUARS KRS NE S IRE -
BRRZERZNSNERRTRESZHOIEE -

ERHB

AEER T _TFHANERRRARESRBES - R
ENERBEBIEZBBETMEEKEBR KA HRE
TARAEFPRHERREENRE -

BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—RHLFE AEEZRHEKS
#)B3.9BEFIT  MHBRIAMI3.2% @ IBFRAD#HI3.9% ©

L : :
" In the face of domestic and international tensions last year, the

Group’s CAMs did not stop the pace of technical upgrading
and product development. In the European market, the
integration of the new platform of cardless CAM and smart
card CAM, the new platform switching for major customers in
Russia and the customised products for operators have been
steadily advanced and passed the certification; In terms of
Cl + 2.0 product commercialization, emerging markets have
been successfully integrated into a number of well-known TV
brands, and the marketing in India and Africa has been fully
launched. In the domestic market, on the basis of the existing
large-scale hotel projects, the Group continued to innovate
the USB dongle product series and obtained orders from a
number of cable operators, and brought along new demand
for integration solutions. In addition, we further expanded our
technology in the joint development project of top enterprises
for content protection applied to UltraHD Unified Multi Media
Interconnection. In 2023, the full opening of domestic and
foreign epidemic policies and the gradual recovery of various
exhibitions will bring new opportunities for the new product
lines that are well prepared.

Cloud Services

The Group started to engage in the business of verification
cloud services on efficient design in 2020. The existing cloud
services business mainly provides remote verification services
of calculation capability to customers through the centralized
deployment of front-end verification tools for integrated circuit
design.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from the
Group’s cloud services was approximately USD3.9 million,
representing approximately 13.2% of the total revenue,
representing a decrease of around 3.9% year-on-year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from the
Group's IC solutions was approximately USD11.9 million,
representing approximately 40.3% of the total revenue.
Research and development expenses were approximately
USD35.4 million, representing approximately 118.1% of the
total revenue. The research and development expenses of
the IC solution included the R&D staff cost and other R&D
expenditures of SMIT Xintech and SMIT Jingrui prior to their
disposal.

In 2022, the Group actively carried out academic discussions
with the government and universities after the pandemic
gradually recovered, and attended various forums and
exhibitions to conduct in-depth technical exchanges. In parallel
with business expansion and research and development, the
Group participated in more market-oriented joint development
projects and continuously enriched its product portfolio. New
product lines such as smart sensing solutions have launched
a number of new products during the year and gradually
formed the order scale. In addition, the Group also put great
emphasis on the control on cost and inventory of products,
strengthening supplier management, reducing outsourcing
processing fee rate, ensures production quality while
completing order delivery on time, and improves warehouse
management efficiency and production safety by retrofit the
warehouse to streamline the usage area.
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group generated
revenue of USD29.4 million, representing a decrease of around
18.9% compared with 2021. The slight decrease in revenue
is mainly attributable to decline of CAM sales. The following
table shows revenue breakdown by business segments:

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-CF —E-—fF
2022 2021
BEET % BEZET % EHESH
USD million % USD million %  Change in %
BER CAM 137 46.5 211 583 35.2%
ERR Cloud services 3.9 13.2 4.0 11.0 3.9%
SRERBATR IC solutions 11.9 40.3 1.1 30.7 6.7%
29.4 100 36.2 100 18.9%
EXNRERZE Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin
BE—_E-—F+-_A=+—BIEFEENENAI2I1BEE Gross profit amounted to USD12.1 million for the year ended

B IB I —FMA291% EXEARREREEE
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H At A

Htp AT EREMERETENOBRAEY BE2_F_—
FH-A=+—RALFE HMRARW6IAERT 8=
T —FRD103% TBHRETBNEERBEFER
B o

31 December 2022, representing a decrease of 29.1%
compared with 2021 mainly due to drop in CAM sales orders.
Gross profit margin decreased by 6% year-on-year to 41.3%,
which was mainly attributable to decline in gross margin of
CAM.

Other Income

Other income mainly include government subsidies in research
and development. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
other income were USD26.4 million, decreased by 10.3%
compared with 2021, which was mainly due to the completion
of certain government projects in prior year.
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Research and development expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of the Group’s research and development staff,
rental and office expenses, CA certification fees, professional
service fees and transportation and lodging fees. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, research and development
expenses decreased from USD38.5 million to USD38.1 million,
mainly due to the disposal of subsidiaries in the fourth quarter
of the year causing the slight reduction of research and
development expenditure.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly include salaries and
benefits of sales and marketing staff, marketing, training and
promotion expenses, travel and entertainment fees and rental
and office expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
sales and distribution expenses were USD1.6 million, decreased
by 13.8% compared with 2021, which was mainly attributable
to decline in marketing expenditure in the current year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of management, administrative and finance
staff, professional service fees, rental and office expenses,
provision for impairment of trade receivables, and travel and
entertainment fees. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
general and administrative expenses amounted to USD11.5
million, remaining flat from the year ended 31 December
2021.

Income Tax Credit/Expense

Income tax expense consists of PRC corporate income tax and
Hong Kong profits tax for PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of
the Group respectively. Income tax expenses changed from a
tax credit of USD1.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to an expense of USD10.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. The increase in tax expenses was mainly
due to the income tax expenses arose in association with the
disposal of SMIT Xintech and SMIT Jingrui.
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Profit for the Year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
USD57.1 million, compared with a profit of USD9.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in profit
was mainly attributable to the equity transfer gain resulting
from the completion of disposal of partial equity interest in
Shenzhen SMIT Xintech Co., Ltd. during the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Debt Structure

The Group maintains prudent treasury policy and financial risk
management, sufficient banking facilities and bank balances
are available to meet the cash needs of the Group’s operations
and research and development activities. Liquidity and
cashflow needs of Group are regularly and timely reviewed by
the financial department and management.

The Group continued to maintain a sound liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2022, total cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to USD48.2 million (as at 31 December
2021: USD18.8 million) and were mainly denominated in RMB
and US dollars, respectively. The Group recorded net current
assets amounting to USD25.4 million (as at 31 December
2021: USD12.3 million). The Group'’s current ratio, calculated
by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities, was
168.8% (as at 31 December 2021: 130.6%).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings were
USD16.9 million (2021: USD28.4 million) and with lease
liabilities USD1.7 million (2021: USD2.6 million). All borrowings
of the Group are at floating interest rates and denominated
in RMB (2021: USD18.0 million at fixed rate, USD10.4
million at floating rate, all borrowings dominated in RMB).
No restricted bank deposit had been pledged for the bank
borrowings (2021: Nil). No hedging activity had been carried
out by the Group. Gearing ratio of the Group, as calculated by
dividing total bank borrowings by total equity, was 9% (2021:
20.5%) as at 31 December 2022. Apart from the above bank
borrowings, the Group had unutilised banking facilities of
RMB62 million (equivalent to USD8.9 million) in Mainland
China (2021: had unutilised banking facilities of RMB204
million (equivalent to USD32.0 million) in Mainland China).
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
outstanding indebtedness or any outstanding or authorised
but unissued debt securities, term loans, other borrowings
or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings, acceptance
credits, hire purchase commitments, mortgages and charges,
contingent liabilities or guarantees outstanding.
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Capital Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has capital
commitments amounted to USDO0.1 million (2021: USD6.5
million) contracted, but not provided for, and did not have any
authorised but not contracted for capital commitments (2021:
Nil).

Significant Investment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had equity securities
investments in a total of six (2021: six) unlisted companies and
had interest in an unlisted fund with an aggregate fair value
of approximately USD25 million (2021: USD25.0 million).

Details of a significant investment are disclosed below as the
size of this investment exceeded the 5% threshold under
paragraph 32(4A) of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

On 19 November 2020, the Group acquired 10% equity
interest of X-Times Design Automation Co., LTD (“X-Times"),
a company incorporated in the PRC, at a total consideration
of RMB5,000,001 (equivalent to USD752,831). X-Times is
mainly engaged in the provision of IC design services which
is currently in the early development stage. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, X-Times entered into capital
injection agreement with certain independent corporate
investors from the PRC who agreed to purchase additional
share of X-Times, the equity interest of the Group in X-Times
was diluted from 10% to approximately 4.7%. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, X-Times further entered
into capital injection agreement with certain independent
corporate investors from the PRC who agreed to purchase
additional share of X-Times, the equity interest of the Group
in X-Times was further diluted from 4.7% to approximately
4.2%. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the equity
interest in X-Times held by the Group was approximately
UsSD15,512,000, representing 6.3% of the Group's total assets
as at 31 December 2022. Fair value gain of approximately
USD2,356,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. No dividend has been distributed by X-Times since
establishment. The investment is not financial assets held for
trading. The Group considers this as a strategic investment
which broaden the Group’s IC solution business segment. The
Group will review its investment strategy regularly.
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“Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were
no other significant investments held by the Group as at 31
December 2022.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies and Future Plan for
Material Investments or Acquisition of Capital
Assets

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated 23 September
2022, SMIT Shenzhen agreed to transfer the non-paid up
equity interest of RMB420,000,000, which represents an
aggregate of approximately 51.22% equity interest of the
entire equity interest in SMIT Xintech, to several independent
investors and employee shareholding platforms. Upon
completion of the transaction on 14 October 2022, the equity
interest of SMIT Xintech held by the Group was diluted to
48.78% and ceased to be a wholly-owned subsidiary and
became an associate of the Group.

On 23 December 2022, SMIT Shenzhen (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) and SMIT Jingrui entered into an
equity transfer agreement with S2C Shanghai, pursuant to
which SMIT Shenzhen agreed to sell, and S2C Shanghai agreed
to purchase the entire equity interest in SMIT Jingrui for the
consideration of RMB160 million (equivalent to approximately
UsSD22.7 million). Upon completion of the transaction, SMIT
Jingrui ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and became an
indirectly held associated company of the Group.

The Group will continue to search for prospective targets for
investment and business cooperation. There were no material
investments or capital assets authorised by the Board at the
date of this annual report.

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were
no other material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associated companies or joint ventures during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.
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Currency Risk and Mahagement

The Group’s sales are primarily made in Europe, in US
dollar-denominated transactions and the PRC, in RMB-
denominated transactions. Sales of CAM were predominantly
denominated in US dollars while sales of IC smart technology
were predominantly denominated in RMB and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s costs of production are predominantly
denominated in RMB.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
enter into any foreign currency forward contracts or use any
derivative contracts to hedge against the risk arisen from its
currency exposure. The Group manages its currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency rates and
may consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group employed
about 171 employees (31 December 2021: 392), of whom
158 were based in Mainland China, 11 in Hong Kong and
2 in other countries around the world. For the year ended
31 December 2022, staff costs (including salaries, social
insurance, provident funds and share incentive plan) amounted
to USD27.4 million in aggregate, representing 93% of the
total revenue of the Group.

The Group has entered into employment agreements with
all of its full-time employees. In addition, certain senior
management and key research and development personnel
have signed confidentiality agreements and non-competition
agreements with the Group. Each senior executive officer
has agreed to hold, both during the effective period and a
certain period thereafter of his or her employment agreement,
in strict confidence and not to use, except as required in the
performance of his or her employment duties, any confidential
information, trade secrets or know-how of the Group or
the confidential information of any third party received by
the Group. Additionally, each senior executive officer has
agreed to be bound by non-competition restrictions for a
period of two years following the expiry of his or her term of
employment.
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The Group's success depends on its ability to attract, retain
and motivate qualified personnel. The Group’s remuneration
policy and packages for its directors and employees were
periodically reviewed. The Group is also dedicated to the
training and development of employees. Towards that
end, the Group leverages on the resources of its research
and development centre, research laboratories and project
management team to ensure that each employee maintains a
current skill-set through continuous training on topics ranging
from technologies, solutions and services to clients, markets
and the industry. The Group provides introductory training
and orientation for all new employees, as well as on-the-job
training to continuously improve employees’ technical,
professional and management skills.

OUTLOOK

The global semiconductor industry remains in a critical state,
with several chip giants facing sharp declines in market
revenue due to a sharp slowdown in demand, and facing
severe pains such as management pay cuts, significant layoffs,
inventory backlogs and plummeting prices. In response to the
blockade and restrictions imposed by the United States on
the semiconductor industry, global semiconductor equipment
companies have been adjusting their Asian footprint and
China has started to take comprehensive countermeasures.
Under this changing situation, the Group actively adjusted its
strategic deployment and adopted differentiated development
strategies for different areas of IC design, with its existing
digital TV encryption technology and emerging smart sensing
technology solutions being continuously developed during the
year.

For the CAM business, the European market, including Russia,
has been closely following up on product switching of key
operators’ projects, working with CA companies to promote
product sales in line with changes in the cooperation model,
and studying new trading options. In respect of the emerging
markets, we will actively cooperate with customers to apply
for important product licenses, such as SGS in the African
market, and maintain good communication with customers
to explore opportunities for new products such as USB CAM.
In the domestic market, we will strive to capture the existing
market share of cable network, and discuss with major CA
partners to implement similar functions of Hybrid STB in Smart
TV using App plus CAM. We have already started to deploy
and promote the corresponding products.
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In respect of cloud services business, the Group will continue
to secure orders and ensure the quality of its after-sales service.
Meanwhile, the Group will improve the complementary
pre-sales and after-sales management protocol to provide an
outstanding services on customers support and maintenance
and safety of the cloud platform core equipments.

For the business of IC solutions, the Group will pay close
attention to industry dynamics externally, actively participate
in industry exchanges, and seek new opportunities in business
transformation in conjunction with its own strategic layout.
We will make full use of our industry advantages, maintain
communication with upstream and downstream, integrate
resources in the industry chain synergy, and strive to achieve
new market growth points through endogenous effect.
Internally, we will continue to improve our talent management
mechanism, cultivate and strengthen our backbone team. We
will improve our R&D incentive system, strengthen project
development and management in order to establish a mature
intellectual property system.

IC is a national pillar, and IC design is a field that is the most
knowledge-intensive, accounting for the largest proportion of
the industrial chain and the most competitive in this industry.
With the promulgation of a series of incentive policies and
preferential measures, mature domestic design enterprises
have blossomed and the demand for talents in the IC design
industry is increasing day by day. Taking the strategic change
as an opportunity, the Group will continue to explore product
development and market expansion in the field of chip
design to seek solid and stable market growth points. We will
combine capital deployment with strong policy support, fully
integrate resources from the government and universities,
diversify strategic deployment while improving the incentive
mechanism for talents. With the stable and rising technology
base in the industry chain, we closely cooperate with upstream
and downstream parties and continue to pay attention to
supply chain optimization in order to enrich the product matrix
and ensure cost efficiency at the same time. The Group aims
to enhance its comprehensive strength and create greater
value for shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is

committed to achieving a high level of corporate governance.
The Company places great importance on good corporate
governance and strives to ensure that we adhere to the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code ("CG Code")
under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company believes
that by doing so, it is better able to build trust and confidence
in its operations and create value for its shareholders.
Through measures set out in this report, the Company has
demonstrated its commitment to good corporate governance
and seeks to enable shareholders to evaluate its application
of the principles of the CG Code. The Company has been in
compliance with the principles and code provisions set out
in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2022
up to the date of this report, except the following deviation
therefrom:

Code Provision C.2.1

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer (CEO) should
be separated and performed by different individuals. During
the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
the duties of the Company’s Chairman and CEO were not
separated from each other. Mr. Huang Xueliang has been
serving as the Company’s Chairman and CEO during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

The Company believes that Mr. Huang Xueliang serving as
both the Chairman and CEO will guarantee us strong and
stable leadership to perform planning and management of
the Group more effectively. In view of his extensive experience
in the industry, personal credentials and key roles in the
Group and its historical development, the Board believes that
it is favorable to the business prospects of the Group for
Mr. Huang Xueliang to serve as our Chairman and CEO on a
continuous basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and
monitors business and performance. As at the date of this
report, the Board consists of seven directors (“Directors”)
of the Company, including two executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Their biographical details and relationships amongst
them (if any) are set out on pages 72 to 78 of this annual
report.

The Board shall perform the duties of corporate governance,
and its responsibilities are to convene the general meetings
and report its work to the shareholders; to implement the
resolutions of general meetings; to formulate the Company’s
business plans, investment plans and annual budget and final
accounts; to prepare the Company’s profit distribution plan,
loss recovery plan and proposals for increase or reduction of
registered capital.

The Board should meet regularly and board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the Company’s historical financial reports
and operating conditions and approve the Company’s budgets
and overall strategies. Notices of no less than fourteen days
are given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. Additional meetings should
be held whenever the Board deems necessary. For other
board meetings and board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or committee members at least three days before the board
meetings or board committee meetings to ensure that the
Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings or board committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and board committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered
by the Board and the board committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and board committee
meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments within
a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
the Directors.
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independent views and input are available to the Board.
Such mechanisms include appointing sufficient number of
independent non-executive Directors, reviewing their time
contribution and assessing their performance annually. If
required, the Directors may request for separate independent
professional advice to be provided to them to assist them
to discharge their duties at the Company’s expenses. The
implementation and effectiveness of the mechanisms will
continue to be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.
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business, family or other material/connected relationship
among the Directors.

Committees of the Board

The Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee under the Board assist in the full
performance of corporate governance duties. Each Board
committee has the right to obtain any complete and reliable
information required by it from the management. The
committees shall, if necessary, seek independent professional
advice to perform their duties at the expense of the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its own decision all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors have the recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to
access and to consult with the Company’s senior management
independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into
by the management.
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The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members and composition (including
skillsets, knowledge, experience and qualifications) of the
Board, providing recommendations to the Board on candidates
for any directorship and senior management membership,
determining the policy for the nomination of directors, assess
the Board diversity policy, and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee will assess a candidate or incumbent based on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee held a meeting to conduct annual review of the
structure, number of members and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and discuss the Board diversity policy.

Nomination Policy
1 Objective

1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider
and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Committee may, as it considers
appropriate, nominate such number of candidates
to be appointed or re-appointed at a general
meeting, or the number of casual vacancies to be
filled.
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2.1

2.2

The factors listed below would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(@)  reputation for integrity;

(b)  experience in the industry and/or business
strategy, management, legal and financial
aspects;

() whether the proposed candidate is able to
assist the Board in effective performance of
the responsibilities;

(d)  the perspectives and skills that the proposed
candidate is expected to bring to the Board;

(e) commitment in respect of available time
and relevant interest;

(f)  diversity in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; and

(@) in the case of selection for independent
non-executive Directors, the independence
of the proposed candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not
meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The
Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit
the necessary personal information in a
prescribed form, together with their written
consent to be appointed as a Director and to
the public disclosure of their personal data on
any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for
election as a Director.
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3

provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

35

The secretary of the Nomination Committee
(the “Secretary”) shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior
to its meeting. Alternatively, such nomination may
be approved by the Committee by way of written
resolutions.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

Until the issue of the Shareholder circular, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they
have been proposed by the Board to stand for
election at the general meeting.

Subject to and pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholder can serve a notice of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a
Director, without the Board’'s recommendation or
the Nomination Committee’s nomination.

The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.
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Unless required by law or any regulatory authority, under
no circumstances shall a member of the Nomination
Committee or a staff member of the Company disclose
any information to or entertain any enquiries from the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
before the circular to Shareholders, as the case may
be, is issued. Following the issue of the circular, the
Nomination Committee or the company secretary of
the Company or other staff member of the Company
approved by the Nomination Committee may answer
enquiries from the regulatory authorities or the public
but confidential information regarding nominations and
candidates should not be disclosed.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for advising on the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management members of the
Company; assessing performance of executive Directors and
approving terms of executive Directors’ service contracts;
and developing a set of standardised and transparent
procedures for developing the remuneration policy. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of certain executive Directors and
senior management members and review and/or approve
matters relating to any share plan of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held a meeting to review the Group's
remuneration policy and structure and determine the annual
remuneration of the Directors and senior management
members as well as other related matters.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

to make recommendations to the Board regarding
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity under applicable
standards, and to assess the efficacy of their audit
procedures;

to review the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, accounts and interim
reports, and to review the significant opinions in relation
to the financial reporting contained therein;

to supervise the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, assist the Board in reviewing
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems, and advise the Board on
matters relating to corporate governance; and

to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
its whistleblowing policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
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Committee held two meetings to fulfill the above duties.

Directors Training

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with the
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she

has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations

and

businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant

statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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development to 'develop and update the
skills. According to the records provided by the Directors, the
training programs received by each Director during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

et S

HEMSER
HiT¥5ES
Seminars or
Exsne BEERM other industry
Name of Director Director title events attended
HER IR COBOTESREENTE Vv
Huang Xueliang Chairman, executive Director & CEO
B EE FEMITEE Vv
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen Non-executive Director
SRIE L BUFPITES Vv
Zhang Junjie Independent non-executive Director
R WY IERITES Vv
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond Independent non-executive Director
s B IENITES v
Jin Yufeng Independent non-executive Director
BMAaF (RN NA+NLBEHD) BITESF v
Shuai Hongyu(resigned on 19 August 2022) Executive Director
REC Bk BITESE Vv
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun Executive Director
g FEHITES v
Cai Jing Non-executive Director
TEREEFHTE CHAIRMAN AND CEO
REBEE-_E-—F+-A=+—BUIHFERRKAREELE During the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date

HERAARTEIERERATERE BEREERER of this report, Mr. Huang Xueliang served as the Chairman and

RRE R EEEEERERE -

CEO to take charge of the Group’s overall strategic planning
and supervise the overall management of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) empower the Board with
extensive industry knowledge and experience, financial
expertise and independent judgments. They make effective
recommendations on the Company’s strategies and policies
through engagement in committees of the Board, participation
in Board meetings and review of the Company’s relevant
reports.

During the year, the Board had at least three independent
non-executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has provided with
the Company an annual confirmation of his independence.
The Company considers that Mr. Zhang Junjie, Mr. Jin
Yufeng and Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond are independent in
compliance with the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELATED INDIVIDUALS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors (“Code of Conduct”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standards under the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. After specific inquiries, it is confirmed that all the
Directors fully complied with the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Code of Conduct applies to all the individuals who may
have access to inside information about the Company or its
securities as a result of their respective positions or duties as
defined by the CG Code, including employees of the Company
or directors or employees of the Company’s subsidiaries or
parent company.
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AUDITOR

The Audit Committee has received a letter from the
Company’s current auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers
confirming its independence and objectivity. The remuneration
paid for the services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and
its affiliates (if any) is as follows:

—E=-= S S

2022 2021

FETT FET

PR A% B Nature of service USD’000 USD’000
EZ R EMRS Audit and review services 312 510
IEZ B RS Non-audit services 86 28
398 538
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, dismissal or
removal of the external auditor. The Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or situations
which may have material impact on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for each financial year to
give a true and fair view of the conditions of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects.
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The Directors consider that in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently and has followed all applicable
accounting standards.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group and enable
the Group to prepare consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control system and has the responsibility to review
the effectiveness of the system. The Board is responsible for
assessing and determining the nature and extent of the risks
that the Company is willing to take in achieving strategic
objectives, and monitoring the establishment and maintenance
by the management of appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The management
is responsible for designing and maintaining an effective risk
management and internal control system as well as providing
confirmations to the Board on the effectiveness of the system.

Sound risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance that there will be no material
misstatements or losses.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company believes that good risk management is essential
to the long-term sustainable development of the business.
With an aim to improve the Company’s risk management
system while enhancing its controls of risks and the ability to
mitigate risks, the Board has established its own organizational
structure for risk management, and is continuously improving
risk management system and maintains risk management
structure. An organizational structure with the Board as the
decision-maker and the Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee, and the department head business process
principal at all levels as the implementation unit, has been
established to divide risk management responsibilities and sets
out clear responsibilities for risk management and the risk
information reporting route.

Risk Management Structure

Audit Committee

Risk Management
Coordinator

Risk Management
Committee

[9n97 Auedwiod

Department Head
Business Process
Principal



Board

Vv HER R EIR T RARE
Approve plans and reports on risk management

V ETERNRKNRERER  aFEEEFRRERRS  WETRBRAEBIES : &
Conduct risk management of material decisions, including approving related risk
management reports and determining effective controls to the risks : and

V IEAER =il dinb =)
Strengthen the cultivation of risk management culture

EREES

Audit Committee

EREEESS

Risk Management Committee

BERERERZESNEE BERETEELRHE K

Review the setup of the Risk Management Committee and its job description, as well as the
fundamental management policies : and

EHERERIERE RSHERREERE

Review assessment reports on material risks and various risk management reports

HBREREBRGER BRERAREEABBRBRENERE

Promote the formulation of risk management system and define the structure and
responsibilities of risk management organisation

THEZARAAEREZEAOBER  FHIENEEEHBERN

Regularly review the risk management policies and procedures and oversee implementation
RERXRRIEHAREREER  FRVTRIEBARKNRREIRRE R AR EEHEE
§53

Provide risk management suggestions on material decisions by reviewing and submitting risk
management reports and risk response : and

BEARFERBRREEENIES

Oversee the cultivation of the Company’s general risk management culture
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Risk Management Coordinator

Vv HBEEHFIFAREARBREIMTETE  PRSERRERRS - YRRE TARER
ZE®
Promote risk identification and evaluation on department level, formulate risk management
reports and submit them to the Risk Management Committee

Vv e HARREEZEERSREEEYAREENRARETHR - FTE - REAF]
i TH 85 K AL B B TR B9 AR A 45 Bt
Coordinate the Risk Management Committee and senior management to conduct risk
identification and evaluation on the Company level, propose countermeasures to material
risks

V %Eh  BEEREEEBRITASHENRRERE TERFMEMEER
Assist and monitor the risk management executives to perform risk management work and
review relevant results

Vv AR EEERANEY N ZRREEMNBRZETE
Organise trainings and share knowledge and best practices about risk management
v ERAARERREBEANAMEARERERTRETRARERZEGEREREZES®

Summarise the risk management results of both the Company level and business level and
submit them to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee

HEEE EBRBREAEA

Department Head/Business Process Principal

Vv eRBREREREMBEKHRARBRRERNIE
Coordinate with risk management coordinator in performing risk management of their own
businesses

v EHRENMMBEBNRRES
Regularly update the risk lists of their own businesses

Vv AR RE AR AEBTENREREM A E @ Ao ABEREMTE &N R ET
BRE]
Assess the impact and likelihood of the identified risks on the Company’s businesses along
with characteristics of specific businesses

V HEABEBOEBEREE TR YEBREL TR B8 ABAREERENEEN
i
Prepare and implement risk responses for the relevant specific business risks : Take
responsibility for communicating and implementing the specific risk management measures

V WEBEBNSHERRETEE IFRAERREEERS R
Monitor and report various risks that specific businesses are facing to the risk management
coordinator : and

V FRERREZNEMAEEIE

Execute other work relevant to risk management
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Risk Management Process

The Company has established a risk management workflow
covering key steps including identification, assessment,
response, monitoring and reporting (see Figure 1 “Risk
Management workflow” below for details) to systematically
organize, mitigate and monitor risks. The main elements
include, for the purposes of of the Company’s business
objectives, identifying risk factors that affect the achievement
of business objectives, assessing the likelihood and potential
impacts of each specific risk; adopting measures to address the
risks identified; and continuously monitoring changes in risks
and adjusting countermeasures in a timely manner.

management
workflow

SSponse

(Chart 1: Risk management workflow)
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Internal Control System

The Company has established its own internal control system
by making reference to the internal control and management
framework of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) (please refer to
chart 2: COSO internal control management framework).
The Company’'s internal control system consists of five
interdependent elements, which coordinate and operate to
ensure the effectiveness of internal control functions of the
Company. The five elements are: control environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information and communication
and monitoring activities.

(Chart 2: COSO internal control management framework)

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control system on an annual basis. If any
deficiency of internal control is identified, the Company
addresses it by communicating with the management
internally and ordering remediation to be taken. Any material
deficiency identified in the control procedures or polices will
be reported to the Board directly for communication and
discussion.
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The Company has established a specific position to be
responsible for independent supervision. In 2022, our
internal audit staff conducted internal control reviews on
the effectiveness of key processes and reported directly to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has developed
improvements to address weaknesses and vulnerabilities
identified during the internal audit, which are regularly
followed up by the management to ensure timely
implementation of the relevant improvements.

Inside Information

To facilitate compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), the Company has established an
information disclosure management system containing
comprehensive guidelines on the handling and dissemination
of internal information. The Company discloses information
to the public generally and non-exclusively through channels
including websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, aiming to achieve fair and timely disclosure of
information.

Review on the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems in 2022

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
has, together with the Audit Committee, reviewed the
Company's risk management and internal control systems and
considered them to be effective and adequate. The review has
covered the year ended 31 December 2022 and all material
controls, including, operational, financial and compliance
controls and considered the changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks as well as the Company’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment.
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Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric has served as the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Company Secretary reports to
the Chairman of the Board, and the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary are determined by all the members
of the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of its committees
in developing meeting agendas, preparing meeting minutes
in a timely manner and sending them to the Directors and
members of the committees; for ensuring that all the Directors
comply with the Board’s policies and procedures and all
applicable regulations and rules; and for ensuring accurate
recording of the meeting procedures, discussions and decisions
of meetings of the Board/its committees.

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric had received more than 15 hours of
professional training during the year in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biographical details are set out in
page 79 of this annual report.

DIVERSITY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a Board
diversity policy. The Company endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional expertise, qualification and experience, industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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having a d|ver5|f|ed Board and sees mcreasmg diversity at
the Board level, including gender diversity, as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage
and enhancing its ability to attract, retain and motivate
employees from the widest possible pool of available talents.
The Company has taken and will continue to take measures
to promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company,
including but not limited to the Board and the senior
management. The Board will also review the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board diversity policy on an annual
basis.

The Nomination Committee will take opportunities to increase
the proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for
directors’ appointment with the aim of appointing at least one
female director no later than 31 December 2024. In addition,
the Company will continue to attach importance to the
training for female talents and provide them with long-term
development opportunities, through which the Company will
be able to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the
Board to achieve gender diversity.

The Company has adopted and will continue to adopt
measures to promote the diversity of employees in all levels.
All eligible employees will equally have the opportunities in
employment, trainings and career development. As at 31
December 2022, the male to female ratio of the Company’s
employees (including senior management) is approximately
12:7, and after prudent consideration, the Board is of the view
that we have achieved the gender diversity of employees.
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" SHAREHOLDERS'

ITY AND INVESTOR

RELATIONS
Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company has adopted a shareholders communication
policy (the “Policy”) with the objective of ensuring that the
Company’s shareholders and investors are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and business plans, material
business developments and corporate governance), in order
to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Board shall maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and the investment community,
and will regularly review the Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to
shareholders and the investment community shall be ensured
at all times.

Corporate communications will be provided to shareholders
in plain language and in both English and Chinese versions
to facilitate shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders
are encouraged to access the Company’s corporate
communications electronically via the Company’s website
(www.smit.com.cn) to help protect the environment.

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
direct communication between shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries to the Board or
the management thereat, and the Chairman of the Board,
or in his absence, an executive Director, and chairmen of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
committees, will normally be present and available to answer
questions.
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and relatlonshlp with its mvestors To this end, the
Board endeavors to provide shareholders with clear and
comprehensive information on the Group through different
media and official website. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports dispatched to shareholders a dedicated
Investor Relations section is available on the Company’s
website www.smit.com.cn. Information on the Company’s
website is updated on a regular basis.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company.
Such questions, requests and comments can email to
[R@smit.com.cn.

The Board has considered the Policy as described above
and is satisfied that there are effective channels by which
shareholders can communicate and raises concern with the
Company.

Procedure for Making Proposals at Annual General
Meetings

Shareholders may make proposals or motions at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s
memorandum of association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and the relevant provisions.

Procedures for Requisitioning an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of submission of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may, by serving at any time a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for the handling of
the matters specified in the requisition.
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Objective

1.1

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting Shareholders’ expectations and
prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group
is profitable and without affecting the normal
operations of the Group, the Company may
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders.

The Dividend Policy aims to allow the Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

Criteria

2.1

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall
also take into account, inter alia:

(@  the Company and the Group's actual and
expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members
of the Group;

(¢ the level of the Group’s debts to equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends
that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;
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requirements and future expansion plans
and prospects;

(f)  general economic and financial conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s business and
other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;
and

() any other factors that the Board deem
appropriate.

3 Procedures for Dividend Declaration and Payment

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are subject to the Board’s continuing
determination that the Dividend Policy and
the declaration and/or payment of dividends
would be in the best interests of the Group and
Shareholders, and are in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company.

Any dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of
Shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

The Board may from time to time pay to the
Shareholders such interim dividends or special
dividends as appear to the directors to be justified
by the profits of the Group.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of
the Board. There is no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.
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4.1 The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company in respect
of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.

By order of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Introduction

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide"”) as
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group will continue to disclose an Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report”) on an annual basis. Set
out below are the important contents of such report closely
related to the Group's businesses:

Reporting Period and Scope

The information published in this ESG report covers the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. We are a leading
security devices provider for pay TV broadcasting access
worldwide. We have also entered into cloud service and IC
solutions business. This Report covers the relevant policies and
performance of the businesses of the Group.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the reporting
principles of the ESG Guide that include:

o Materiality: The ESG Report identifies key stakeholders
and incorporated the result into stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment, which further
constitutes the basis for determining the importance of
ESG issues.

° Quantitative: The ESG Report presents quantitative
information on environmental and social key
performance indicators. Summary of all relevant key
performance indicators are set out at the end of the ESG
Report.
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HER

Cohsistéh’Ey: Additional statistical information has
been included in the ESG Report as compared to
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report in
our 2021 Annual Report; yet there is no significant
adjustment on the methods or KPIs used. We will
continue to use consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

o Balance: The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture
of the Group’s performance on ESG management
following the principle of balance.

The ESG report has complied with all “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Guide and has included
explanations for provisions which are not applicable to the
Group.

Governance Structure

The Group understands the importance of ESG governance to
sustainable development of its business and the community
as a whole. The Group has been actively incorporating
an ESG management framework to ensure the effective
implementation of the ESG governance in its business
operations.

The Group has fully embraced social responsibility as our
contribution to address the ESG requirements and challenges
the society faces. The Group has implemented several
material initiatives relating to environmental protection,
employment and labour practices, operating practices, and
community investment. We consider ESG commitment as a
part of our corporate responsibility and pledge to embed ESG
considerations into our decision-making process. To achieve
this, we have developed a core governance framework to
ensure the alignment of ESG governance with our strategic
growth, while advocating ESG integration into our business
operations.
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The Board 'assume.s‘p'rimary responsibility for the supervision'
of the Group’s ESG governance. For instance, determining the
Group’s ESG approach, managing ESG-related risks, as well
as supervising the management and relevant departments
in formulating and implementing policies with appropriate
measures. In addition, the Group’s senior management is
also responsible for executing ESG risk management and
internal control systems, reporting ESG risks and opportunities
to the Board, and ensuring the effective operation of ESG
governance.

The Group will closely monitor the changes in regulations and
global trends on climate change to avoid cost increments.
The Group will evaluate the effectiveness of the existing
environmental protection measures, including greenhouse gas
emissions (GHG) reduction measures and target setting, to
gradually reduce energy consumption and GHG emissions in
the future.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group is committed to creating sustainable growth and
long-term value for its stakeholders. The Group maintains
an open dialogue with its stakeholders to gather views on
what ESG issues may impact them and matter most. The
Group engages its key stakeholders including shareholders,
employees, suppliers, customers and community on a regular
basis across various channels to gauge their opinion and
feedback on the Group’s ESG performance and how the
Group can address ESG matters on an on-going basis.

FENREBEE HMERBIRE BERE
Key stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication channels
3 . AR EERERE . NCIEZ 98§
e  1EER o REXE
o EBEM . NGIF R
o KREMD®H
Shareholders o Transparency on corporate and financial e Company visits/meetings

information

. Corporate governance

° Business compliance
° Investment return

. Shareholders’ meetings
3 Company website
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 Key stakeholders

- Expectation AN concernen

Employees

HEm

Suppliers

Y

Customers

g

Community

BT R EE S

Government and regulatory
authorities

s  EEHMREF
e BE#E
o HIIER

o Employee remuneration and benefits
° Career development
o Training management

o HEREUE
o HAREHER

° Supplier Selection
. Sustainable supply chain

s EmkRBEE

o Quality of product and services

o  RERH#E
o TiF#E

° Environmental protection
° Job opportunity

. BPERERER

o SRR

. Compliance with laws and regulations
° Support for high-technology enterprises
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Meetings and briefings
Company policies
Employee trainings
Company activities

XBBEReE

NAER

HEMEZERF

Business communication meetings
Company visits

Supplier vetting procedures

BEPRE
EBBBLEHR
NGRS

Customer feedbacks
Business communication and meetings
Company visits

tE)EB
REERE

wEe
Community activities
Feedback channels
Job fairs

i3
ﬁ:‘t

Meetings
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ASSESSMENT

MATERIALI

The Group believes that sound ESG performance is important
to the Group’s sustainable development and community.
The Group is committed to protecting and improving the
ecological environment and society and minimizing the impact
of its activities on the environment. Throughout the materiality
assessment exercise, the ESG working group has assisted
the Board to review its operations, identify key ESG issues
and assess the importance of these issues to its businesses
and stakeholders. It is the Group’s policy to promote green
operations, thereby gradually achieving the coordinated
development of the Group, the environment and the society.

Identifying the material ESG issues that matter the most to the
Group is a prerequisite for setting the framework for the ESG
Report and formulation of ESG management strategies. To
identify potential material topics for disclosure in the Report,
we took reference to the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide and set
possible topics for assessment. All material ESG issues listed
below have been disclosed in the ESG Report.

Em| EERR HERERBRE
Aspects Material ESG Issues
B. #EEME
B.  Social Aspect
B1. [EME o HHBIEA
B1. Employment o Remuneration and Benefits
. ARMAE e
o Inclusion and equal opportunities

B2. REHELR
B2. Health and Safety

B3. ERE KFII

B3. Development and Training

B4. BT 4R
B4. Labour Standards

o  WEIRBEAS

. Talent attraction and retention

e BERERELD

o Occupational health and safety
e TIEBMZERE

. Workplace safety

o  EERRIEZIER

o Development and training management

e MIEEIR®GIST

. Prevention of child and forced labour
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Material ESG Issues

B6. EmEE
B6.  Product Responsibility

B7. RES
B7.  Anti-corruption
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s HEHEETH

o Project quality control
o REXMBER
o Protection of intellectual property rights

s REFFPALEREH

3 Protection of customer privacy and data

J hEER
. Corporate governance
J RES

o Anti-corruption
ENVIRONMENT
Emissions

The Group's policy is to ensure compliance with applicable
environmental laws and regulations and to reduce
environmental footprints through efficient use of resources
and application of environment-friendly technologies.

The Group is committed to promoting environmental
awareness among its employees. The Group believes that
raising environmental awareness is the key to environmental
protection and the promotion of public health.

In view of the nature of the Group’s business, the Company
believes that the direct impact of its business operations on
the environment and natural resources is very insignificant.

Sewage Discharge

The Group has no industrial sewage discharge, and its
domestic water, meeting relevant discharge standards, is
discharged into a municipal pipeline through the pipe network
of the industrial zone, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions under the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, the Detailed Rules for the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
and the Measures on the Supervision of Sewage Treatment
Facilities for Environmental Protection. The Company operates
in accordance with the requirements on clean production and
in compliance with the relevant requirements under the Law
of the PRC on Promoting Clean Production.
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All departments have conscientiously implemented noise
prevention measures and performed noise reduction
processing for noise-producing equipment without working
at night, which meets the relevant standards of the Emission
Standard for Industrial Plant Noise at Boundary and which,
coupled with the fact that there is no residential area in the
proximity of the Company, is in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations such as the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.

Exhaust and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

As the Company is in a high-tech park in terms of ambient air
function zoning, the Company implements the medium- level
standards for environmental air quality as provided under the
Ambient Air Quality Standards (GB3095-96). Currently, all our
emission indicators meet the relevant requirements. Our test
and production process virtually produces no exhaust gas and
greenhouse gas directly, which is in compliance with the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution and
meets the standards under the Integrated Emission Standards
for Air Pollutants. There is no leakage of Freon generated
from air conditioning, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete
the Ozone Layer.
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~ During the

eporting Period, the exhaust and greenhouse gas

emission performance of the Group was as follows:

—E-C-FE —E--FE
ZECCFE HRORE “E--FE HRORE
PEWE  Emission Intensity #HWE  Emission Intensity
Emission in in FY 2022 Emission in in FY 2021
FY 2022 (B : "/HEEY) FY 2021 (B : "/HEEY)
B R BE (Bfr: %) (Unit: g/ (Bfr: %) (Unit: g/
Emission Category  Indicator (Unit: g) Employee’®) (Unit: g) Employee’®)
BER B ety 72.7 0.4 102.6 0.3
Exhaust Emission’ SO,
AEY 41,054.1 240.1 58,452.8 149.1
NO,
R 3,822.4 22.4 5,442.3 13.9
PM
“ECZCFE —ECZ-FE
HaE HHeE
“ZZ-FE  Emission Intensity “Z-—fE  Emission Intensity
BrhE in FY 2022 BhE in FY 2021
Emission in (Y @ B Z&{bHe/ Emission in (Y @ B Z & {bHe/
FY 2022 1=3=W) FY 2021 ==
BB R BB (B fr - M=F i) (Unit: tCO,/  (BBMY : i =E1bHR) (Unit: tCO,/
Emission Category  Indicator (Unit: tCO,) employee;) (Unit: tCO,) employee’®)
BE RN MZREREHK 673.5 34 71939 1.84
Greenhouse Gas Indirect CHG
Emission’ emissions
B 5 Notes:

—
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To facilitate the Group’s business operations, the Group emits
SOx, carbon oxides and PM from the use of commercial vehicles.
The emissions of SOx, carbon oxides and PM are mainly calculated
based on the calculated emission factors of vehicle emission model
published by the Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong and the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the Group
indirectly generates Carbon dioxide (CO,) from the use of purchased
electricity. CO, emissions are calculated mainly in accordance with
the grid emission factor for 2021-2022 issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 171 employees.
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste Management

Due to our business nature, our operation does not produce
any significant hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.
After self-inspections conducted by all departments, it is
confirmed that the hazardous waste of each department,
including waste batteries, toner cartridges and ink cartridges,
has been classified and put into separate dustbins in a
timely manner, and all waste fluorescent lamps have to be
returned in exchange for new ones. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group consumed 54.9kg in waste
batteries, toner cartridges and ink cartridges (representing a
consumption of approximately 0.3 grams per employee of the
Group). All hazardous waste is collected centrally for disposal.
The production and domestic waste of the Company has
been disposed of as required in a timely manner, which is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations such as the
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Waste.

The Group strives to minimize the amount of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste with the integration of “4R Concept —
Reduce, Reuse, Repurpose and Recycle”.

Procurement, Transport, Storage and Preservation of
Hazardous Chemicals

The Group is not presently involved in any use and
management of chemicals.

In an effort to strictly follow environmental protection
requirements, the Group regularly hands out labor protection
supplies to staff in positions with hidden danger, arranges for
staff to take annual physical examination, and affords them
occupational disease detection. There is no occurrence of
environmental, safety and occupational disease issues resulting
from the Company’s operations during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Considering the Group is not a manufacturing enterprise,
and direct emission has a relatively smaller relevance to the
Group, no direct emission targets have been set by the Group.
Nonetheless, the Company has continuously implemented the
concept of energy conservation, consumption reduction and
environmental protection, in order to reduce any direct or
indirect emissions.
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Resource Utilisation

All of the Group’s departments and entities have specific
control measures for consumption of domestic water, office
electricity and paper, which satisfy the relevant requirements
of the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC. The Group
vigorously implements advice solicitation activities to
encourage employees to contribute to consumption reduction
and efficiency improvement ideas.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
consumed 1,180,962.0 kWh of electricity, 4,737.2 m’ of
water and 784kg of office paper (representing a consumption
of approximately 6,906.2 kWh of electricity, 27.7 m’ of
water and 4.6kg of office paper per employee of the Group)
3.95 tonnes in packaging materials (cartons) (representing a
consumption of approximately 2.3 grams per unit of product
produced by the Group).

The Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use,
the water is sourced from municipal water supply system,
which can meet the water demand of daily operation of the
Group.

The Company has set targets to gradually reduce the total
energy consumption intensity and water consumption intensity
in the next five years starting from 2023. Due to the nature
of the Group’s business, this is largely achieved through
employee trainings and promotional efforts to increase
employees’ awareness on energy conservation and efficient
water consumption. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Company has achieved lower energy consumption
intensity and water consumption intensity as compared to the
preceding year.

Environment and Natural Resources

Since its inception, the Group has never compromised the
environment and natural resources in any way and has strictly
complied with the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC.
Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the Group
has limited impact on the environment and natural resources.
Nonetheless, the Group has implemented and will continue to
review the effectiveness of the Group’s control measures on
consumption such as electricity, domestic water and paper.
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Responses to Climate Change

Global warming caused by the growing greenhouse effect is
becoming a major concern worldwide. The Group has also
carefully assessed the impact of extreme weather such as
floods and typhoons on its business operations and established
a dynamic weather warning mechanism to prevent any harm
that extreme weather events might cause to the Company’s
operations and the personal safety of its employees.

In response to national environmental initiatives and policies,
we have also taken active measures to conserve energy and
reduce GHG emissions, such as promoting paperless green
office and effectively reducing paper consumption through
our internal office system; renovating the water supply
system to save water and posting water-saving signs in office
areas; and designating officers to check the implementation
of the ” turning off lights before leaving” policy at the end
of each business day, and regularly check and address any
non-compliance on use of electrical devices and avoid idle
running of large equipment. In our daily operations, we
strengthen administrative management and supervision to
raise staff awareness of water and energy conservation and
prevent wasteful behaviour.

SOCIETY
Employment and Labor Practices

The Group's success relies on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group is generally able
to attract and retain qualified personnel and maintain a
stable core management team. The Group is committed to
the training and development of its employees. The Group
engages its R&D center, research laboratories and project
management team in ensuring that each employee receives
continuous training on subjects from techniques, solutions
and services to the Group’s clients, the markets and industries
where it operates, so as to maintain the employees’ current
skillsets. The Group provides orientation training for all new
employees, and offers on-the-job training to continuously
enhance the technical, professional and managerial capabilities
of its employees. In addition, HR policies have been established
to cover material employment topics including recruitment
and promotion, working hours and leaves, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits and welfare,
compensation, dismissal and occupational health and safety.
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In terms of recruitment ma‘nagement, the Group is committed
to eliminating discrimination based on gender, age, ethnicity,
religion and family status during recruitment and employment,
and stipulates that discriminatory descriptions are strictly
prohibited in recruitment announcements. The Group has
adopted a two-pronged approach of campus recruitment
and social recruitment, with its main recruitment channels
being CV submission via recruitment platforms, internal
referrals, headhunter recommendations and school-enterprise
cooperation. During the reporting period, the Group
cooperated with a number of universities to complement its
social recruiting to identify and cultivate a large number of
outstanding talents.

In terms of remuneration management, the Group adheres
to the principle of equal remuneration for male and female
employees, providing equal opportunities to all employees and
treating all employees fairly based on their contribution to
the Company. The Group adjusts the salary levels of different
positions every year according to the market conditions and
the performance of individual employees, aiming to provide
employees with competitive remuneration.

In terms of career development, the Group advocates a
dual-track system for employee development by offering
each employee two career development paths, i.e. towards
highly-skilled professionals or executives, encouraging
employees to choose their own development direction, and
continuously improve their own abilities and career plans.

In terms of performance appraisal, the Group upholds
the principles of objectivity, fairness, openness and
effective communication to ensure the quantification and
implementation of objectives and improve the operational
efficiency of the Company, while maintaining long-acting
incentive and restraint mechanisms to fairly evaluate the
performance and contribution of employees and continuously
improving the capabilities and management skills of different
teams and individual employees through performance
coaching and feedback.
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In terms of emplby}ee health and safety and welfare, the
Group complies with national regulations and provides its
employees with a full range of paid public holidays and leaves.
In addition, the Group actively aligns itself with the national
maternity policy and provides maternity leaves in accordance
with the regulations, paying full salaries and benefits to
employees who are on maternity leave. Since its establishment,
the Company has been providing employees with benefits
such as holiday gifts, staff activities, physical examinations,
social insurances and housing provident fund and personal
accident insurance.

The Group believes that the Group maintains a good working
relationship with its employees. Since its inception, the Group
has not been involved in any significant labor dispute or other
dispute with the labor authorities of the Chinese government.

A breakdown of the Group’s employees by gender,
employment type, age group and region as at 31 December
2022 is as follows:

EE&H ERER =Rl
Total number of employees Employment type By gender
B peg 3
Male Female
171 E2HER - FILHER 108 63
Full time with a labor contract signed
EEAH (REFRERNE D) EBEEAH(RHESS)

Numbers of Employee (By age group)

Numbers of Employee (By region)

82

47

31

T
18-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 >61

158

11

T - T . T N : 1
PEAM ) 2
China Mainland Hong Kong Overseas
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
employee turnover rates by gender, age group and region are
as follows:

iRk E R R REREH BB
Total turnover rate By gender By age group By region

B Zi 188-308% 31H-408 M1E-508 S515-608 61ERUL WERL B =) |

Aged
Aged Aged Aged Aged 61and China Hong

Male Female 18- 30 31-40 41-50 51-60 above Mainland Kong  Taiwan
34.64% 40.7%  2326%  39.66%  3500%  21.15%  50.00%  33.33%  35.96% - 9.09%
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The Group is required to comply with the Safety Production
Law, the Labor Law of the PRC and other relevant Chinese
laws, administrative regulations, national standards and
industry standards, which stipulate requirements on
maintaining a safe production environment and safeguarding
employees’ occupational health. In accordance with these
requirements, an entity with any facility or equipment
failing to guarantee production safety shall not engage
in production and business operations. Entities operating
in China must provide employees with production safety
education and related training programmes as well as a safe
working environment. The design, manufacturing, installation,
use, inspection and maintenance of production facilities
and equipment must meet applicable national or industry
standards.

The Group has implemented safety measures within its
production facilities to ensure compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements and minimise the risk of injury to
employees. The Group regularly examines its operating
facilities to ensure that the Group’s production and operations
are in compliance with existing laws and regulations. In
addition, the Group requires new employees to receive job
safety training.

In 2022, there was no work-related accident or injury occurred
thanks to the foregoing procedures and measures taken by the
Group. In addition, each new employee is required to produce
a qualified medical certificate, and the Company arranges
health examination for employees annually.
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' Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the improvement
of staff quality and related professional skills, and develops
training programmes for staff members based on the business
needs of each position.

In 2022, all employees of the Group received on average 4.5
hours of training, the proportion of trained employees and
the number of training sessions by type of training are set out
below:

RE R R 5
By category By gender
HFEEEEAE FHEREAER £ z
Senior and Non-senior
middle and middle
management management Male Female
MG 63.89% 83.92% 77.88% 83.33%
Proportion of trained employees
SREERE -
hREERE
B EMESEA MBESIN EEESE b= |
Training
for senior
and middle Technical Financial Production  Orientation
management training training training training
AR 2 1 59 14 10 1

Number of training sessions
B IR
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Labor Standards

The Group generally recruits talent via recruitment websites,
and the Group has zero tolerance for and strictly prohibits the
use of child labour and forced labour in our operations. During
the recruitment process, the human resources department
of the Group will verify the applicant’s identity documents
to ensure that they have reached the minimum age for
employment. The Group constantly monitors the working time
and schedule of the employees to prevent any forced labor
situation. The Group also follows and has been compliant with
the relevant national laws and regulations to rationalise labor
relations and division of labor by improving relevant measures
and mechanisms, to safeguard the legitimate rights and
interests of employees.
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OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers include (a) manufacturers from whom
the Group purchases components for its products and (b)
subcontractors undertaking certain production processes for
the Group’s products. In 2022, the Company had a total of 33
qualified suppliers, of which 25 were located in Guangdong
Province, one in Jiangsu Province, one in Shanghai, three in
Taiwan, one in Xi‘an and two in Hong Kong.

The Group requires its suppliers to incorporate QP-13
procurement control procedures and QP-14 supplier evaluation
and management control procedures using the Company’s ISO
filing system. All suppliers have been managed according to
the system:

1. Access review: set up access requirements for suppliers
and maintain supplier profiles; review each supplier’s
operating conditions, production capacity, production
ESG awareness management, quality assurance system,
product quality, delivery period and other related
information to ensure that the raw materials purchased
meet the quality and safety standards under the national
laws, regulations and standards.

2. Process review: set up procedures for reviewing raw
materials in the utilisation process and a traceability
mechanism and review the environmental performance
and impact of materials and the risks involved in use
to ensure consistent product quality during the supply
process; review the purchase inspection, for-production
utilisation, examination results and handling of
substandard products with regard to the suppliers’
products.

3. Evaluation management: establish an evaluation system
to conduct comprehensive evaluation of suppliers on
a regular basis; evaluate the product quality, delivery
capacity, technical level and product qualification rate of
each supplier, and weed out or request improvements
from subpar suppliers.

4. On-site review: conduct regular on-site reviews of
key raw material suppliers in terms of environmental
management, production capacity, production process,
quality control, and other metrics.
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Product

u‘ -..I e
esponsibility

The Group emphasizes high product quality to maximize
customer satisfaction. The Group has implemented
comprehensive measures from procurement, product design,
production to post-sale service to ensure the quality of our
products.

For any product arising from abnormal function due to any
software issues or misuse of the product, the Company may,
if necessary, dispatch a technician to clarify the causes for
the customer face to face, and if possible, to try and resolve
the problem on the spot, otherwise the Unqualified Product
Control Procedures and the Control Procedures for Corrective
and Preventive Measures shall apply.

The Group follows the Quality Control Procedures and applies
a product recall process to guarantee the specifications of all
its products.

In 2022, none of the products sold by the Group were
returned due to safety or health problems.

In 2022, the Group have not received any complaints in
relation to products sold by the Group.

The Group strictly abides by the Law on Protection of the
Rights and Interests of Consumers to safeguard the rights and
interests of consumers (including health and safety, advertising
and labelling) and their privacy.

The Company respects the privacy of individual employees and
all customers and takes information security very seriously.
The Company has introduced security rules for its internal
information management system and R&D data transmission
and ensured safe operation and maintenance in its daily
operations.

The Group shall agree on certain confidentiality clauses or
sign a confidentiality agreement with any entity which is
commissioned by, or works with, the Group to develop new
technologies or new products.
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The Group also incorporates confidentiality clauses into labor
contracts and has signed a confidentiality agreement with
each employee to make it clear that the employees have the
obligation to keep confidential certain information relating to
the Group. As for other relevant intellectual property rights,
the national intellectual property protection standards are
strictly followed.

Anti-corruption

The Group’s employee handbook and cooperation agreements
with suppliers all contain anti-corruption and anti-bribery
provisions, and a whistle-blowing mailbox has been set up
to strengthen the Company’s internal control mechanism,
so as to safeguard the Company’s interests and prevent
corruption, extortion, money laundering and fraud. In order
to further improve its anti-corruption and anti-bribery system,
the Group has formulated and required its qualified suppliers
to sign the Integrity and Self-discipline Agreement, and input
the information of such suppliers into its internal system
for record and monitoring purposes. In addition, the Group
regularly hosts training for new and existing employees on
procedures and requirements under the employee handbook,
which includes the Group’s anti-corruption and anti-bribery
provisions.

In 2022, neither the Group nor, to the Company’s knowledge,
its employees were involved in any legal proceedings relating
to corruption.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group has been actively living up to its responsibility to
promote harmonious development of society as an important
direction for its long-term development. Each year, the Group
sponsors physical examination for employees, and organises
various group activities such as art, entertainment and sports
events for its employees. During the reporting period, the
expenses incurred for staff physical examinations and staff
events were RMB395,612.0 (equivalent to approximately
UsbD58,807.0) and RMB1,182,598.6 (equivalent to
approximately USD175,791.0), respectively. In addition, the
Group also pays urban maintenance and construction tax for
urban construction on an annual basis.
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INDICATORS
Environment
Aspect A1: Emissions

A1.1 Exhaust Gas Emission and Intensity

“ECCFE “EC-FE
ZECZCFRE BHRE ZEZ-FE BHRE
HiHE  Emission Intensity HiRE  Emission Intensity
Emission in in FY 2022 Emission in in FY 2021
FY 2022 (Bfy: %RIMERY) FY 2021 (Bfr: %R/IMERY)
B Bl BE (Bfy: %) (Unit: g/ (Bfy: %) (Unit: g/
Emission Category  Indicator (Unit: g) Employee?) (Unit: g) Employee’)
JiE RHER k=Rt 72.7 0.4 102.6 0.3
Exhaust Emission’ SO,
RE/Y 41,054.1 240.1 58,452.8 149.1
NO,
EEp k)| 3,822.4 224 5,442.3 13.9
PM
B 5 Notes:
1. ERAEENEKELTE  AEERFERAEHERMmERTE 1. To facilitate the Group’s business operations, the Group emits

1t mELMRBRY - RELY  BEWRBERDHRE
TERBEBREREE REXBERFEZRMOTEI R ERE
PEREEGETE -

2. R-BZ—&F+ZA=+—08 A£EEEI171ZEE -

SOx, carbon oxides and PM from the use of commercial vehicles.
The emissions of SOx, carbon oxides and PM are mainly calculated
based on the calculated emission factors of vehicle emission model
published by the Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong and the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

2. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 171 employees.

L ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf#IZ BB MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED 65



ZECCFE —BR--FRE
HHRE HHRE
“ZE-_&E  Emission Intensity “ZE-—%E  Emission Intensity
E: 3761 in FY 2022 HiE in FY 2022
Emission in  (E{y : WS tox/ Emission in  (E{y : Wi —S&{bHx/
FY 2022 =0 FY 2022 =0
BBl BE (BEfr : M =&k i) (Unit: tCO,/  (EEfr : M= E L) (Unit: tCO,/
Emission Category  Indicator (Unit: tCO,) Employee?) (Unit: tCO,) Employee’)
BERBEHEN B RER BTN 673.5 3.94 719.39 1.84
Greenhouse Indirect CHG
Gas Emission’ emissions
MoeE - Notes:
1. HRAEENEBEE  AEERCRINBENMEEELE—Q 1. Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the Group

1k - —EimBEMBE X ERBPEARLME £ ERBHHEH
WS- - —FEPIREFHE -

2. RZZZZF+ZA=+—0 KEEEFIMEES -

Al3 EEEEYRERTE

indirectly generates Carbon dioxide (CO,) from the use of purchased
electricity. CO, emissions are calculated mainly in accordance with
the grid emission factor for 2021-2022 issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

2. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 171 employees.

A1.3 Total Hazardous Waste Consumption and Intensity

TBRICFE —BRC-HFE

FY 2022 FY 2021

BEEEYMRE 54.9F % kg 69.5F 5 kg
Total Hazardous Waste Consumption

BERENTE 03F% /HEE 018F% SEE

Hazardous Waste Intensity kg/employee kg/employee

Al4 BEFEYRERTE

A1.4 Total Non-hazardous Waste Consumption and

Intensity
ZEICZHE —E-—FE
FY 2022 FY 2021
MEFEVHES 784F 5 kg 1310.5F % kg
Total Non-hazardous Waste Consumption
BEBRRYEE 46FT% /BRE 33FT%R/EBEE
Non-hazardous Waste Intensity kg/employee kg/employee
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A21 BERBTHEER - HEEERERERZE

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption and

intensity by type
SBCCFE —BE--FE
FY 2022 FY 2021
AEgsE 1,180,962.0 1,238,197.0
Total Electricity Consumption T FLEF kwh FELE kwh
AEZE 6,906.2F K&, 3,158.7FRK,/
Electricity Intensity BEES BlEE

A22 BEIEREZE

kwh/employee

kwh/employee

A2.2 Total Water Consumption and Intensity

—ECCFEE
FY 2022

=
FY 2021

ke

Total Water Consumption
BKREE

Water Intensity

A25 BEHHEERZE

4,737.252 77 K m?

27.75175K
BRE
m?/employee

2,059.057 77K m?

5.25 7K,
BEE
m*/employee

A2.5 Total Package Consumption and Intensity

—EBCCHFE —E--FE

FY 2022 FY 2021

BEMEBE 3.95M ton 10.41 ton
Total Package Consumption

BEMBEE 0.023M8, 0.008l8,

Package Intensity SEAER FEMNEMR

ton/unit of product
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[EEB1 : E{E Aspect B1: Employment
B1.1 ES#E % B1.1 Total workforce
EE&AH EAER gl
Total number of employees Employment type By gender
S fog 3
Male Female
171 E2HER - FISHAR 108 63
Full time with a labor contract signed
BEAB(RFRANET) BEAB(RHBEES)
Numbers of Employee (By age group) Numbers of Employee (By region)
82 158
47
31
10 11 P
- L T = T . N 1
T T T 1 AR A aE isZIN
18-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 >61 China Mainland Hong Kong Overseas
B1.2 ESRMXLLE B1.2 Employee turnover rate
fim k= g R RERER BB
Total turnover rate By gender By age group By region
Bt Zf#t 185-305% 315-408 A41m-508 515-605 61mKMLE HERE & =) |
Aged
Aged Aged Aged Aged 61and China Hong
Male Female 18- 30 31-40 41-50 51-60 above Mainland Kong  Taiwan
34.64% 40.7% 23.26% 39.66% 35.00% 21.15% 50.00% 33.33% 35.96% = 9.09%
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B2.1 B2.1
ZEICHE ZE-—FE
FY 2022 FY 2021
ITHHAR (N 0A
Number of work-related fatalities
S 0 S 0% 0%
Rate of work-related fatalities
B2.2 B2.2
TBECICFE —E--FE
FY 2022 FY 2021
BIGREAIEEH 0H oA
Lost days due to work injury 0 day 0 day
BEB3 : RERE Aspect B3: Development and Training
B3.1 SHESFTHIH B3.1 Percentage of trained employees
RE R R R
By category By gender
TEEEEAE FHEEAER £ z
Senior and Non-senior
middle and middle
management management Male Female
MGt 63.89% 83.92% 77.88% 83.33%
Proportion of trained employees
B3.2 ZREZI - FrrEE B3.2 Average training hours completed
SREEE -
hREERE
B SMEEA MBESIN £EEE HEITHEI
Training
for senior
and middle Technical Financial Production  Orientation
management training training training training
=N 24 1 59 14 10 1

Number of training sessions
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B5.1 B EE 5K EEREE
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B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region

ZEICHE ZEC-—FE

FY 2022 FY 2021

HEBER 33K 31R
Total number of suppliers 33 suppliers 31 suppliers
ZinRE 5 BERE25R BERE 25K
By geographical region TEHEIR TEHEIR
=R Eabi=AiNER

B3R BIE3K

[EEQER (R

BE2R Guangdong 25

Guangdong 25 suppliers

suppliers Jiangsu 1 supplier

Jiangsu 1 supplier
Shanghai 1 supplier

Shanghai 1 supplier
Taiwan 3 suppliers

Taiwan 3 suppliers Xi'An 1 supplie
Xi'An 1 supplier
Hong Kong 2
suppliers
[EHB6 : EmERE B6: Product Responsibility
Bé6.1 B6.1
—EICHE —E-—-FE
FY 2022 FY 2021
BERDEXERBHTPARDKNA DL 0% 0%

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
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FY 2022

FY 2021

BRERNERRBRBHIRFEE 0x N
Number of products and service-related complaints received 0 case 0 case
EBEB7 : RES Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7.1 B7.1
—EBC-CHE —E--FE
FY 2022 FY 2021
EERAENESHRARMHHA 0% 0%
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corruption 0 case 0 case
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Xueliang (22 R), aged 60, is the chairman,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and the Founder of our Group. He was appointed as
the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive officer
of our Company with effect from 20 September 2015. He is
also a director of SMIT Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of our Group. He has over 40 years
of experience in the IC design industry.

From March 1989 to December 1991, Mr. Huang worked in
the China National Electronic Devices Corp., Shenzhen branch
(PEE T2 RLFEIIA R, a company primarily engaged
in distributing and selling computer related components and
other electronic components. From January 1992 to February
1993, Mr. Huang worked as the vice manager in Shenzhen
Xianke Mechatronics Corporation CRIIIT 5 RI#MEF A 7)),
a company engaged in the processing of various electronic
modules and components. Mr. Huang is the Board Chairman
of Shenzhen State Micro Science and Technology Co. Ltd. (%
YT BT AR A R]), a company engaged in the research
and development of integrated circuit design from 1993 to
July 7 2022. He has served as Board Chairman of Shenzhen
Smart Device Technology Co., LTD (R YI T8 =R M AL
ABRAFR]), a high-tech company focus on smart screen and
machine intelligence from September 5,2015 to February 23,
2022. He was appointed as Board Chairman of S2C Limited
(8BRS AR A7) (Formerly named as S2C
Shanghai Co., Ltd (/& BI%E 8 @i A 7 B BR 2 a) from
November 5, 2018 to November 7, 2022. He has served as the
deputy director of China Semiconductor Industry Association
IC Design Branch (BB RITEHEEKNEERRA D)
since November 2005, and deputy director of The Integrated
Circuit Design Industry Technology Innovative Alliance (585X &

BRERFTER XA SRS B ER) .

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in semiconductor
from Xidian University (formerly known as North-western
Telecommunications Engineering School (FFdt B T2 £20%))
in July 1984 and a master's degree in electrical engineering
from Southeast University in April 1989.
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Mr. Shuai Hongyu (B0 4L %), aged 62, is an executive
Director of our Company and joined the Group on October
2005, and was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 23 March 2017. Mr. Shuai resigned as executive Director,
president and chief operating officer of our Company on 19
August 2022.

From 1987 to 1989, Mr. Shuai has been the engineer in the
computer department of the Sichuan Province Remote Sensing
Center (01| % & R LT H =) . From 1989 to 2000,
Mr. Shuai was the vice president of the Southwest Branch
of China Council for the Promotion of Applied Technology
Exchange with Foreign Counties (b B % 4 & F 5217 32 7 12
HEEFFEHE). From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Shuai worked as
the vice president of Beijing Zhongshilian Digital System Co.,
Ltd. GERAREE T R4 BRAF). Between March 2001
to March 2004, Mr. Shuai was the general manager of DTVIA
Conditional Access System (CHINACRYPT) Co., Ltd. (b A8
G W R H AR A R)), a conditional access joint-venture
between Philips Cryptoworks (China) Limited and China Digital
TV Holding Co., Ltd. Between July 2004 and October 2005,
Mr. Shuai worked as the general manager of Beijing Pu‘aode
Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (b sUB RSB E M AR 2 F),
a company engaged in the design and development of digital
television system.

Mr. Shuai obtained a bachelor’s degree in wireless
communication in July 1982 and a master’'s degree in
engineering in January 1987 from Xindian University (formerly
known as North-western Telecommunications Engineering
School (FEIt B T2 286t) .

Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun (B3 &), aged 68, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Loong joined the
Group on July 2013, and was appointed as an executive
Director of our Company with effect from 23 March 2017.

Mr. Loong is the president and chief financial officer of our
Company. Mr. Loong is primarily responsible for co-leading,
with Mr. Huang Xueliang, the management of our business
operation and the overall financial and accounting affairs of
our Group.
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BEAERSHRERNEEEFAEEEELR N2
TN 2 AT BE S A & T B M Lucent Technologies (China)
Co., WUEREELB R_ZEEZNFUNAZ-_FTThhFLt
A+ ¥ EUTStarcom Telecom Co., Ltd. (UTStarcom Holdings
Corp. (NASDAQ : UTSH MM B AR W EFV B ERER &
#BE - MUTStarcom Holdings Corp. /4% Bk & #1 ZE 7t 3% 1 { fiE
B BEIRREAFEERETERNEA (BREEZES
LEEFR)ERMERAR  B{BHERE -  WEHER BF
BEAREGAGSEINH R-_T—ZTF—AE-_ZF—=
FRA BEERBAZBSRIMETMATHRHBRHERESE
EEERAT (RHNBHFZHAROAS - MY) B ET 15
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ST -
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RZZEE—F+LRAREZZTZEF— A H#EEYahoo!
Internationallt T @M BRI AR FREFTHLE B TF
NE-AZ_ZTLFMAERRIER -BAXEB _FZF
+ & A —H A0ak Management Corporation (— XK @K
# & A 7A) > Oak Investment Partners X, LP.HYEEE A F)) #Y
REEGRBAN - BAZZTTN\F+—ARB—ERES T
fENeoPhotonics Corporation (4 #) 7 % 2 5 BT IR 15 (X 5% -
NPTN) (—RERNFEHFR ST LA FEKRERER R
HARRMEN) WEREEENE  EE-FE—AF T+ —
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Mr. Loong has extensive experience in accounting and related
financial management. Prior to 2006, Mr. Loong had extensive
experience working at Lucent Technologies (China) Co., Ltd.
Between April 2006 and July 2009, he served as the chief °
financial officer and chief operating officer at UTStarcom
Telecom Co., Ltd., the subsidiary of UTStarcom Holdings Corp.
(NASDAQ: UTSI), a global telecom infrastructure provider,
focused on delivering innovative carrier-class broadband
transport and access (both Wi-Fi and fixed line) products and
solutions, optimised for mobile backhaul, metro aggregation,
broadband access and Wi-Fi data offloading. Between January
2010 to May 2012, Mr. Loong was the chief financial officer
of China Ming Yang Wind Power Group Ltd. (NYSE: MY), a
wind turbine manufacturer in China, listed on the New York
Stock Exchange, focusing on designing, manufacturing, selling
and servicing megawatt-class wind turbines.

Mr. Loong graduated from the University of Washington with
a Bachelor of Arts degree in business administration in June
1978 and was qualified as a certified public accountant in
New Jersey in the United States in February 1990.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen (B8 E &), aged 65, is a
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Kwan joined
our Group in September 2015 and was appointed as a
non- executive Director of our Company with effect from
20 September 2015. Mr. Kwan has been a director of SMIT
Corporation since February 2008.

He served as the regional vice president and managing
director of North Asia from July 2001 to January 2006 and
the vice president from January 2006 to April 2007 in Yahoo!
International. Mr. Kwan has been a venture partner of Oak
Management Corporation, a venture capital firm which is an
affiliate of Oak Investment Partners X, L.P., since April 2007.
He has served as a director since November 2008 and was a
member of the audit committee for NeoPhotonics Corporation
(NYSE: NPTN), a designer and manufacturer of photonic
integrated circuit based modules listed in the New York Stock
Exchange until November 2015.

Mr. Kwan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of British Columbia in May
1982, a master of business administration degree from
the Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania in May
1987, and a Master of Arts degree from the University of
Pennsylvania in May 1987.
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INDEPENDENT NON- EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cai Jing, aged 41, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Cai joined our Group as a non-executive
Director on 26 March 2021.

From April 2006 to April 2009, Mr. Cai worked as a senior
engineer at Flextronics (China) Electronics Technology Co.,Ltd.
(BRIN (B EFREARAF) From April 2009 to July
2011, Mr. Cai worked as a technical manager in (4t RERE
HIBEEITAR A A]) From August 2011 to August 2014,
he has served as a systems expert in Nokia (China) Investment
Co., Ltd (FEEE (PR KREFRAF). From May 2016 to
September 2019, Mr. Cai was appointed as a researcher of
Cinda Securities Co., Ltd., and he served as Deputy Director
of Boc Financial Assets Investment Co., Ltd. (F iR & L& E
EARAR]). from October 2019 to January 2020. Since
January 2020, Mr. Cai is the senior manager in the Second
Investment Department of Sino-IC Capital Ltd. (F /5% & & 1%
BREEE2RT), the fund manager of China Integrated Circuit
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (IR EKX BEIREZIREE
® B85 B2 A])(“China IC Fund”).

Mr. Cai obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Department of
Communication Engineering from Chongqging University
in June 2003, and a master’'s degree in Department of
Information Engineering from Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications in February 2006, and MBA from National
School of Development at Peking University in January 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Junjie (R 1& ) ,
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

aged 53, is an independent
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banking industry. From May 2001 to December 2004,
Mr. Zhang worked in Dapeng Securities Company (X fig 3&
A AR EELQF). From February 2005 to May 2017, he
worked as the general manager in the business department

of the investment bank, Guosen Securities Company Limited
(BEz&H5BHER AR . Mr. Zhang has served as the
general manager of Shenzhen Qianhai Huigiao Investment
Management Ltd CRII T AT G EE IR E BB R A F)since
June 2017. Since October 2017, Mr. Zhang has been director
of Hubei W-OIf Photoelectric Technology Co., Ltd. G4t
FHERMD AR A A (stock code: 002962) (a high-tech
enterprise specializing in research, development, production
and sales of precision photoelectric thin film components). He
has worked as director of Shareate Tools Ltd. (BN ¥ & &
T EARMAER AR (stock code: 688257) (a global high-tech
enterprise engaged in cemented carbide products and focused
on rock drilling tools) from October 2017 to October 9 2022.
Mr. Zhang has served as independent director of Shenzhen
Landray Software Co., Ltd. CRYITH & ZB M HFRHB ER A
A]) which is a professional digital OA & service provider since
December 2018. He joined Proitav Technology Limited (&3l
POBE AR A F]), a national high-tech enterprise focusing
on research, development and production of audio and video
products as director since April 2019.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’'s degree in oil development
and drilling engineering from the Jianghan Petroleum
University (now known as Yangtze University) in June 1992.
He received a master's degree in industrial economics from
Wuhan University of Technology in June 1999. Mr. Zhang also
received an executive master of business administration degree
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in October
2012.
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Mr. Woo Kar tu.n‘g; Raymond (# K 48) , aged 53, is an
independent non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Woo
joined the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Woo has nearly 30 years of experience in the accounting
and financial services industry. He began his career at Arthur
Andersen & Co (& & % =z @ 7t A = 7% F7) where he
qualified. From November 1997 to March 2004, Mr. Woo
served as a vice president of investment banking division
of ING Bank H.V.. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Woo served as
managing director and head of finance corporate at CITIC
Securities (HK) Company Limited (1 {Z 5% (F5) BIR A A)).

From August 2007 to June 2010, Mr. Woo served as a director
in the investment banking department of Credit Suisse (Hong
Kong) Limited, a leading financial services company. Mr. Woo
joined IRC Limited (/L3R & F R A 7)) (HKSE: 1029) in 2010,
an industrial commodities producer listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange as an executive director, he has since
2015 been re-designated as a non-executive director and
CFO of IRC Limited (#) L3R EH R A7) and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director since January 2018
and resigned on May 25, 2022. Mr. Woo has served as an
independent non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings
Limited (3= K B A A BR A 7)) (HKSE: 2789), a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of curtain
walls listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
April 2011.

Mr. Woo received a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1992.
Mr. Woo became a certified practising accountant of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants in
November 1996, and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 2005.
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Mr. Jin Yufeng(ﬁi!); aged 61, is an 'independent non-—
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Jin joined the Group
on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an independent non—
executive Director of our Company with effect from 6 March
2016.

Mr. Jin has over 38 years of research experience in the
electronic engineering industry. From April 1985 to March
1999, Mr. Jin worked as an engineer and senior engineer in
the 55th Research Institute of China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation (F R E FRIFEE QA FEFR T HAME
Ffr), which is specialised in the research and development
on electronic components. From April 1999 to February
2001, Mr. Jin was a post-doctoral research fellow in the
Institute of Microelectronics, Peking University (F 5L A 22 fif
BT EH5EF) . November 2001 to October 2004, Mr. Jin
served as a senior research engineer of Singapore Institute of
Manufacturing Technology. He has been a professor in the
School of Electronics Engineering and Computer Science ({5 8
BIER 1T ER ) in Peking University since August 2006. Mr. Jin
was a consultant of the Hong Kong Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute Company Limited (&% & B &}
Kbkt AR 2 7)) from August 2007 to November 2007.
Mr. Jin has served as an independent director of Shanghai
Belling Co., Ltd (/8 B 28/ % B BR 2 &) (SHSE: 600171), an
IC designer and application developer listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from December 2013 to November 2019.
He has served as independent Director of Hwatsing Co.,
Limited. (4875 R IR 1D B BR A 7)) (a high-end semiconductor
equipment manufacturer with core independent intellectual
property rights) since November 2020.

Mr. Jin received his bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering
and master’s degree in electronic engineering from Southeast
University (previously known as Nanjing Institute of Technology
(FRIER)) in July 1982 and July 1985 respectively. He
received his doctorate degree in physics and electronics from
Southeast University in March 1999.
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Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric (B8B#%), aged 39, is the company
secretary of our Company. Mr. Cheng has approximately
16 years of experience in accounting and related financial
management. Mr. Cheng worked in the audit department
of Kreston CAC CPA Limited (previously named as Chan and
Chan) from September 2006 and left the firm as an assistant
audit supervisor in May 2011. Between May 2011 and August
2012, he worked as a senior accountant and subsequently
as a finance manager in Icicle Production Company Limited.
Between October 2012 and March 2013, he served as an
audit manager of L & P CPA Limited. From May 2013 to July
2014, Mr. Cheng served as an assistant accounting manager
of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1803), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accounting from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in July 2006. Mr. Cheng received a
master of professional accounting degree from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2012. He has been registered
as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2010.
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D ors are pleased to presen " reports and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay TV broadcasting access in China. The Group designs,
develops and markets security devices primarily for the pay
TV industry worldwide through sales of conditional access
module, or CAM, products which provide end users with
access to pay TV content. The Group actively developed
the semi-conductor IC smart technology business, gradually
expanded into the two main new business lines of cloud
service and integrated circuit (“I1C") solutions.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in the section head “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 5 to 20 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

For the details of the results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 and the financial condition of the Group at
that date, please refer to the consolidated financial statements
on page 113 t0259.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$1 cent (equivalent to approximately USDO.1 cents) per
share, totaling USD410,922.
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Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no
donation (2021: nil) to charitable organisations.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in the Company's share capital for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

To recognise and acknowledge the contributions made by
certain of its employees, directors and consultants to the
growth of SMIT Corporation, SMIT Corporation adopted a
share incentive plan on 21 February 2008 (the “2008 Share
Plan”). As part of the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company, the Company assumed the 2008
Share Plan as the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of
the sole shareholder passed on 15 September 2015, and
assumed all the rights and obligations under options granted
by SMIT Corporation under the 2008 Share Plan, and all share
option agreements entered into between SMIT Corporation
and the holders of such options, to the intent and effect that
all such share options granted under, and such share option
agreements entered, under the 2008 Share Plan will be valid,
binding and enforceable against the Company in accordance
with their terms, as if such options had been granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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TX) BERALBEYA

-IPO Share Option S e incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Eligible Participants (as defined below)
have or may have made to the Company. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to offer selected persons an
opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the success
of the Company, or to increase such interest, by purchasing
Shares of the Company.

The eligible participants (collectively the “Eligible
Participants”) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
include any individual who is (i) an employee of the Company,
any of its parent companies or any of its subsidiaries; (ii)
a member of the board of directors of the Company who
is not an employee of the Company; or (iii) a consultant
to the Company, any of its parent companies or any of its
subsidiaries.

Each share option agreement shall specify the date on
which all or any instalment of the option shall be granted to
each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
term of options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be specified in the share option
agreement and, in any case, shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. The exercise price of the options were
determined by the directors of SMIT Corporation.

No further options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on or after the Listing Date.
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Note: Mr. Shuai Hongyu resigned as director of the Company with effect
on 19 August 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total number of
30,000 Shares were issued by the Company upon exercise of
Pre-IPO Share Options by option holders of the Group. The
weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the Pre-IPO Share Options were
exercised is HK$2.15.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Pre—
IPO Share Options were cancelled.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total number of
4,333,553 Pre-IPO Share Options had lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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were exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The number of outstanding Shares subject to the options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the
date of this report was 8,837,627 Shares, exercisable at the
respective exercise price between USDO0.14 per Share and
USD1.22 per Share, representing approximately 2.8% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of
the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the business results and financial position of
the Group for the past five years is set out in page 248.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this Report, our Directors comprised of the following
individuals:

Executive Directors

Huang Xueliang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shuai Hongyu (resigned on 19 August 2022)
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

Non-executive Directors

Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen
Cai Jing

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Junjie
Jin Yufeng
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Mr. Shuai Hongyu resigned as executive Director on 19 August
2022 due to his other business and personal engagements,
and other work obligations. Mr. Shuai has confirmed that he
does not have any disagreement with the Board and there is
no other matter relating to his resignation that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company
or the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As of the date hereof, each of the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years unless and until it is terminated by not less than
three months’ notice served by the Company to the Director.

Pursuant to Articles 84 and 85 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, one-third of Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years.
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None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with the Group or any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Directors’ and senior management’s biographical details are
set out in pages 71 to 77.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the
financial year. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ liability insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover for the Directors of the Group.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted as
at 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2022, and no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted
as at 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of the Directors and
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out below:

N
s E Remuneration band No. of Individuals
100,0003 7T 3k LA T USD100,000 or below 5
100,0013 7T £200,0005 7T UsSD 100,001 to USD200,000 0
200,000 T A £ More than USD200,000 3
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Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration
is reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company
annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
Note 37 of the consolidated financial statements.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of interests of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EREN

B2 (%)

FERGHEY  Approximate

EEng 54 Number of  percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Shares held"*" interest (%)

mEaRhe ERERA/ NI EEEER 183,874,468M% A% 1% (L) 57.40
Huang Xueliang"*? Beneficial owner/interest in controlled corporation 183,874,468 Shares (L)

BmEE" BXEAA 1,080,4148 8% 1% (L) 0.34
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen"®? Beneficial owner 1,080,414 Shares (L)

BE SO B EXEAA 4,558,6498 B 17 (L) 1.42

Note 5

Loong, Manfred Man-tsun Beneficial owner

4,558,649 Shares (L)
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1. The letter “L" denotes a long position.

2. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Huang Xueliang was directly
interested in 5,043,624 Shares and was interested in share options
to subscribe for 738,067 Shares. Mr. Huang also held a 99% interest
in Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei Investment Co., Ltd. CZ 3 B/ B4k
B AFRAT]), which in turn held a 100% interest in Ever Expert
Holdings Limited. Mr. Huang was therefore also deemed to be
interested in the 178,092,777 Shares held by Ever Expert Holdings
Limited as at 31 December 2022.

3. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen was
interested in 223,418 Shares. Mr. Kwan also held 100% interest in
Cykorp Limited. Mr. Kwan is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 856,996 Shares in which Cykorp Limited had interests.

4. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun was
interested in share options to subscribe for 4,558,649 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors and/or the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

R-ZBE-—F+-"A=+—8 BAAGEEZTMHAR = As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors
BREEMmA+T (BESERARTZSITHABN) RER of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
A R EHE R0 E336K R F R AN T E L AR A shareholders/other persons (other than Directors and chief
NEIRHOEEBROEERSAR T ¢ executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares

of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:
BEREAESL
HHEHEARERN"  Approximate
BREHSEEB B, REmtE Number and  percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest class of securities"” shareholding
R+EL+? Fic (B H) A 25 183,874,468M% A% 1% (L) 57.40%
Ms. Zhang Shiyun® Interest of spouse 183,874,468 Shares (L)
FEYATERMREBRARY RIPEENERE 178,092,777 B (L) 52.49%
Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei Interest in controlled corporation 178,092,777 Shares (L)
Investment Co., Ltd.?
Ever Expert Holdings Limited®” BB A 178,092,777R% B 7 (L) 52.49%
Beneficial owner 178,092,777 Shares (L)
B(EB)REBRAT BEnEAA 29,999,0008% A% {3(L) 9.36%
Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co.,  Beneficial owner 29,999,000 Shares (L)
Limited
(S BREAERARY REZ P E B ES 29,999,0008% A& 15 (L) 9.36%
Xinxin (Shanghai) Interest in a controlled corporation 29,999,000 Shares (L)
Investment Co., Ltd®
BRREREREXREESD R B B S 29,999,000/% M%7 (L) 9.36%
&7 B BR A A
China Integrated Circuit Industry Interest in a controlled corporation 29,999,000 Shares (L)

Investment Fund Co., Ltd.”’
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The letter “L" denotes a long position.

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Huang Xueliang was interested in
5,043,624 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 738,067 Shares. Mr. Huang also held a 99% interest in Shenzhen
Qianhai Guowei Investment Co., Ltd. GEIIFTEBEMIEEERAT]),
which in turn held a 100% interest in Ever Expert Holdings Limited.
Mr. Huang and Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei Investment Co., Ltd.
GRYI A EBE MR & AR A R)) were therefore also deemed to be
interested in the 178,092,777 Shares held by Ever Expert Holdings
Limited. Ms. Zhang is the spouse of Mr. Huang and was therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares Mr. Huang was interested
in.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, China Integrated Circuit
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. held a 100% interest in Xinxin
(Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. which in turn held a 100% interest
in Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited. Each of China Integrated
Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and Xinxin (Shanghai)
Investment Co., Ltd. is therefore deemed to be interested in the
29,999,000 Shares held by Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited
as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no other
parties were recorded in the register of the Company required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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' CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are related party transactions set out in Note

35 to the consolidated financial statements that constitute
connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
required to be disclosed in this report:

Property Leasing Framework Agreement with
Mr. Huang Xueliang

In light of the Group's business growth and development
plan, on 29 October 2019, the Group (through SMIT Group
Limited (“SMIT Shenzhen”)) entered into a property leasing
framework agreement (the “Property Leasing Framework
Agreement”) with Mr. Huang Xueliang. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement SMIT Shenzhen (or
its subsidiaries) may enter into further tenancy agreements
(each for a term of one year or less) with Shenzhen Digital TV
or Shanghai Guo Wei Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (each
a company controlled by Mr. Huang) for the leasing of certain
office premises in Guoshi Building, Nanshan District, Shenzhen
(the “Shenzhen Property”) and an office building located
at No. 2555 Xiupu Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (the
“Shanghai Property”). The term of the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement is 3 years, from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022 (both days inclusive).

As Mr. Huang is an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, he is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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" The terms of

e Property Leasing Framework Agreement,
including the applicable rents and management fees payable,
were determined after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties with reference to (i) prevailing market rates for similar
properties (e.g. with respect to floor space and age of the
building) in the vicinity and the potential change in market
value; (ii) prevailing market rates of property management
services for comparable premises; and (iii) the historical amount
of rents and management fees payable under the existing
tenancy agreement and property management agreement.

During the subsistence of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement, the maximum aggregate rent and management
fees payable would not exceed (i) RMB23,000,000 for the
financial year ending 31 December 2020; (ii) RMB22,000,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2021; and (iii)
RMB22,000,000 for the financial year ending 31 December
2022. The above caps were determined with reference to (i)
the estimated gross floor area of the relevant premises in the
Shenzhen Property and the Shanghai Property required for
the Group’s operation; (i) the rent payable in accordance with
the pricing standard under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement; and (iii) the total estimated management fees
payable in accordance with the pricing standard under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement.

Further details of the terms of, and annual caps applicable to,
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 October 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate
rent and management fees paid by the Group in relation
to the renting of the Shenzhen Property was approximately
RMB14,735,590.12.
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G NECTED TRANSACTIONS
TENANCY AGREEMENT AND PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the independent
non-executive Directors reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed such transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 93 to 95 of
the Annual Report in accordance with paragraph 14A. 56 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set
out in Note 35 of the consolidated financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction as defined and required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules, except for those described in this section
headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions”, in respect of which the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with.
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Save and except for service or employment contracts
entered into with the Directors and the Company’s full time
employees, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed as at 31
December 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Set out below are the percentages of sales and purchases for
the year ended 31 December 2022 attributable to the Group’s
major customers and suppliers:

Purchases

— The largest supplier 17.7%
— Five largest suppliers in aggregate 68.0%
Sales

— The largest customer 24.8%
— Five largest customers in aggregate 69.0%

Total sales of the Group’s largest customer for the year ended
31 December 2022, which amounted to approximately USD7.3
million, accounted for 24.8% of Group’s total sales.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the standards set out in the Model
Code as a code of conduct for the trading in securities of
the Company by all Directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Company confirmed that
the Directors have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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'DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Directors’ information is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Huang Xueliang, the Board Chairman of the Group,
resigned from Board Chairman of Shenzhen State Micro
Science and Technology Co. Ltd CRYI T EI B R AR A
7)), a company engaged in the research and development
of integrated circuit design on 7 July 2022. He resigned from
Board Chairman of Shenzhen Smart Device Technology Co.,
LTD CRYIT AR R B M AN AR 2 F)), a high-tech company
focus on smart screen and machine intelligence on 23 February
2022. He resigned from Board Chairman of S2C Limited ( =
R B BRI B BR A A) (Formerly named as S2C
Shanghai Co., Ltd (BE/ (L8 FERKEARAR)) on 7
November 2022.

On 19 August 2022, Mr. Shuai Hongyu resigned from
Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Junjie, the Independent Non-executive Director of
the Group, resigned from Director of Suzhou Xinrui Alloy Tools
Co., Lid (BRM#F & & T AN AR A AF]) (Stock Code:
688257), an international High-end Technology Enterprises
specializing in Carbide products and mining drilling tools on 9
October 2022.

Mr. Jin Yufeng, the Independent Non-executive Director of
the Group, resigned from Independent Director of Shenzhen
Cozhou Electronics Co., Ltd. CRIITTRIME FRHDBRE A
7)) (Stock Code: 002052), a High-end Technology Enterprises
listed on the main board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange and
focusing on providing leading smart home products and
services on 3 February 2023.

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond, the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group, resigned from Independent
Non-executive Director of IRC Limited (#TIREHFR A7)
(HKEX stock code: 1029), an industrial commodities producer
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 25 May
2022.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained during the year the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

No significant event has occurred after the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has formulated certain policies in accordance with
environmental regulations, including: environmental impact
assessment on various raw materials before making any
purchasing decisions in the design, research and development
phase; improvement of environmental awareness of all
employees through environmental protection activities, training
courses and promotion; and the appropriate responsibilities,
scope, policies and guidelines developed by the Group’s top
management that played a central role in establishing clearly
defined environmental management framework and system.

In day-to-day operations, the Group has been closely
monitoring the latest developments in domestic and
international environmental legislation to ensure that its
environmental policies are consistent with domestic and
international standards while ensuring consistency with global
peers.
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COMPL
REGULATIONS

NCE WITH LAWS AND

The Company’s business is principally carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China, the shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The establishment and operation of the Group
are subject to the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
China and respective places of incorporation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company shall comply
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report, so far as the Company is aware, the Group is not
involved in any material breach of or irregularity against the
applicable laws and regulations that have a material effect on
the Group’s business and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The success of the Group also relies on the support from
key stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The Group’s human resource
management is designed to reward and recognise excellent
employees by providing reasonable compensation and
benefits. Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set
out in the paragraph headed “Employees and Remuneration
Policies” above in this report. In addition, the Group develops
appropriate training programmes specific to different posts,
duties and titles, and provides certain opportunities and
platforms to assist them in developing their career and seek
promotion within the Group.
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~ Customers s

Our CAM customers consist mainly of CA providers,
broadcasting operators, TV manufacturers and distributors. To
a lesser extent, we sell to one-off customers including various
companies and individuals, as well as direct sales to end users
through third-party internet platforms. The Group aims to
provide customers with quality products and services to seek
sustained growth in sales revenue and profitability. The Group
has established various ways to enhance communication
between its customers and the Group, in an effort to provide
superior quality products and services to increase market
penetration and expand various businesses.

Suppliers

The Group maintains good relationship with its suppliers, a
crucial element in the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements, which can be cost—
effective and promote business interests in the long run. Major
suppliers include raw material suppliers, system and equipment
suppliers, external consultants providing professional services,
suppliers of office supplies or goods and other business
partners providing value-added services to the Group.

Regulators

The Company is listed in Hong Kong and is regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the State Administration
of Work Safety, the General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of China and other
relevant authorities. The Group expects to keep up-to-date
and ensure compliance with the new rules and regulations.
To enhance corporate value for shareholders is one of the
Group's corporate objectives. The Group promotes business
development to achieve sustainable earnings growth while
taking capital adequacy into account.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's business operations are affected by changes in
market conditions, the changing industry standards, industry
competition and the ever-changing customer demands. It is
essential that the Group responds in a timely manner to such
changes which may adversely affect the Group’s business and
financial results. The Group also faces other financial risks in
the ordinary course of business, such as liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk. Details of financial risk management
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERNATIONAL SANCTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
CAM sales to customers located in Russia, which accounted
for 1.4% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2022, as well as sales to customers located
in the Balkans and Ukraine, which in aggregate accounted
for 15.9% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2022. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group had no sales to Belarus, Egypt, Ukraine
and Lebanon. The percentage of revenue contribution from
relevant customers located in jurisdictions which are targeted
with international sanctions in the year ended 31 December
2022 decreased to 17.6% from 18.6% during the year ended
31 December 2021, mainly attributable to a decrease in sales
from customers located in certain jurisdictions.

In the coming year, the Group is expected to continue its sales
to customers located in Russia, the Balkans and Ukraine and
does not expect any significant increase or decrease in the
Group’s sales to customers located in those jurisdictions. The
Group also expects no sales or immaterial sales to customers
located in Belarus, Egypt, Ukraine and Lebanon. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not, and has
no present or future intention to, enter into any transactions
in the jurisdictions which are targeted with international
sanctions or with persons and entities which are listed on any
international sanctions list that the Group believes would put
the Group or its investors at risk of violating or becoming the
target of international sanctions.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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To the Shareholders of SMIT Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of SMIT Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are

set out on pages 113 to 259, comprise:

December 2022;

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

o the consolidated income statement for the year then

ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year then ended;

3 the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year

then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

which include significant accounting policies and
explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

3 Valuation of unlisted investments
o Impairment assessments of property, plant and

equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method



Key Audit Matter
Valuation of unlisted investments

Refer to Note 3.3(a), 4.6 and 21 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The unlisted investments of the Group were recognised at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition and requires
subsequent re-measurement at fair value at each period end.
These unlisted investments were measured based on net asset
value, using discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model and market
approach. Management performed a fair value assessment of
certain unlisted investments by using the DCF model as the
valuation technique with the assistance of an independent
external valuer as these investments are not quoted in
comparable recent arm’s length transactions and the net
asset values of the investee companies do not approximate
their respective fair values. The fair values of those unlisted
investments were amounted to USD8,945,721 as at 31
December 2022.

The key underlying assumptions and estimates of the valuation
include revenue growth rates, discount rates, terminal growth
rates and gross profit margin used in the business plans of the
investees.

We focus on the fair values of unlisted investments determined
using DCF model because it involved significant unobservable
inputs which involve significant management judgements and
assumptions and thus involved a higher degree of uncertainty
in the valuations.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of valuation of unlisted
investments and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors.

We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer engaged by management.

We involved our internal valuation specialist in our discussion
with management and the independent external valuer to
understand and assess the appropriateness of the model used
based on industry practice and the assumptions used.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rates by
considering the investees’ weighted average cost of capital
and the risk profile of the investees.

We assessed the reasonableness of the revenue growth rates,
gross profit margin and terminal growth rates by comparing
these assumptions against approved budgets and business
plans, relevant market data and historical performance of the
investees.

Based on the procedures described above, we considered the
key assumptions and estimates used in the valuation of the
Group’s unlisted investments are supportable by available
evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method

Refer to Notes 2.8, 4.5, 10, 15, 16 and 17 of the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method
amounting to USD5,641,342, USD1,549,165, USD25,860,719
and USD118,976,739, respectively.

These assets are tested for impairment when events or change
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. For the assets with indicators that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, management performed an
impairment assessment of the relevant assets at the year-end
date by assessing their recoverable amounts, based on the
higher of the value-in-use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Based on
the impairment assessment, management considered that no
impairment provision for these assets was necessary as at 31
December 2022.

For the purpose of the impairment assessment, management
adopted different impairment approaches, on a case-by-case
basis, and assets are grouped in separate groups of cash
generating units in carrying out the impairment assessments.

We focused on this area due to the significant judgements
involved in selecting key assumptions, including revenue
growth rates, profit margins and discount rates, to be
adopted in the valuation models, including discounted cash
flows, for the impairment assessments, which are subject to
uncertainties.

BYZHBE®RE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of impairment of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible
assets and investments accounted for using the equity method
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors.

We assessed the basis management used to identify separate
groups of cash generating units based on our understanding
of client business.

We assessed the impairment models used in management'’s
impairment assessments with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialist.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rates by
considering the weighted average cost of capital and the risk
profile of the investees and the Group.

We assessed other key assumptions adopted including revenue
growth rates and profit margins by examining the approved
financial forecasts and applicable industry/business data
external to the Group.

We checked sensitivity analysis performed around the key
assumptions, to evaluate the extent to which adverse changes,
both individually or in aggregate, in those assumptions
adopted, would indicate that property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and investments
accounted for using the equity method were impaired.

Based on the procedures described above, in relation to
the Group’s impairment assessments of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets
and investments accounted for using the equity method,
we considered that the impairment models adopted by
management are appropriate and the key assumptions and
estimates used in the impairment assessments are supportable
by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.



TR EEERN ARG - AREFHEENETER
BEMYIFY BERERNBEHNNBERERRER -

HEEFMRAETERNGE EREL G A
HEARENEEMNE -

HEZRAKBLLESHERNREEFELER R
BRAIERNERTRE BRESSFERFHEKBERLE
BMERTHEEN KmAEERYE BEEENEE
RERNEEEREE - MRUMRBRFEERNTE
ElE - MBELEEZBERETRBEEREIESS
MBRRTOEEARE BERREOBESR - AR
MEEHRIFBEREER - RANERZERZEE
WEHEARSHETRE - R KRERBEKIER
Ry ERETRELE -

FESAVBRROERBIHRIN  EBTNAT &
BT URGREVMBEREAEETERMRIHMER -

3 EREAERBIXKIPNMBEEREREE
HEENERTER  UWEHSAMBRRERER - R
MeaE BEXEEFNTM BEENRT RARE
ARRARERAEL-

BREMERS  RMLBEEZZESBBTAENETHE
BRI EXENBERSE  SRFRMAEFTTEBH A
22 1] Y (2 AT BB R BRFE

Obtain an un'derstanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lam Hiu Yam, Winnie.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Year ended 31 December

—s=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
B 5 ETT e
Note usD UsD
&= Revenue 5 29,410,713 36,252,359
FiEk-— N Cost of sales 7 (17,271,933) (19,121,065)
EF Gross profit 12,138,780 17,131,294
Hih e - 558 Other gains, net 6 87,903,040 12,406,073
H At A Other income 6 26,444,122 29,465,525
el Research and development expenses 7 (38,114,876) (38,495,976)
HERDHAX Selling and distribution expenses 7 (1,607,899) (1,865,820)
— M RITH X General and administrative expenses 7 (11,533,461) (10,888,625)
SREEZREFER Net impairment losses on financial assets 7 (42,721) (15,520)
R F Operating profit 75,186,985 7,736,951
BB - (R Finance costs, net 9 (1,199,410) (1,010,169)
DG E A EREARMN Share of net (losses)/profits of investments
®EF (BE),EH accounted for using the equity method 10 (6,764,652) 1,626,790
FRETS B AR F Profit before income tax 67,222,923 8,353,572
FriS®i (Fsk) /e Income tax (expense)/credit 12 (10,110,250) 1,526,724
FREF Profit for the year 57,112,673 9,880,296
PR & EFE (R ER - Profit is attributable to:
AKRNREE A Owners of the Company 57,186,976 9,844,174
SEVERR A o Non-controlling interests (74,303) 36,122
57,112,673 9,880,296
KRAREB AELTREF Earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company:
BREAREF (BR=TT) Basic earnings per share
(USD per share) 13 0.179 0.031
BREEAT (BR3=TT) Diluted earnings per share
(USD per share) 13 0.177 0.030

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BE+-HA=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—EsE-—F —E-—4F
2022 2021
B 5 =T E 7
Note usD UsD
FREF Profit for the year 57,112,673 9,880,296
Hih2mE (&H8) ks : Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
BB E T8 EE  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
e 3 =5 Translation differences (3,624,621) 1,485,730
DGR EREARK Share of translation differences of
REERERE investments accounted for using the
equity method 10 (3,235,194) 965,000
EEH D EEEmAEE Items that have been reclassified
to profit or loss
RREL EFE BREISEARD Exchange reserve released upon deemed
2 & B O R E s disposal of an investment accounted
for using the equity method 10(b) (624) =
R E —EHE A RERER Exchange reserve released upon disposal
FE W & of a subsidiary 32(f) (23,301) -
RBRELENE QA& ERE R Exchange reserve released upon deemed
b 5 disposals of subsidiaries 32(e) (614,574) -
ERHMEE (FE) Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Wz o HIBRBIIE for the year, net of tax (7,498,314) 2,450,730
FREHEKRSLE Total comprehensive income
for the year 49,614,359 12,331,026
LT &IERELRN Attributable to:
RNRABER A Owners of the Company 49,838,868 12,249,884
FEFE AR M 2 Non-controlling interests (224,509) 81,142
49,614,359 12,331,026

AR A 5 T BB Y — G

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December

—E=-= —T_-—4F
2022 2021
B 5 E7x e
Note usD UsD
BE ASSETS
FEREEE Non-current assets
M - W= REE Property, plant and equipment 15 5,641,342 14,876,320
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 1,549,165 2,471,727
HihEREE Other intangible assets 17 25,860,719 38,825,484
wa Goodwill 24 6,164,059 6,733,411
H b fE WY I8 K FE A5 B Other receivables and prepayments 20 217,971 5,053,931
EREREARNRE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 10 118,976,739 79,914,954
FRBEREATEARDY Financial assets at fair value through profit
TREE or loss 21 25,010,050 25,049,366
RIEFTEIE E Deferred income tax assets 23 1,488,848 6,712,200
184,908,893 179,637,393
nBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 4,722,965 5,755,183
B 5 & EAth e U FRIE K& Trade and other receivables and
TEfT K8 prepayments 20 9,364,924 27,708,698
AU B AT 1S B Income tax recoverable 5,680 127,779
BeRASEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 22 48,232,794 18,799,131
62,326,363 52,390,791
mEE Total assets 247,235,256 232,028,184
it 4R A B TS AR O 2R B B AT B R — GBI GE o The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December

—E-= —E_—F
2022 2021
B 5 E7x e
Note usD UsD
EmkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
e Equity
R% 7 Share capital 25 6,408 6,407
B 1n (B Share premium 25 101,222,551 101,618,383
B hHEE Merger reserve 26 (48,810,141) (48,810,141)
DARGAD A B HE 5 T Share-based payment reserve 26 15,500,030 15,508,349
EEEE Statutory reserve 26 11,741,359 5,320,317
REB & Retained earnings 104,964,155 54,198,221
BN Capital reserve 26 1,212,543 1,212,543
E N e Exchange reserve 26 (451,003) 6,897,105
KAGEA AEBGERNFEE Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company 185,385,902 135,951,184
FEFE AR M B Non-controlling interests 11 2,198,818 2,423,327
BER Total equity 187,584,720 138,374,511
=L Liabilities
FREBAE Non-current liabilities
HEARE Lease liabilities 16 1,051,163 1,919,114
(EX I #N e 4i] Provision of reinstatement cost 28 51,945 =
BT A Deferred income 29 21,630,569 36,559,810
RITIE K Bank borrowings 30 = 15,057,170
22,733,677 53,536,094

EiltaR & B RS AR 2K 1 L B P Y i — O RO -
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The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December

—E=-= —T_-—4F
2022 2021
B 7 E
Note UsD UsD

REBERE Current liabilities
E S RE Trade payables 27 902,221 1,246,139
FEETE R R E b B 1B Accruals and other payables 28 4,854,870 8,160,780
oM=K Contract liabilities 28 5,678,236 10,427,440
RITER Bank borrowings 30 16,856,675 13,331,870
IRFEWA Deferred income 29 2,643,770 6,299,117
e FT1S R Income tax payable 5,294,136 —
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 686,951 652,233
36,916,859 40,117,579
wWeE Total liabilities 59,650,536 93,653,673
wERREE Total equity and liabilities 247,235,256 232,028,184

EiltaR & B RS AR 3K I L B P Y i — O BOE -

F13E259BE WAV EHRERER

—E-_=Hf=ZA=-1+m

REEEgHE  IHUATEEKR/EE -

HER
Huang Xueliang
E

Chairman

BESCER
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
BZE

Director

The above consolidated statement of financial position should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 259
were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023
and were signed on its behalf.

FE ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIIZERHE R AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED 117



Attributable

‘:--if.=
the Company

to owners of
IR
RERE
e ROEE AkEE  OMRE  EERE  EARR  EXRR  RERA At FERES B
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Merger — payment  Statutory Capitdl ~~ Exchange Retained controling Total
capital premium reserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve earnings Total interests equity
£ £ £y £33 7 £33 7 # T £ £
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
R=F--5-A-BHEH Balance at 1 January 2021 6390 101642531  (48.810,141) 15750615 4914429 1212543 4491395 44759935 123967697 2,342,185 126,309,882
BE-E--ET-A=t-ALFE  Forthe yearended 31 December 2021
2EkE Comprehensive income
EREH Profit for the year - - - - - - - oM 9gmM1TA 36,122 9,880,296
EnzE Translation differences - - - - - - 1485730 - 1485730 - 1485730
MEEBEREAROREELZE Share of translation differences of investments
accounted for using the equity method - - - - - - 919,980 - 919,980 45,020 965,000
ER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - Q405710 9844174 12,049,884 81,142 12,331,006
REFANRS Transactions with owners
ROZAERE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - - - 0588 = - (40s888) = = =
EEkE Exercise of share options 17 387,457 - (242,60) - - - - 145,208 - 145,208
REE--E/ARN-F-SFAERE Didend relating to 2020 paid in June 2021 - (411,605 - - - - - - (411,609 - (411,605
EREANRE EENERED Transactions with owners, recognised directly
in equity 17 (24,148) = (242,266) 405,888 = = (405,888) (266,397) - (266,397)
RoE--£+-A=t-AHER Balance at 31 December 2021 6407 101618383  (48,810,141) 15508349 5320317 1212543 6897105 54198221 135951184 2423317 138374511
ik Representing:
R Capital 6,407 - - - - - - - 6,407 - 6,407
Bl Reserves - 101208903  (48810,141) 15508349 5320317 1212543 6897105 54198221 135535297 - 135,535,297
FERER Non-controling inerests - - - - - - - - - BT B
“E--FRERERE 2021 final dividend proposed - 409480 - - - - - - 409480 - 409480
6407 101618383  (48810,141) 15508349 5320317 1212543 6897105 54198221 135951184 2423327 138374511
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The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
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be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



ADFAREAER
Attributable to owners of the Company

HRH
BEER
ke ROEE  AHRE  ARER  iRRE  EARE  EXGRE  RERA At FERER L3
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Merger  payment  Statutory Capital ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
7 7 E7 7 # 7 7 7 7 7 7
usp usp usp usb usb usb usb usb usb usp usp
RoE-—5-F-RAHER Balance at 1 January 2022 6407 101618383  (48810,141) 15508349 5320317 1212543 6897105 54198221 135951184 2423327 138374511
BE-E--ET-A=t-ALFE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
2EkE Comprehensive income
iR/ (58 Profitloss) for the year - - - - - - - 57186976 57,186,976 (74303) 57,112,673
EiZE Translation differences - - - - - - (3,624,621 - (3,624,621 - (3.62621)
MEEREREAROREELZE Share of translation differences of investments
accounted for using the equity method - - - - - - (3,084,988) - (3,084988)  (150,206)  (3,235.194)
REfFLEFRRREARN Exchange resenve released upon deemed disposal
RERBRNESLGE of an investment accounted for using the equity
method - - - - - - (624) - (624) - (624)
HE-FHBAERENEL R Eichange reserve released upon disposal of a
(GEE) subsiciary (Note 32(f) - - - - - - 23301 - (23301 - (23301)
REEHENBAAKBEMELEE  Bchange reserve released upon deemed disposals
(HfiE326)) of subsidaries (Note 32(e) - - - - - - (615 - (6msm) - (61
ER2E(F8) /hBLE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - - - - - - (1348108) 57186976 49838868  (224509)  49,614359
EREANRS Transactions with owners
ROZAERE Appropriation to Statutory reserve - - - - 64108 - - (6421080 - - -
fEERE Evercise of share options 1 12376 - (8319 - - - - 4,058 - 4,058
ZECCERARN-E--ERBRE  Diidend relating to 2021 paid in June 2022 - (408,208) - - - - - - (408,208) - (408,208)
EEEANRE ERNERED Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity 1 (395,832) - (8319 6,421,082 - - (6421082 (404,150) - (404,150)
R=B-=F+-A=t-RMLH Balance at 31 December 2022 6,408 101,222,551 (48,810,141 15500030 11741359 1212543 (451,003) 104964155 185,385,002 2,198,818 187,584,720
B Representing:
LU Capitl 6,408 - - - - - - - 6,408 - 6,408
L Reserves - 100811620 (48810,141) 15500030 11741359 1212543 (451,003) 104,964,155 184,968,572 - 184968572
SRER Non-controling inerests = = = = = = = = - 218818 2198818
ZRICEEERERS 2022 final dividend proposed B (/) - - - - - S (1)) - Mo
6,408 101,222,551  (48,810,141) 15500030 11741359 1212543 (451,003) 104,964,155 185,385,002 2,198,818 187,584,720

) 5 18 SR P 2 — B0 -

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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RERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—EC-C8F —E-—F
2022 2021
s £ e
Note uUsD UsD
RETHMERESRE Cash flows from operating activities
KETEFTEIRE Cash generated from operations 32(a) 27,983,041 10,571,212
EENEARS Interest paid (1,332,427) (1,238,801)
R E TSR Income tax refund 92,101 190,012
RS SE BTSN & FE Net cash generated from operating activities 26,742,715 9,522,423
RETEFIBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BIEHEMBATIHSREES  Net cash outflow from deemed disposals
of subsidiaries 32(e) (6,442,414) -
HE B AT ZIRE R AJEZE Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary ~ 32(f) 22,535,790 -
BEYE WMENEE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (4,287,370) (6,301,597)
HEYE  BENMEEHTSHIE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 32(b) 2,685,678 3,790
W AR ZSA AR E M Payment for acquisitions of investments
accounted for using the equity method 10 - (6,490,566)
2 F B WA Interest income received 9 105,633 276,234
BEHEMERLEE Purchases of other intangible assets (1,992,281) (12,232,853)
BEABBEREATEARD Purchase of financial assets at fair value
SRVEE through profit or loss 3.3(a) = (1,546,264)
BE TS, (FTA)ESF5  Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 12,605,036 (26,291,256)
REEEESRERE Cash flows from financing activities
SRR B Payment for dividend (408,208) (411,605)
RITIE R FTIS 3KIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 32(c) 6,624,501 15,013,242
BEIEITER Repayment of bank borrowings 32(c) (15,186,177) (25,409,045)
17158 B IS 4 Exercise of share options 25(a) 4,058 145,208
HENTN AL LD Principal elements of lease payments 32(c) (699,708) (676,086)
BB EHTAR S ERE Net cash used in financing activities (9,665,534) (11,338,286)
BeRBESEEYEM Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
OR ) 558 cash equivalents 29,682,217 (28,107,119)
FUReRBECEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 18,799,131 46,482,190
HE MR SEYERES) Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
2R E and cash equivalents (248,554) 424,060
FRESRBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 22 48,232,794 18,799,131

bt ARSI E R ME EBEM M T — GBI

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BERAERQR ([ARAE]) REWMBRAE (AR
SE]DEBHRBEUTES:

- GREERER(RERDORZEREE HA
ERBBFATDBEREHEER

—  RHEERYG  BREEF RS MEBRE RS
&

- RESEKRER(ICHBRTER  SREA%E RN
EICE fn M ARBARR AT AR ©

ARABRRAESHESTMEZREFMHOEGR QA -
E 52 8 S K T 3 55 55 Hb ik BMaples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands @ M E R E AR
AN ([ B 1) §9E il 9% = Be iz 70 AP 2 R 1L [ 0 ) 7
BR18015R B B A E 2212 -

ARRAREBEBMERZMBERRAB R LM -

BRIESEHRA  RAPBRRUAZIT(ET)) 25 -

SMIT Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) principally engage in
the following activities:

- development and sales of conditional access
modules (“CAM") that enable secure distribution
and delivery of digital content to television;

- provision of cloud services, including cloud
platform services and its related supporting
services; and

- provision of integrated circuit (“IC") solutions,
including development and sales of IC products
and related design services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
and domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office in the Cayman Islands is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
registered office in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") is 22/F, Guoshi Building, No. 1801, Sha He Xi
Avenue, Nanshan, PRC.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (“USD"), unless otherwise stated.
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FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIE

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") and disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.



2.1 mREEE(E) 2.1

(a)

(b)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FEERNORETEAREFES (a)

AEBER-_ZE-__—F— A —ARBHNE
EREHEERNEANATEETTEL LS
BECCIE

BB B IWEERZE 1698 ((BETA)
HKFRS 16 (Amendment)

FEBCERR (BFTA)
Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

BBV EERNEIN BB ERE 169 K
BB G ERE37H (BETR)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 (Amendments)

2&T383| 55k (KE35T)

AG 5 (Revised)

RNZERETEA R GRS W EL B
EHERINSREREATE  BEH
TEHEMIRRARNERERNTE

755 B e R ER AN B9 T RT e 2 FE (b)

WTEEBMRER - _—F—F—HH
24 B B IR 4 TS 1M ok AR 3K B AR &£ B 3 R BB B
RN ] RS T ER - RER g1
5| e

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amended standards and accounting
guideline adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
amended standards and accounting
guideline for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January
2022:

—E - —F 7% HCovid-19/E A & TR

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 2021

BB TSR E LRI FEUE
(Z2E-NFE_ZT_ZFEH)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

B E E R E ERT

Narrow-scope Amendments

A& T & 548 5| B55% HRIE G S OF 8
A g

Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

The adoption of these amended standards
and accounting guideline did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group

The following new and amended standards
and interpretation have been issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2022 and have not been early
adopted by the Group.
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21 REEE(E)

(b) AKEMERRANWHTR2E(E)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group (Continued)

RT5 B8 2

Ll

BHEEEN

Effective for

accounting

year beginning

on or after

BEMBRE LS5 RBEH —Z-=%-H-H

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

BRHBRE LS5 BAMBREERNETH R BB BEREER ZZZ=%-f—-H
FR 2 MFEA—LRER

HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 1 January 2023

BRMBREENETH (BIIE)

HKFRS 17 (Amendment)

BRGHENE 1R RERMBREER
BIMEF25% (BETK)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

BB GFHERIFESH (BT K)

HKAS 8 (Amendment)

BB G ERE125 (BETA)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

BB ERE 1R (BTK)
HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BB ERE 1R (BRTK)
HKAS 1 (Amendment)
BBIBREEE6 (BRI A)
HKFRS 16 (Amendment)

B RBESHR (BE])

HK Int 5 (Revised)

BAERBRELEAEI0H R
BB G LRI E285 (BT X)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

- Comparative Information
BEMBREENETROET =T == H
Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023
SRR ZZ-=%-f—-H

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

Bt EEER “Z-=%-f—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023

HE-—RHELANEERBERBNELTHE “Z-=%-H—-H

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a 1 January 2023
single transaction

KEBEPERARYRIERY —ZWFE-A—H
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
WERHNERDEE —Z-mE-A—-H
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
ERARNEERRE “Z-mE—-A—A
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BERBELR (KB B BRENFI R — —ZNFE-A—H

ERAHBSABERERERETNERERN SR
(BHRBEST (L))

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5
(Revised))

REERABMEDASAERECREENERTE e

1 January 2024

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined

Associate or Joint Venture
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21 REEEGE)

(b)

REE N RRANIFTR2E(E)

RZEMTRRETEARREENER - A
SERRAZER ] RSB RTER M2k -
A B FA R E RN a3 5T B ET
HAIRRBELNERTE BAMTE
HERBRNENIARKRRERBMEAALR
KX DEREATE -

22 AfRESZEEENRA

(a)

ME L

MEBARSARERRZENMEER -
EAKREEE2HRZERNEHMESK
FRAZOE BARENEBEHZER
BN X BZE L RE - RIS B ESZ
ER -MEBARBRHREBREAEEE
BEAHAR WEHEHERLERER
LEABEARR -

SEARAERS HHREEEARQEME
RHRERWEE TIALH - REFRER
HETREH - HERRANEHBRLE

R

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted by the
Group (Continued)

The Group will adopt the new and
amended standards and interpretation
when they become effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the
above new and amended standards and
interpretation, none of which is expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position, respectively.

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
re-measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

(d)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Joint arrangement

Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”,
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has a
joint venture and does not have any joint
operations.

Interest in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method, after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss,
and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group'’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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Fprs

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its equity-accounted
investments are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities,
except for gains from downstream
transactions involving assets that constitute
a business between the Group and the
Group's equity-accounted investments
which are recognised in full in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.8.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(e)

Changes in ownership interests
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified or permitted
by applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIE

2.3

2.4

»)

(Continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the
Company who make strategic decisions.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’'s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements is
presented in USD, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
at foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the fair value gains or losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.
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SuU

2.6

MMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

TRAASKSG (ARE HRPR A 2%E)
Shorter of lease term or 5 years
3E5F

3 -5 years

5210

5-10 years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying
amounts of the relevant assets, and are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

A

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of computer
software and licence use rights. They
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss, if
any. Amortisation is computed using the
straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 1 to 10 years.
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ACCOU NTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities
are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable assets controlled by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete
the product so that it will be available
for use;

(i)  management intends to complete the
product and use or sell it;

(iii)  there is an ability to use or sell the
product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the
product will generate probable future
economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
product are available; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the
product during its development can
be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are
capitalised as part of the product include
the product development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Research and development costs
(Continued)

Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset'’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIE

»)

(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") or
through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, which
is the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net
in the period in which it arises.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(0

(d)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in other gains, net
in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

4FFEH A ANNUAL REPORT 2022 B 2B RAR SMIT HOLDINGS LMiTeD | 141



2 BEAEBHBEHBE®

142

2.9

TREE (&)

(d) RE (&)

REIRUFEMS  AEEERAES
s mE ERFEIR R BT E
205 05 B KA FE W SR TE RO ) 46 HE R R TR
REHMIEHB L - F15 5 M 3. 10b)G0)
K FfI5E20 ©

RIRBHAATENEMEREEMS -
RERETIRE 120 A ERERIBREE -

210 HFEETWMT A

2.1

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

i E—RA BRITERMNABHECERASE
BABRFEEEGERRAREREERFE
BENELAT  eREERAGBIATEE I
BFEBIAEEMBANKRA - A BIEWT
BAMASEORNARREM ERIEREBERE
TREBERARFUTELN BEEELNK
WEMIER THRHIT -

ﬁ4

JME

\

FERKAER] BB FERE D HOBREEAR -
PRAZ AR - RAmA KA BER
M BEERST R EERARBEREERX
(ERBERERSN) - ETBREBHREA A
FRFE/NAFEFBRET OB EERE
PR SHERIST

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b)(ii) and Note 20
for further details.

For other financial assets at amortised costs,
the impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected credit
losses.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the group entities or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. See Note 2.9 for
further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(b)
(i) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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ACCOU NTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

2.17

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Borrowings (Continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value
of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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OUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting date in the countries where the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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' SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

(9]

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives

Companies within the Group may be
entitled to claim special tax deductions
for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax
credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based
employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees
payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post
retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the
provincial governments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The abolition of the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’
“mandatory” contributions to MPF and the
Occupational Retirement Schemes (“ORSO")
to offset the long service payment (“LSP")
and severance payment (the “Amendment”)
accrued from the transition date (no later
than 2025) was enacted on 17 June 2022.
As the LSP is a defined benefit plan, the
Amendment changes the employer’s legal
obligation which is considered as a plan
amendment under HKAS 19. As the Group
only has very few employees who are in
the scope of the Amendment, the Group is
of the view that the Amendment will have
immaterial impact to the Group’s financial
position and performance.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Share-based payments
(@) Equity-settled share option scheme

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options is recognised as an employee
benefits expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, the
Company's share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any
non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to
save or holding shares for a specified
period of time).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)

The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited directly to
equity.

If the terms of an equity-settled award
are modified, at a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense
is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee, as
measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 U BER AR (E) 2.20 Share-based payments (Continued)
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(b) Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of award shares
and options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of management’s estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 BI#RZBARAR SMITHOLDINGS LMiTED | 153



2.22 WS TER

WaHRE W ERKEN R FEFE  HHE
AR (RN RN - BTFEP
MEMEFTINBRESKERD - B RS SHEEE
ASEERRREENSARESRATRE B
AEBETXMAESNEERELDED K
AR E & R -

(a) EmiEE

HEBEREBERNEHEE (EMRR
NEFAYERBITREVREGXETP
BUWEME) BR EEMCEXIEE
W ERRERELANAREBEER
FREFRBHESOERER &K
FRERY  XAKEATEEBREAM
BRUIRED B R - XSBIEZEX

BEERRMNREADEUE - WIHRE
RABGENRR  RESBEBEREARR
Bp—BREETERH -

154 | #z%% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 E##2 B4R SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

SuU

MMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
net of rebates and discounts. Rebates and
discounts granted to customers are classified as
a reduction of revenue. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below.

(@) Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Provision of services

Revenue from provision of services is
recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered, based on
the actual service provided to the end of
the reporting period as a proportion of the
total services to be provided because the
customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. Where the contracts
include multiple performance obligations,
the transaction price will be allocated to
each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Where these are
not directly observable, they are estimated
based on expected cost-plus margin.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value changes on
these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
finance income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.
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A

»)

CCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) Interest income (Continued)

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight—
line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

3 the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

3 any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance. The Group does not use any
derivative financial instruments to hedge the risk
exposures.

Financial risk management is carried out by the
finance department under the supervision of the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") of the Company.
The CEO provides principles for overall risk
management.

(@) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Europe and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Hong Kong dollar
("HK$"), Renminbi (“RMB") and
Euro (“EUR"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions or recognised financial
assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

HK$ is pegged with USD, thus foreign
exchange exposure is considered
as minimal. As at 31 December
2022, the Group has limited EUR
denominated financial instruments
and the foreign exchange exposure
in respect of EUR is considered as
minimal.
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(Continued)

3.1

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if USD
had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables
held constant, the post-tax profit
would have been approximately
UsD73,000 (2021: USD93,000)
higher/lower and total equity would
have been approximately higher/lower
by USD73,000 (2021: USD93,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of USD
denominated receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in entities whose
functional currency is RMB.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing
assets and liabilities. The Group’s
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no
significant assets and liabilities which
were interest-bearing at floating
rates, except for the deposits in
banks, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 22. Borrowings are
issued at fixed rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not hedge
its exposure to cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on
a regular basis and will consider the
interest rate exposure when enter
into any financing, renewal of existing
positions and alternative financing
transactions.
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(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s practice is to manage
its interest income/expense through
monitoring and reviewing interest rate
changes in the market and its impact
to the Group'’s financial performance.

If the interest rate on cash at banks
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
than the prevailing interest rate, with
all other variables held constant as
at the end of the year, pre-tax profit
would have been approximately
UsD241,000 (2021: USD94,000)
higher/lower.

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity
securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group
and classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 21).

The Group manages its price risk by
regularly monitoring equity portfolio
to address any portfolio issues
promptly.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on a reasonable
expectation of possible valuation
volatility over the next 12 months
(Note 3.3).



3.1 BBEBREE(E)

(b)

FRER

EREARREEELEEE -AKENER
RERETEREREMELEEY (TEE
FHAL) RRTERARE SR EMBE
Wik - ERERDERSELREZERE
RO -

() EBREZE

R —_—FR_FT-_—F+_A#
=t+t—H BRBEELEREFEYW (T
BREFBERS)UREBTERME
BEHEAGEERITEERRARER
EMIRTREER S - REEW K
EAZET N BTEEIBRTENE
FMELAEANEE BERELT
TEEAR AR IR ZALL ©

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand) and deposits with banks, and
trade and other receivables. Management
has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an
on-going basis.

(i)  Risk management

As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, for cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash on hand) and deposits
with banks, they are all deposited
or traded with are held at reputable
banks which are leading and
reputable with low credit risk. The
Group has not incurred significant
loss from non-performance by these
parties in the past and management
does not expect so in the future.
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(Continued)

3.1 BIBEREZR(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) FEAREGE) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) EBREZE(E) (i)  Risk management (Continued)

AEER-_ZE-_—_FR_FT_—F
+—A=1+—H/RITEREOT ¢

The Group’s bank deposits as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

R+=—B=+—H

As at 31 December
—E=-= T4
2022 2021
ET e
UsD (JAYD)
=] BN EmRIT PRC state-owned and listed banks 39,666,615 12,084,550
BIN ETHERTT Overseas listed banks 7,171,477 4,893,092
BB LEWRTT Hong Kong listed banks 1,369,297 1,543,320
FINE B IRTT Overseas state-owned banks 1,155 6,234
48,208,544 18,527,196

RZFEZZF+=ZA=+—H ' &
EE=-REFHAEEE S ERK
BRAENEBEN22% (B - —F:
38%) - AEERHEZERFEL K
HEERER EREZETPME
51 3R A0 8% K I8 UK 187 5 A9 i Uk 5108
mkEEERT EREBHEEAS
B FE Y 5% BB P Y 8 AR U1 B U R
BESRASTESENEARR -
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As at 31 December 2022, top 3
customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 22% (2021: 38%)
of the trade receivables of the Group.
The Group has set up long-term
cooperative relationship with these
customers. In view of the history of
business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history
of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is
no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these customers.
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(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Risk management (Continued)

Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with
the debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

. trade receivables; and

. deposits, notes and other
receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on the nature of
customer accounts, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

Measurement of expected credit loss
on individual basis

Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2022,
the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed
receivables was USD1,245,676 (2021:
UsD2,116,486).
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(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for the risk of default,
taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location
and its ageing category, and applying
the expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of
the trade receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical
credit losses and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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(Continued)

3.1 HMEERBREZ(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) EHEARE(E) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZHEERE ) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
ESEWIE (&) Trade receivables (Continued)
T A EE B AR HIEA (&) Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis (Continued)
TREIWRZ-ZZE-_Z—_F+=_A8 The following table presents the
=+t—BER=ZZE=-_—%+=8 balances of gross carrying amount
=t BNEEAEESRNERER and the loss allowance in respect
SHEE B 5 e U Z00E B R R of the collectively assessed trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021:
ok L] bt ok a8
Ik 1230% 31Z60X 61290% 9NZ180% 180K S L fit
1-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91- 180 days Over 180
Current past due past due past due pastdue  days past due Total
£z £z A7 £z £7 £z £7
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
ZE-CEF-B=1-R 31 December 2022
RELE Gross carrying amount -
— EHRYEA trade receivables 2,603,004 475,715 - 48,283 17,676 - 3,144,738
Bk Expected loss rate 0.37% 0.37% N/A 1.02% 3.98% N/A 04%
EiRER Loss allowance (9,631) (1,760) - (493) (704) - (12,589)
ZB--F+ZA=1+-H 31December 2021
RHSE (Gross carrying amount
— E5RIA - trade receivables 1,545,985 208211 75591 44,898 51,120 14,689 3,692,494
BHRAE Expected loss rate 0.02% 0.02% 0.03% 0.03% 0.07% 0.4% 0.02%
EiEgE Loss allowance (308) (406) ] 13 (36) (55) (820)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(9]
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Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables
are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in the
consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Deposits, notes and other
receivables

Management considers that the credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month
expected credit loss which is close to
zero and no loss allowance was made
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities from leading banks and the ability
to close out market position. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest-bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to continue
its business for the foreseeable future.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

REESREE () (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TXABEGAMBHRAEBHES LT The table below analyses the non-derivative
AN SRR EANEENIETESRE financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
BHREEBEHAR DI - XRFTH maturity groupings based on the remaining
B AAHNKRIRRESRERANERA period at the consolidated statement of
NZHSRE AL - AR SESTEAX financial position date to the contractual
WRNERA AN EHEEERASRES - maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table were the contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balance within 12
months equal their carrying balances as
impact at discounting is not significant.
—FHUR —EmMF MELE ast
Within Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5 years Total
EA £ £ A
UsD UsD UsD UsD
R-B-ZF As at 31 December 2022
T=HETr=E
B 5 EMNTIE Trade payables 902,221 - - 902,221
FE=T B A I E A JE < 5738 Accruals and other payables 1,842,086 - - 1,842,086
RITREZREFS Bank borrowings and interest
thereon 17,263,859 - - 17,263,859
HEGEREFIR Lease liabilities and interest
thereon 749,278 695,782 402,205 1,847,265
20,757,444 695,782 402,205 21,855,431
R-E-—-% As at 31 December 2021
+=A=+-H
B SN IR Trade payables 1,246,139 - - 1,246,139
JE=+E B N £ b & (- ZUE Accruals and other payables 2,128,706 - - 2,128,706
BITERIREFE Bank borrowings and interest
thereon 14,362,006 15,413,040 - 29,775,046
HEEBENEFNE Lease liabilities and interest
thereon 757,990 605,021 1,521,304 2,884,315
18,494,841 16,018,061 1,521,304 36,034,206
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HEAHMAR K AKEMNBABLXRE
RER - ZUXBREBFEGRUAREAES
AEBHERRFERAE - BEHFE/RITER
CMAEABRERERELRAEEFEY -

3.2 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing
and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company. Net debt is calculated as total bank
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents.
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(Continued)

3.2

Capital management (Continued)

The net gearing ratios of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

—E=-= = = s

2022 2021

E Ey

UsD (VAYD)

RITER Bank borrowings 16,856,675 28,389,040
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,738,114 2,571,347
B RERREEED Less: cash and cash equivalents (48,232,794) (18,799,131)
(B&) EBFHE Net (cash)/debt (29,638,005) 12,161,256

RArEAE NELERNFEE Capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company 185,385,902 135,951,184

FEEBMBLLLE Net gearing ratio B N/A 8.9%

A IR T A B I b R ST
MERANERED - AR EHEEAA
BTN R RTE -

AT @I

THRUFTEATFEMERGBERENE AR
BRDMAEER_ZT__FR-_Z=_—F
+—A=+-—HEREATFEAERNESHBMIA %
ERMABEDNSBARTFESHANAT=E
A

s HREEXRABERERMSZRE CRE
HE) (F1/R) -

3.3

The Group targets to maintain a net gearing
ratio to be in line with the expected changes in
economic and financial conditions. The Group's
overall strategy on capital management remains
unchanged throughout the year.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

3 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).



3.3 AFEMGEF(E)

(a)

FVRFABRRRERIINZBABIE - G
BWABBREEXREBETRBEETER (A
B HME AUREER) S (F24) -

WINABERTERBERRIEZEEXR
BRAZE (A TAEREHAHE) (F3
&) -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

g% E E=® a&f
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£y £ £ £
usD usD usD usD
R-ZB-ZF As at 31 December 2022
+=A=+-H
BE Assets
BAREREATE Financial assets at fair value
ARNEREE through profit or loss - - 25,010,050 25,010,050
R-E-—-% As at 31 December 2021
TEHETr=E
BE Assets
BRERKRATE Financial assets at fair value
AERSREE through profit or loss - - 25,049,366 25,049,366
FRENR - F24% B FE 3% 2 [ B 8 B There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
(ZBE=—F ) o and 3 during the year (2021: Nil).
EXT e = (@) Financial instruments in level 3

YERNERETSEENESRTANAFE
THERMEITEETE - R F M E&RK
REMERASHATEETSHIBEREA
BEERKEERMNARMGS - H—BAXS
BHEXR ABBIIFER A BEMNSHE -
A T AWM AEIR
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The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If one or more
of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.
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(Continued)

3.3 AFEMEF(E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) FE3RMES@MIA(E) (a) Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)
TREINEMRMIENEBEE T _—FK The following table presents the changes in
T F+ A=+ —HILEFEEF- level 3 instruments for the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021.

EBBREATE
AENEBMEE
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

ESA
usD
RZB-—F—H—-HBNEDELR Opening balance at 1 January 2021 11,679,240
FNARE Additions for the year 1,546,264
REEE R FRER I F 5 (His6) Net gain recognised in the consolidated income
statement (Note 6) 11,790,670
BHENZR Currency translation difference 33,192
RZB-—&E+-A=+—HMWEKREEH Closing balance at 31 December 2021 25,049,366
A WS RIER A WS F 5 (M sE6) Net gain recognised in the consolidated income
statement (Note 6) 1,525,648
EREREZR Currency translation difference (1,564,964)
RIB--F+-HA=1+—HWEXRLH Closing balance at 31 December 2022 25,010,050
RERFRHEREF AREHER Total gain for the year included in the consolidated
[EfhUezs - FE B THERKZEEEE  income statement for assets held at the end of the
year, under “other gains, net” 1,525,648
RERFTAGEREROFA Changes in net unrealised gain, net for the year
AERFhaEmEE)  F8 included in the consolidated income statement
at the end of the year 1,525,648
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(a)

EIMMWEMT A (B)

TREAEEBNFEIRAFEFENSE

AROABRBARBOE(LER

, (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)

The following table summarises the

quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in level

3 fair value measurements:

R-B-ZF
+=ZB=+-H ENCIE-£-3 DN
ki WARE HESMN TABREAHE YiBEE
Fair value at Range of
31 December unobservable
Description 2022  Valuation technique Unobservable input input
7
usb
fEmEs B EHE (W) T T
Unlisted fund 551,942  Net asset value (Note (i) N/A N/A
RZE—tFRAKEN BEFE (M5E0) TER TER
I EMRAE S
Unlisted equity security acquired in - Net asset value (Note (i) N/A N/A
May 2017
RZZ—N\FZRKER B EFHE (M) TEA TER
I EMRAE S
Unlisted equity security acquired in - Net asset value (Note (i) N/A N/A
February 2018
551,942
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(Continued)

ANFEEGE (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
E3WMELMIT A (48) (a) Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)
R-ZBE--&
+=A=+-H TAREG A
ki) WAYE /ERR TABRAAYE YEEE
Fair value at Range of
31 December unobservable
Description 2022 Valuation technique Unobservable input input
7
usb
=2 N\F+— Al BRRSRE BAIBRE 20.0%
FEmRAESR (HFEFRE2RZ]) BEFEHERR 181.1%
(Bt i) BEBRE 3.0%
Unlisted equity security acquired in 6,236,589  Discounted cash flow (“DCF") Pre-tax discount rate 20.0%
November 2018 (Note (ii)) Compound annual 181.1%
growth rate
Terminal growth rate 3.0%
RZZ—-AFXAKER BRBEEmE (i axi) ATBE R & 15.0%
I EMRAE S BREEERE 6.0%
RRERE 3.0%
Unlisted equity security acquired in 1,273,299  DCF (Note (jii) Pre-tax discount rate 15.0%
June 2019 Compound annual 6.0%
growth rate
Terminal growth rate 3.0%
RZZ -5 YfE #ER 2w (ki) HATBE R & 14.8%
I EMRAE S BREREERE 46.9%
REERE 3%
Unlisted equity security acquired in 1,435,833  DCF (Note (iv)) Pre-tax discount rate 14.8%
April 2021 Compound annual 46.9%
growth rate
Terminal growth rate 3%
8,945,721
RZZZZF+—-AKEN 5 & (B ) iR ER 94
I ETRAE S
Unlisted equity security acquired in 15,512,387  Market approach (Note (v))  Price-to-sales multiple 9.4
November 2020
25,010,050
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(a)

EIMMWEMT A (B)

U]

(ii)

(iii)

AEERR RREHR HEEEFER
FETEERERDHINR-Z—tFAAR
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1% ) » Bif& s F #% k2 £998,000% 7t (= F
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= o

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

@)

(ii)

(i)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group has determined that the reported
net asset value approximates fair value of the
unlisted fund investment and the unlisted
equity securities acquired in May 2017 and
February 2018, respectively, at the end of the
reporting period.

If the discount rate shifted downward by
1% (2021: Nil), the post-tax profit would
be approximately USD621,000 higher. The
higher the pre-tax discount rate the lower
the fair value and the lower post-tax profit.
If the compound annual growth rate in
revenue shifted downward by 1% (2021: Nil),
the post-tax profit would be approximately
USD99,000 lower. The higher the compound
annual growth rate in revenue, the higher the
fair value and the higher post-tax profit.

If the discount rate shifted downward by 1%
(2021: 1%), the post-tax profit (2021: profit)
would be approximately USD51,000 higher
(2021: USD287,000 higher). The higher the
pre-tax discount rate the lower the fair value
and the lower post-tax profit. If the compound
annual growth rate in revenue shifted
downward by 1% (2021: 1%), the post-tax
profit (2021: profit) would be approximately
USD98,000 lower (2021: USD169,000 lower).
The higher the compound annual growth rate
in revenue, the higher the fair value and the
higher post-tax profit.
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DFEMGE ()

(a)

(b)

EIMMWERMT A (B)

(iv) fHEEBRETHI%(ZT=-—F:1%) B
18 3% Il 15 42 N 49160,000E T (— B = —4F :
190,000%70) * BATARE R @S - Al AFE
AR KRB BREFRE o MRS EE FES
RETHE1% - B85 T #5082 £949,0005
T (=T = —% :50,000%7T) - WEMHES
FERRRAE  AATERSEFEEH

7

(v) AEEERATSEAEEZRER-_T_—
FH_A=+—HANAFE - IELRAF
MTEEAETSES  REERETTS
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BBERAHENSHEEREEIAT
@

FEERYEREE (BERESREME
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NCIAL RISK MANAGEME
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

(iv) If the discount rate shifted downward by
1% (2021: 1%), the post-tax profit would
be approximately USD160,000 (2021:
USD190,000) higher. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate the lower the fair value and the
lower post-tax profit. If the compound annual
growth rate in revenue shifted downward
by 1%, the post-tax profit would be
approximately USD49,000 (2021: USD50,000)
lower. The higher the compound annual
growth rate in revenue, the higher the fair
value and the higher post-tax profit.

(v) The Group has determined the fair value
of the investment as at 31 December 2022
using market approach. Price-to-sales ratio of
comparable companies are used as market
multiple, it represents the amount used
when the entity has determined that market
participants would use such multiples when
pricing the investment.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortised costs

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
current financial assets, including trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
and current financial liabilities, including
trade payables, accruals and other payables,
lease liabilities and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities. The carrying amounts of
non-current other receivables, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings approximate their fair
values which are estimated based on the
discounted cash flows.
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'3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group has no financial assets and financial
liabilities, which is subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements as at 31 December 2022
(2021: None).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

4.1 Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets. Management will
revise the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives are different from previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.
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4.2

4.3

4.4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date.

Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables

The loss allowance for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1(b).

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the worldwide provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be required.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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‘4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Income taxes and deferred income tax
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Recoverability of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment. Goodwill and other
non-financial assets, mainly including property,
plant and equipment, other intangible assets
and right-of-use assets, as well as investments
accounted for using the equity method, are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These
calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Recoverability of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Judgement is required to identify any impairment
indicators exist for any of the Group’s goodwill,
other non-financial assets and to determine
appropriate impairment approaches, i.e., fair
value less costs of disposal or value in use, for
impairment review purposes, and to select key
assumptions applied in the adopted valuation
models, including discounted cash flows and
market approach. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment
could materially affect the result of the
impairment test and in turn affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the key
assumptions applied, it may be necessary to take
additional impairment charge to the consolidated
income statement.

Fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group that are not quoted or actively
traded in the market involves significant amounts
of accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions; and could affect the
carrying amount of these assets within the next
financial year. For the investments in unlisted
investee companies and the investment in an
unlisted fund where there are no active trade
markets, the Group estimates the fair value of
these investments with reference to the fair values
of the underlying investments held by the investee
companies, such as those provided by the financial
and market information. It also employs valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants
including those based on share of net asset value
of the investees, recent comparable arm'’s length
transactions, market approach and discounted
cash flow model.
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Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM that
are used to make strategic decisions. The CODM is
identified as the Executive Directors of the Company.

The CODM assessed the performance of the Group by
reviewing the results of four reportable segments (CAM,

rapid verification systems and software, cloud services
and IC solutions), and assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment
results, including adjusted profit before tax of the

relevant operating segments.

Management has identified the following four reportable

segments based on the Group’s business model:

CAM - development and sales of security products that
enable secure distribution and delivery of digital content

to television.

Rapid verification systems and software - equity
investment in entity engaging in development and
sales of rapid hardware-based verification systems and

software.

Cloud services — provision of cloud services, including
cloud platform services and its related supporting

services.

IC solutions — research, development and sales of IC

products and related design services.
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s
INFORMATION (Continued)
The CODM reviews the performance of the Group on a
regular basis and reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results,
including adjusted profit before tax of the relevant
operating segments. Expenses, where appropriate,
are allocated to operating segments with reference
to revenue contributions of respective segments.
Finance income, finance costs and unallocated income
and expenses are not included in the result for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the Group's
CODM.

Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, other
intangible assets, investments accounted for using
the equity method, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, inventories, and trade and other
receivables and prepayments but exclude deferred
income tax assets, property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, income tax recoverable, cash and
cash equivalents and corporate and unallocated assets.

Information relating to segment liabilities is not disclosed
as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

Other information provided to the CODM is measured
in a manner consistent with that as adopted for the
consolidated statement of financial position contained
herein.




‘5  SEGMENT INFORMATIO

N (Continued)

RIRER ERER
BEF REEZH ER®E BRAR ko
Rapid
verification
systems and Cloud
CAM software services IC solutions Total
E E EY ET E
usD usbD usb usD usb
BE-E-_—F For the year ended
+t-A=1+—HLEFE 31 December 2022
o Hlzs Segment revenue
AN ERUG 25 External revenue 13,676,035 - 3,871,523 11,863,155 29,410,713
Uy 2 e 3R g Timing of revenue
recognition
EX—E2HER At a point in time 13,676,035 - - - 13,676,035
R —ER R Over time - - 3,871,523 11,863,155 15,734,678
13,676,035 - 3,871,523 11,863,155 29,410,713
D EEE Segment results 3,238,072  (1,617,798) 399,020 71,094,713 73,114,007
BE-E--—-F% For the year ended
+ZH=t—-HLEEE 31 December 2021
o Bz Segment revenue
SR ER External revenue 21,101,619 - 4,027,454 11,123,286 36,252,359
U 25 e 3R g Timing of revenue
recognition
ER—FEER At a point in time 21,101,619 - = - 21,101,619
R — R R Over time - - 4,027,454 11,123,286 15,150,740
21,101,619 - 4,027,454 11,123,286 36,252,359
DEPEE Segment results 5,376,676 789,730 415,090 12,201,306 18,782,802
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RIEBRF SRER
BEF REHERMGF ER% R R HE
Rapid
verification
systems and Cloud
CAM software services IC solutions Total
EYA ET ESA ET ESA
usD usD usD usD usD
R-E-—F+=-A=+-— As at 31 December 2022
DEEE Segment assets 14,048,719 48,062,146 747,605 110,748,651 173,607,121
R=—Z-—fF+=-H=1+—H Asat31December 2021
DEEE Segment assets 14,517,487 52,963,853 1,439,159 99,741,201 168,661,700

ARE D BEEERASHATE N AR AT RED BE

A reconciliation of reportable segment results to profit

ERKEEMHERNT before income tax and reportable segment assets to
total assets is provided as follows:

BE+-—HA=t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December
—_E—— —E-—4F
2022 2021
E e
usD UsD
BEDWEE Reporting segment results 73,114,007 18,782,802
NGINYE an s - Corporate and unallocated expenses, net (4,691,674) (9,419,061)
E WA Finance income 105,633 276,234
WE KA Finance costs (1,305,043) (1,286,403)
BR BT 15 B AT % R Profit before income tax 67,222,923 8,353,572
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R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December

—s=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
£ E
uUsD Usb
ATRESBEE Reportable segment assets 173,607,121 168,661,700
RIEFTEHREE Deferred income tax assets 1,488,848 6,712,200
W - BE R R Property, plant and equipment 5,641,342 14,876,320
EREEE Right-of-use assets 1,549,165 2,471,727
AU B BT 15 Income tax recoverable 5,680 127,779
e RBELEED Cash and cash equivalents 48,232,794 18,799,131
NEIRADEHEE Corporate and unallocated assets 16,710,306 20,379,327
AR RTREEE Total assets per consolidated statement of
financial position 247,235,256 232,028,184
@) FERFER (a) Information of major customer
—E—— e
2022 2021
ET E
usD usD
ZFEA Customer A 7,290,118 4,312,332
5B Customer B 4,646,662 8,262,661
ZFEC Customer C 3,871,523 4,027,454
EFED Customer D 3,091,000 N/A
=FE Customer E N/A 4,884,074
TEA: HRERFELENRZIIRAEEREBEE N/A:  not applicable as revenue generated from the

KEEE10% - MA@ -

KEEFPBRDM W ERBRE RDE - KB
BEPCHKRERBERBEDE - REFPAREDN
Was Ik B =K ERRBRTRD AL -

customer is less than 10% of the Group’s revenue in
respective year.

Revenue from Customer B and D were generated
from CAM segment whereas revenue from
Customer C were generated from cloud services
segment. Revenue from Customer A and E were
generated from IC solutions segment.
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Other income and other gains, net recognised during
the year are as follows:

HE+-A=+t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-CF —ZT -4
2022 2021
T S
UsD UsD
Hg A Other income
BT 46 B Government grants 26,394,555 29,445,286
Hith Others 49,567 20,239
26,444,122 29,465,525
Hits - F8E Other gains, net
FEH zs (E18) %58 Exchange gain/(loss), net 384,116 (270,535)
RAIEL EHE AT Gains on deemed disposals of subsidiaries
(BT 3E32(e)) (Note 32(e)) 63,649,651 -
HE— R BRI Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32(f))
(B &E32() 22,278,040 -
RE S B & A Bl e Gains on deemed disposal of associates
(MF5E10) (Note 10) 65,585 886,484
ERBERERATEARL Net fair value gains on financial assets at
TREENA T ERZE fair value through profit or loss
8 (MiEE3.3(a) (Note 3.3(a)) 1,525,648 11,790,670
Hith Others - (546)
87,903,040 12,406,073
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mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included “cost of sales”, “research and
development expenses”, “selling and distribution

b2 i’ N expenses”, “general and administrative expenses” and
“net impairment losses on financial assets” are analysed
as follows:
BZE+-A=1+—HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
—==-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
=T e
UsD UsD
ZE RN B & Auditors’ remuneration

—ZBURT - Audit services 312,000 509,872

— IERRBURTS - Non-audit services 86,486 27,578
EERAMAZ (BREEEHE) Employee benefits expenses (including directors’

(BE8) emoluments) (Note 8) 27,410,338 24,484,733
EHIFERA Cost of inventories sold 12,106,111 13,846,619
EfbfEf & g (ME17) Amortisation of other intangible assets (Note 17) 8,514,727 4,466,367
W - BE R REITE (M5515) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(Note 15) 5,346,393 4,412,576
SXRERARER IC testing fee 2,926,483 11,078,670
EHAEEBARS (FE16) Expenses relating to short-term leases (Note 16) 2,135,826 2,325,160
ERMEBEHX Travelling and entertainment expenses 1,536,770 1,843,208
MAZERAmRAARIE Office supplies and utilities 1,507,467 1,796,835
MBS N R RIFFA] 8 Rl License fee and technical supporting fee paid to

T 358 (MIsE35(b)) an associate (Note 35(b)) 1,191,529 1,239,465
FENEEER Legal and professional fees 1,176,230 1,293,477
FREEERE (Wi16) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) 867,167 558,277
MK EKRTIRES AR fFH  Other research and development cost paid

H i 3k AN to IC design service companies 833,333 123,436
] R 22 52 A~ #) L A A 25 A AR Other research and development cost paid

to universities 752,299 799,350
HirEERE Royalty expenses 589,549 748,554
HEME  BEIREEE Loss on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 553,998 18,946
HAth 78 Other taxes 212,794 81,977
B AR Advertising costs 156,251 406,679
FERERE(BERED) Provision for/(reversal of provision for)

impairment of inventories 87,489 (156,460)
B 5 FEWGRIBRE Provision for impairment of trade receivables

748 (M17E20) (Note 20) 42,721 15,520
HA Others 224,929 466,167
SHERAN HERY - HER Total cost of sales, research and development

DEEAS MR RITHEX expenses, selling and distribution expenses,

NEE&mEREZRE general and administrative expenses and net

FEEEAARE impairment losses on financial assets 68,570,890 70,387,006
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o = r )

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

BE+-A=1t—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

—s=-= T4
2022 2021
ET ZET
uUsD UsD
IE - #HehEAZE Wages, salaries and other allowances 16,724,871 14,850,393
BB IEAL Discretionary bonuses 7,245,551 7,102,142
BRIRER — REH—AGHE Retirement benefit — defined contribution

(Hft 7)) plans (Note (a)) 3,439,916 2,532,198
27,410,338 24,484,733

(a) EREFN-AEMHEFETE (a) Retirement benefit — defined

AR B B B B & B A P B BURT BT HE 1T
REBERKRBHAENKE - AEEZMELR
RAREHFEETEOLELHER MEFEH
BN - U B AR IRE SRR IR AR N A9
—SEE -BRERNOERRKFEARRERKE
BXfERKE -

AEEELZHEBTBRERESMABHNEREES S
g ([BEetEl])  ZAERBBUIEAE
ERE KRGS - REBBESFE - ARER
HEBERHIEABREIEENEERANS%
FAAFEELRHER AEERES HHHT N
1,50087T A LR - HRIFHOHEFBERLEE -
W R WA AR A BIR B K

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

contribution plans

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group contributes a certain percentage of
the salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-managed
retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions were subject to a cap of HK$1,500
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce
contributions payable in the future.



(@)

(b)

RAKBEA —RE R ()

B bt 5 &SN AR E Y EAEE KRR
BEMEE-

hEBREHALT

FRN AEBREERTALTEEENS R
R 7D =2 (ZTE=—F: =4)
EEZ - REARNFHTME (ZCZE=Z—F M
Z)ALTEHB ST ¢

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

e

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Retirement benefit — defined
contribution plans (Continued)

The Group has no material obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond contributions to
the above schemes.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2021: three) directors whose emolument is
reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2021:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= = ==
2022 2021
E0n e
usD usSD
HEAFHE 2B REYEA Basic salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 493,632 787,072
BB EAL Discretionary bonuses 337,878 210,709
RIRE T — FE S RETE Retirement benefit — defined
contribution plan 20,179 19,278
851,689 1,017,059

10 4 0% 4 25 B B L A 1 S N SR AN (R
AT (ZZBZ—%F : M|) -

w
:

No inducement fee nor compensation for loss of
office has paid to or receivable by any of these
individuals (202 1: Nil).
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) EEBRSHAL(E) (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
MerEELIm T : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
BE+-_A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—s=-= T4
2022 2021
[k ] Emolument bands
2,500,0017% 7t 23,000,000 HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (equivalent
BT (e 320,436 TR to USD320,436 to USD384,522)
384,522 1) - 1
3,000,0017% 7t 23,500,000 HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 (equivalent
BT (FEM384,523FE L& to USD384,523 to USD448,610)
448,610% 1) 1 -
3,500,0017% 7t 24,000,000 HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 (equivalent
BT (HHEN448,611ETLE to USD448,611 to USD512,696)
512,696 7T) 1 -
4,500,001,% 7T 25,000,000 HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 (equivalent
BT (BEN576,783FE L E to USD576,783 to USD640,870)
640,870 7T) - 1
2 2

9 RBERE FH

9 FINANCE COSTS, NET

BE+t-A=1t—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—s=-= T4
2022 2021
£ ESTT
UsD usD
mE WA Finance income
SRITE AT E U A Interest income on bank deposits 105,633 276,234
il R A Finance costs
THEABMWAER X (f3E16)  Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 16) (120,011) (52,509)
SRITEROF B R Interest expense on bank borrowings (1,185,032) (1,233,894)
A& B AR Finance costs (1,305,043) (1,286,403)
MERK  FHE Finance costs, net (1,199,410) (1,010,169)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EAEREARNKRE

NTAREER T __F+-_A=1+—HEAE=
EANRNRE - RASEHEB ARG BERARIE
RREREREERLE (BERAERE) [BRREE
el —HRPBERINEREE) REFELKRD
Chipattern Limited ([ Chipattern | » — & 7 2 /&8 §E %z B¥
S(RBEXES]) MK IHBERAF) I AT
Fol A E I NABERKY ERARFFMER -
WAREEEEFHE o Anl M7 S MER 2
HFEZEEMEB - RPBK MBS R RIMNEETE
BRI X R TEREM K o

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Set out below are the investments accounted for using
equity method of the Group as at 31 December 2022.
Except for Shenzhen Hongtai Angel Share Investment
Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Hongtai Angel
Fund”) which is a partnership established in the PRC
and Chipattern Limited (“Chipattern”) which is a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") whereby the Group owns limited partnership
interest of Hongtai Angel Fund and preference shares
of Chipattern, other entities listed below which are all
established in the PRC have share capital consisting
solely of registered capital, which are held directly by the
Group. The country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business. The English names
of the associates established in the PRC are directly
translated from their Chinese names.

BRAR K%/ ARALER REREEEAL B Fip=0: 5 Kaf
Place of business/ Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest  Nature of relationship method Carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
Zg-zf CE--% IR E--F
% % £7 EA
% % Usb )
/i/a?/\%frﬂ&ﬁﬁ’&ﬂ hE 27.95% 795% BERF(ZE=-F Bak 515,606 729402
[ EEER) (i) BELT)
Shangha\ Qingge Digital Technology  The PRC Associate (2021: Associate)  Equity method
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Qingge")
(Note (a))
FRRRTRUMRAER e 20.75% 075% BMEAR(CE_-F: gk 48,062,146 52963853
Ral((BEGLE)) BEAT)
S2C Limited ("S2€ Shanghai”) The PRC Associate (2021: Assouate) Equity method
ABEABRTRRAR hE 8.98% 909% HERA(-F— Bt 11199350 13,849,039
(it ) (FfzE b)) BEAR)
ShenzhenG\ga Deswgn Automation  The PRC Associate (2021: Associate)  Equity method
Co., Ltd ("Giga") (Note (b)) ‘
bmmmck SARLAA ME - 4900% H (Vs - 6650084
(TEsssie ) (W)
Shanghai SMIT Xinxin The PRC Note Equity method
Semiconductor Co., Limited
(“SMIT Xinxin") (Note (c))
BERAGRES (M) hE 36.00% 36.00% Hﬁf&ﬂ(:?:—ﬁi B&A 5,307,221 5,613,100
A-ING)
Hongtai Angel Fund (Note (d)) The PRC Associate (2021: Associate)  Equity method
Chipattern (FfzE(e)) AERAEE 15.00% 15.00% A80E(-F=—%: iR 24,760 109476
(EBEZES]) SELE)
Chipattern (Note (¢)) The British Virgin lslands Joint venture (2021: Joint ~ Equity method
("BVI") venture)
RAESEHRARAT] hE 48.78% - BERA(CRC-%: EaE 53,867,647 -
(TEss R B L) (BiE(h) HEBAR)
Shenzhen SMIT Xintech Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Associate (2021: Subsidiary)  Equity method
("SMIT Xintech”) (Note (f))
EREZEARNRELR
Total investments accounted for using the equity method 118,976,739 79,914,954
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CRZEBE—F+ A=+ HRBEZBLFE  BHT

BRASEREFANBERR -BE_F-_—_F+_4

=+—HIEFE  AREH SRS
SRR A — &2 - BTSSR
BTBRAREENEE QR -

ERRELER

A\ —F+=R=+—

AT REREREARNREZS :

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(Continued)

Note:

SMIT Xinxin was an indirectly-held associate of the Group as
at and for the year ended 31 December 2021. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, SMIT Xinxin was disposed of
by the Group as part of the deemed disposal of SMIT Xintech
whereby it was no longer an associate of the Group as at 31
December 2022.

Set out below is the movement of investments
accounted for using the equity method:

—E_-C —E-—F
2022 2021
T e
UsD (JAYD)
R—A—H As at 1 January 79,914,954 69,176,985
NE Additions 56,339,615 6,490,566
RAEH & /s (M 5E6) Gain on deemed disposal (Note 6) 65,585 886,484
DA EREARRNRE Share of net (losses)/profits of investments
% (&18) & F accounted for using equity method (6,764,652) 1,434,060
IR oK B IR % | Realisation of unrealised profit = 192,730
BIEHEBER (MEE) Deemed disposals (Note (f)) (6,045,288) =
DMEEMEE (BB) ke Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income (3,235,194) 965,000
B g Currency translation difference (1,298,281) 769,129
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 118,976,739 79,914,954
B 5 - Note:
@@  EBEX (@  Shanghai Qingge

R-ZF-_—F+A LEENEETBIREET LT

Atk -

JC (#8& 7 #93,129,000% 7T) °

BERE M EEBHREEE £ ARM20,000,000
CTRZTZ—F+AXE

RGTRIE  REBR LBE R RER34.94% R =

27.95% °
886,484k TE M AKEERE

BAEHEREER L85 e R E £ s
Yk o AERR o

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

In October 2021, Shanghai Qingge entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors who
agreed to contribute a total of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately USD3,129,000) into Shanghai Qingge.
Upon the completion of the transaction in October 2021, the
Group's equity interest in Shanghai Qingge decreased from
34.94% to 27.95%. An amount of USD886,484 resulting
from gain on deemed disposal of the Group’s equity interest
in Shanghai Qingge was recognised in the consolidated
income statement of the Group.
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fisE - ()

(b)

TR

RZTZ=—F+=-A MEBRREAMUNBREARE
15,251,1007T (8% 71,887,7613 7T) REH BB - EE
N 52 [8 1A B 1 Bk 4 0 R HE FR9.09% 6, > 8.98% © AR 1E
B AN E B RIS BN 2 BR A #E 2 I 2% 7E A 2.65,5855K TTE
RAEEZIRE WERER  MAEAMREMEEKEER
ZE2AETTEEF D EEEE -

B {7 Bk

RZTZZ_FNA  ARAZENBARSMITEEER R
Al ([SMITRIN) AR R 2 & B A 7 B ST B
THEIREEREEFRHKRT AT LREEZT  KER
BRBSMTRYIFENEBEREORBCRE - R=F
“ZFETANKRELE RS BASRRFARBE R E N
B A ) ) — [ H & R @lShanghai Xinxin °

R H TR AR ERBE RS RHE RAEBR100% 7 2 &=
48.78% ° @ﬁ%ﬁ%j&%ﬁ(‘ﬁ&mﬂ&mﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ}ii
B #563,649,651 X TERAE B ZE A RPER
R E BN M E32e) R E -

BHEREES

RZZBEZ—F—8 A58 FIBREMREREETE
ERAT (MBEREMK])  BBR &4 ([FHELD BRI
MAERES|BEEESERAR BIE=F) I LEEWH
o NRBERIREEBREREES - BERAFEEESH
HZEERHHCEEAFTRITEXENAEI A R #ETRE
BERRBEERRS - BREBEEEHRER MEEEAR
AT AL LA AR100,000,0005T (FHER L
15,300,000 7T) + EARAREE L E A RK36,000,0007T (18

£ 72 495,600,000 7T) * 15%%%%@%@&‘%&‘936% °o Zx
SEHZRERBEEATEN

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(d)
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Giga

In December 2022, two of the shareholders paid up
shares subscribed previously at a total consideration of
RMB15,251,100 (equivalent to USD1,887,761), resulted in a
decrease in the Group’s equity interest in Giga from 9.09%
to 8.98%. An amount of USD65,585 resulting from gain
on deemed disposal of the Group’s equity interest in Giga
was recognised in the consolidated income statement of the
Group and an amount of USD624 previously recognised in
other comprehensive income was reclassified to profit or loss.

SMIT Xintech

In September 2022, SMIT Group Limited (“SMIT Shenzhen”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and SMIT
Xintech, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an equity transfer agreements with several independent
investors and employee shareholding platforms which
agreed to subscribe the non-paid up equity interest in SMIT
Xintech held by SMIT Shenzhen. As at deemed disposal
date in October 2022, SMIT Xintech held two wholly-owned
subsidiaries and an associate, Shanghai Xinxin.

Upon the completion of the transaction, the Group's
equity interest in SMIT Xintech decreased from 100% to
48.78%. An amount of USD63,649,651 resulting from
gain on deemed disposal of the Group's equity interest in
SMIT Xintech was recognised in the consolidated income
statement of the Group. Details of the deemed disposal are
disclosed in Note 32(e).

Hongtai Angel Fund

In January 2021, the Group, Shenzhen Hongtai Guowei
Share Investment Management Limited (“Hongtai Guowei”),
Mr. Huang Xueliang (“Mr. Huang”), and Shenzhen Angel
Investment Guide Fund Limited, an independent third party,
entered into a partnership agreement in relation to the
establishment and management of Hongtai Angel Fund.
The primary objective of Hongtai Angel Fund is to engage
in angel investments in, and provide management services
to, startup companies operating in innovative technology
sectors. Pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement,
the initial total capital contribution by all partners to the
Fund is RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD15,300,000), out of which RMB36,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately USD5,600,000) is contributed by the Group
which accounted for 36% of equity interests in Hongtai
Angel Fund. The Group has significant influence over this
investment.
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USING THE
(Continued)

sk - ()

(e) Chipattern (e)
KT —FMA  AKEEKRENChipattern#)15% AR #
e R E AR AKKE000,0005T (% 7924,015% 7T) © &
BEIALEAE FChipatternEE € —REERH— K
KChipatternZEE G )RR RARANEE R A MKRREE
WEESFIBBHNERE - AEE HChipatternE A R
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Note: (Continued)

Chipattern

In April 2021, the Group invested in 15% equity interest
of Chipattern with a cash consideration of RMB6,000,000
(equivalent to USD924,015). Considered the facts that the
Group has the ability to appoint one out of two directors to
the Board of Directors of Chipattern and resolution of the
Board of Directors of Chipattern would need to be passed
by both the directors appointed by the Group and the other
shareholders, respectively, the Group has joint control over
Chipattern and Chipattern was classified as a joint venture of
the Group.

SMIT Xinxin

In September 2022, SMIT Shenzhen and SMIT Xintech,
which held 49% equity interest of SMIT Xinxin, entered into
an equity transfer agreements with several independent
investors and employee shareholding platforms which agreed
to subscribe the non-paid up equity interest in SMIT Xintech
held by SMIT Shenzhen. Immediately after the transaction,
SMIT Xintech ceased to be a subsidiary and became an
associate of the Group (Note (c)). SMIT Xinxin was deemed
to be disposed by the Group along with the deemed disposal
of SMIT Xintech.

Upon the deemed disposal of SMIT Xintech, SMIT Xinxin
ceased to be an associate of the Group. Details of the
deemed disposal are disclosed in Note 32(e).
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10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(Continued)

(i) Set out below is the summarised financial

information for the associates of the Group as at

MIEERBE - and for the year ended 31 December 2022 which
are material to the Group.
FETBRRRBE Summarised consolidated statement of
financial position
BELLE BERH BRERH BRAFES
§2C Shanghai Giga SMIT Xintech Hongtai Angel Fund
—§--"8 C-E--F -B--E —Z-- “g--"F -"Z--F C-B--E _"E--F
2022 2001 2022 2001 2022 2021 2022 2001
A7 £r £7 £ £7 £ A7 £1
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
nYEE Current assets 84,839,884 126255610 93,160,200  104,224550 44,003,642 = 3,729,138 5,710,676
FREEE Non-current assets 54991998 31405794 26950721 34231904 89,750,440 - 11,48,635 9,724,422
RHAR Current liabilities (7902,903) (7,727,135  (16311,132)  (6,018531)  (8,609,033) - (144,301) -
Froag Non-current liabilties (6,846,245)  (8375,204) (@7531)  (686,709)  (14,716,374) - - -
BERE Net assets 125,082,734 141,559,065 103,772,258 131751214 110,428,675 - 14833472 15435098
BREREE N H IR Reconciliation to carrying amount
BELLE BEHG BREHH BERERS
$2C Shanghai Giga SMIT Xintech Hongtai Angel Fund
—B-_-F -E--% CZB--E -Z--£ C-B--f -E--F& CB-E -E--F
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2001
£7 £7 £7 £ 7 £7 £7 £7
UsD Usb Usb Ush UsD Usb UsD Usb
EESE Net assets 125,082,734 141550065 103,772,258 131751214 110,428,675 - 14833472 15435008
FEEf{EET Group’s share in USD 321,115 42113822 932247 11976186 53,867,647 - 5,307,221 5,613,100
in: g Add: Goodwill 10,850,031 10,850,031 3,321,978 3,671,823 - - - -
B EHARERER  Less: Elmination of
unrealised profit - - (1,445,036)  (1,798,970) - - - -
KEE Carrying amount 48,062,146 52963853 11199359 13,849,039 53,867,647 - 5,307,221 5,613,100
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10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(Continued)
i (&) (i) (Continued)
FEZEANZREE Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
BELLE Rk BROAE BEREES
SZC Shanghal Giga SMIT Xintech Hongtai Angel Fund
“E--E -E--%£ C-B--f -E--£ C-B--E -Z--F£ -B-CE -E--E
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Ey E £7 E £7 E Ey E
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
& Revenue 35,653,247 32,761,505 6,605,183 71318157 397,456 - = =
EhET|/(B8)  Poftloss fortheyear  (4843047) 3249489 (20235924)  (1463755)  (6856,450) = 831 (246,655
Eth2ENE/ (B18) Other comprehensive gain/
(loss) 231,485 153,081 536,333 (211,905) - - - -
ER2E (58) /87 Total comprehensive (loss)/
ag profit for the year (4,611,562) 3402570  (19,699,591)  (14,849,461)  (6,856,450) - 728321 (246,655)
ZKEIFﬁ (EBYZ DRI Group's share of (loss)profit
BR) /i of the associates (1,617,798) 789730 (1,648236)  (1,131260)  (3,485,535) - 174,696 (32,965)

FREEESEEEFE LR EARERKRE
RaMEL AR ERRREES (AEEDH
BB EFERRIE A B th# At 008§ 2 16 15
AEL FHRBIRNEEFE) BRI ©

(i) BEXABBENBZRARNERI ZIK%@)T
RERBDEARNMRBERBA R —RE

The carrying amount represented the sharing of
net assets value, adjusted with any goodwill and
unrealised profit except Hongtai Angel Fund,
which the net assets value shared by the Group
was adjusted according to the profits sharing
terms as stated in the partnership agreement.

(i) In addition to the interests in associates disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in two

EREEER associates and a joint venture that are accounted
for using the equity method.
—_E_— —E-—F
2022 2021
=T E 0
usD UsD
156 A #E R A BR A9 (i 51l E Aggregate carrying amounts of individually
BAKRENRERE immaterial investments accounted for
using equity method 540,366 838,878
AEEMHEENEE Aggregate amounts of the Group's
share of loss (187,779) (1,114,483)

198 | %% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 B iR RAT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TELEME -

EREE

—=—

— =

R AL L st B R
ERREER

Place of incorporation

F+=A=+—-A2

TREH

ERTRAR
RAFE
Particulars of
issued and fully
paid registered

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out below. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business.

ERREERERE

Direct and indirect

Name of entity and kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital ownership
—E-CE
2022
%
EERE:
Directly held:
BER (BR)FRAR &R BRLF HERERRAMT S 150,010,000 7T 100
([EREE] EmRARRM R (ZE=—%:100)
SMIT Holdings (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of CAM and other security HK$150,010,000 100 (2021: 100)
("SMIT HK") company products and related materials
SMIT Digital GmbH =Rl ARAA HE AR %R RmPOSH & 25,000E% 7T 100
Hih k2 Em (ZB=—%:100)
SMIT Digital GmbH Germany, limited liability Sales of CAM and mPOS devices and EUR25,000 100 (2021: 100)
company other security products
SMIT Systemic Limited EBRIHES  BRAR BRAZR 1% 100
(ZE=—%:100)
SMIT Systemic Limited The BVI, limited liability Investment holding usD1 100 (2021: 100)
company
$2C Holding Corporation RERZES BARDA BREER 56,859 7T 95.43
(ZTE=—%:9543)
S2C Holding Corporation The BVI, limited liability Investment holding USD56,859  95.43 (2021: 95.43)
company
BERE
Indirectly held:
B EE (R BERAR HE FREEDA HEREERE R - mPOSH - A #220,000,0007 100
(TSMITZAI]) ERBRERERBRIE (ZF=—%:100)
SMIT Group Limited The PRC, limited liability Research and development and sales RMB220,000,000 100 (2021: 100)

("SMIT Shenzhen")

company

of CAM, mPOS devices, Cloud
Services and IC solutions

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(a)

FEREDS

RZT_=—F+=—A=1+—H AEEFFERE
wmAA%E 52,198,818 L (ZF = —4F : 2,423,327
X)) R-_TE-_—_F+-_A=+—H8 A&%£E
BB RSB S BE AN IR RN
BARMEERE ABRRBEERRABHING
MR BB EF T EZMBAR -

TXHIRBE_F_—FR_F__F+=
R=+—BHIEFEHERERIFEFRERHIS2C
Holding Corporation#) R &L &% 8 B E BB E ©

Non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2022, the total non-controlling
interests of the Group was USD2,198,818 (2021:
USD2,423,327). As at 31 December 2022, the
Group re-assessed whether the subsidiary with
non-controlling interests is considered material
to the Group based on its relative size in terms
of total assets, total liabilities and profit before
income tax.

Set out below is the summarised unaudited
financial information of S2C Holding Corporation
which has material non-controlling interests for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

BB R REE Summarised statement of financial position
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—s=-= T4
2022 2021
ES e
usD UsD
MBEE Current assets 9,975 16,645
REEESE Current net assets 9,975 16,645
FERBEE Non-current assets 48,062,146 52,963,853
ERBEEFE Non-current net assets 48,062,146 52,963,853
EERE Net assets 48,072,121 52,980,498
B I RE RS Accumulated non-controlling interests 2,198,818 2,423,327

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(a) FEBER (F)
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Non-controlling interests (Continued)

EHERBERPE Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December
—E—— —E-—4F
2022 2021
ET ES
uUsD UsD
& Revenue _ _
FN(E8E) m (Loss)/profit for the year (1,624,467) 789,725
Hib2m (&Bi18) e Other comprehensive (loss)/income (3,283,910) 984,259
2HE (BB) WHEHE Total comprehensive (loss)/income (4,908,377) 1,773,984

DT IR RS (538) (Loss)/profit allocated to non-controlling

i A interests (224,509) 81,142

R_EBE-_—_FR-_ZF_—F+_HA=+—HlIt
S2C Holding Corporationil #EE IR & RIREE
BY BUERZIRETERME -

NEBEMSEBARRIEEHATW SR -

12 FiBHimx% (E%)

AEEBMNRFICERE R —HBHBRARRMR EEH
—ABE AR EEFREREERSEEAR] B
EMBRATAENSIRMEE ZEEBHEE
R-E—TFE T —F-FHRANZEE15%H
WEFEMEH ((REMET]) BB E (St
REEHXR]) BETE-_—F+-A=+—HIE
B ZEEBHNERTNERNCEMERBTER
15% (ZZFE=—4F : 15%)

12

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

No summarised statement of cash flows has
been presented as S2C Holding Corporation did
not have any cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The information above was the amount before
inter-company eliminations.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

A subsidiary and an associate of the Group established
in the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone and Shanghai,
respectively, have obtained from the respective in-charge
tax authorities in the PRC as High/New Technology
Enterprises as defined under the New Enterprise
Income Tax Law. Such entities are entitled to a reduced
preferential enterprise income tax (“EIT”) rate at 15%
(“HNTE Preferential Tax Rate”) for a 3-year period from
2020 to 2022. An EIT tax rate at 15% (2021: 15%) was
applied to the assessable profit of these entities for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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202

FrEBimx, (&) @

RZZE—N\F=ZA=-+—8 BB ALEH(017
FERH (ER]) (B75) EHIEZR) - 5| AR HIF S5
REE - FPIERERR - NE=A -+ NBKAE
2 - YREBATHE - REMAFNFCSHEGEE 64
TREEEEY E2,000,00078 703 Fll #5328.25 % H Bt R
ifn &8 382,000,000 Tt # i F1l # 4216.5% FY B R B4
BEMEBFESHEARNTAMEHFESHEHENE
BE 1055 | A5 4 AB 12 16.5% Y 4 — B R BB R AR o I
BREREEEANR-_ZE—NF—A—BRZEFRED
FERESHEAN—AEENECCEKEE - B2
E-_—E+ A=+ HILEE BENEGHRERE
FE RN ERER R FIR165% (ZFE - —4%F :16.5%)
R RGHRBE - BINEFIOF B RIBE AL B L E
FTERRWIRITAN - REXMBEIED - BRIEBEFAG
FTIERFLE FIRBE AR Rt 8 o

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed “The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017" which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill became law on 28 March 2018 and was
gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of
profits of qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%
whereas profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of entities that are subject to Hong
Kong profits tax but not qualified for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered profits tax rates regime is
applicable to a nominated qualifying entity of a group
for its annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for
the year at the applicable rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= T4
2022 2021
ETT e
UsD (VAYD)
BNHAFR 1S 554 Current income tax
—REFE — Current year 5,264,948 -
IEIEFTIS B (FT7E23) Deferred income tax (Note 23)
—REE - Current year 4,421,419 (1,573,815)
— R FFER R B MRIEEST - Derecognition of deferred income tax assets
BHREE previously recognised 423,883 47,091
4,845,302 (1,526,724)
Fri8®ipx, (ER) Income tax expense/(credit) 10,110,250 (1,526,724)

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(Continued)
REFERFAEMRATGAN M IBEERBRENR  BiHRE The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs
Th {5 A DA T s BB A AN £ B B /B A &) 3 A B9 BRI B R from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
HFr1E domestic tax rate applicable to profits of the Group's
subsidiaries as follows:
BE+-_HA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—E=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
E0n e
usD usD
BR BT 18 5% Al % F Profit before income tax 67,222,923 8,353,572
REANEBBRRMAES Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable
AR N Rt E A IS to profits in the respective countries 8,929,294 738,425
HANT A Income not subject to tax (2,791,162) (2,959,883)
TR R B Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,975,636 921,357
FTEfiE = — eI Income tax benefit — super deduction (1,177,058) (1,343,603)
Wi RIELE ST EER Tax loss for which no deferred tax asset was
TIEE 18 recognised 2,769,350 1,015,895
FATIEES Utilisation of tax loss (19,693) .
R FER LT B MR T Derecognition of deferred income tax assets
i8R & & previously recognised 423,883 47,091
BEFERBTR Under-provision in prior years = 53,994
FTis®ips (HER) Income tax expense/(credit) 10,110,250 (1,526,724)

HE T -+ _-_A=+—BUIEENNEFLEE
A#HEE133% (ZF=_—4 :8.8%) ° ZEMIIAR
AEEWBRARBFENEINTE  LERFRAR
B SMITR I B B BT 15 B4 Al s 7 38 I0 AT R o

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was 13.3% (2021: 8.8%).
The increase is caused by the effect of change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries, especially due to
the increase in the profit before income tax arose from
SMIT Shenzhen during the year.

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RECPEARKMBECEMBEE) - R BEKIZA
SNELERIINEIRE EBT RN SAHRI0%NTEN
BeZMEB _ZTENF—A-RBERILBERAR
ZREF+T A=+ HERBOAF - i B L&
BxREEMBHRIEERZZIR KRG E  RIATRAR
EMREAHRRE - HRAEETNS - ERHXR5%HK
0% Bt RE-ZTNF-A-—REMELR
A NEE AR BIRKSL A% E KB AR TS IR
BB BAMIRIT - FEIB M 2335 -

BREF
13.1 &K

BREXBNIZARRER AEEAEEE R
BRADEITERRAMEFOEE -

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Details are
disclosed in Note 23.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

13.1 Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the profit of the Group attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue.

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= = ==k
2022 2021
RAEEEA AEMER (Z27T)  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (USD) 57,186,976 9,844,174
DT ERMMEFHE  Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue 320,356,163 319,854,085
SRERZF (FET) Basic earnings per share (USD) 0.179 0.031

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED




13.2 #8

BRESRNBEABZETEINNEBRINE
FHE - ABRABAEABHENENT R
BELBBmMETE - BREN S @ RRBRE
BiTEREERTHRMOEE MEATRATE (R
HRFESRTFOMEEE) BTNRNEKE
EERNASRAABEASBREZRTHRNOH
B -AMEANEEZTROKEFATER
MEFABIERDE - Ut ESREERF -

13.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all potential dilutive ordinary shares. For the
share options, the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options less the number of shares that could
have been issued at fair value (determined as the
average market price per share for the respective
year) for the same total proceeds is the number of
shares issued for no consideration. The resulting
number of shares issued for no consideration
is included in the weighted average number of
ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= = ==
2022 2021

RN EHEE AEE A (F£78)  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (USD) 57,186,976 9,844,174

BETEAEAMEFHE  Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue

320,356,163 319,854,085

& IS 2 2 Adjustments for share options 2,412,483 3,202,828
AR ESREERT 6 Adjusted weighted average number of

4 o R S i AR I 35 8 ordinary shares for diluted earnings

per share

322,768,646 323,056,913

BREERT (ET)

Diluted earnings per share (USD)

0.177 0.030
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BE+-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-C —E-—F
2022 2021
=T e
UsD UsD
¥R R BIAR B 8 AR0.0178 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.01
(FBE R #90.001%7T) (equivalent to approximately USD0.001)
(ZE=—F : 0018 (2021: HK$0.01 (equivalent to
(FBE R #0.00137T)) approximately USD0.001)) per share 410,922 408,208

BE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HIFENXREKEAH
408,208% It (F%0.017%8 7T (1 E R 490.001% L))
BN —&EF M (T =—4F:411,605% T (F
B20.0178 7T (FER40.001%7T))) cBHE-T——
TZA=+—BI-FERRBARE ABFR0.01%E T (A8
LR #0.001%7T) * IR BB R A410,922E 7T ' B
ARARABBANBRRAFTFASIRE - WERZ AR
BREHARGEESK MUEER_ZT_—_F+=A
=+ —HHAREMBERERRREAEMNRE -

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to USD408,208 (HK$0.01 (equivalent to
approximately USD0.001) per share) (2021: USD411,605
(HK$0.01 (equivalent to approximately USD0.001) per
share)) was paid in 2022. A final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.01
(equivalent to approximately USD0.001) per share,
amounted to a total dividend of USD410,922 will be
proposed at the upcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. This proposed final dividend is expected
to be an appropriation from share premium and is not
reflected as a dividend payable in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Y- BERRKRE 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE -
HENMERE RERZE AE &t
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
7 £7 e £y
usb UsD usb usb
R-Z--%-8-H At 1 January 2021
A Cost 3,981,893 16,190,850 341,944 20,514,687
RitiE Accumulated depreciation (2,318,963) (3,189,391) (251,278) (5,759,632)
REFE Net book amount 1,662,930 13,001,459 90,666 14,755,055
Bz-_z-_-& Year ended 31 December 2021
+tZRA=+-HBLEE
FORERE Opening net book amount 1,662,930 13,001,459 90,666 14,755,055
NE Additions 1,914,669 2,133,757 172,902 4,221,328
HE Disposals - (22,736) - (22,736)
& (Fi7) Depreciation (Note 7) (813,356) (3,566,778) (32,442) (4,412,576)
EBBnEES Currency translation differences 46,008 286,523 2,718 335,249
FREEFE Closing net book amount 2,810,251 11,832,225 233,844 14,876,320
RZB=-f$+=A=t-H At 31 December 2021
%N Cost 6,003,340 17,946,232 523,624 24,473,196
2HiE Accumulated depreciation (3,193,089) (6,114,007) (289,780) (9,596,876)
REFE Net book amount 2,810,251 11,832,225 233,844 14,876,320
BE-Z-—% Year ended 31 December 2022
+tZA=+-HBLEE
FREEE Opening net book amount 2,810,251 11,832,225 233,844 14,876,320
NE Additions 2,100,093 4,276,715 - 6,376,808
HeE Disposals - (3,239,676) - (3,239,676)
& (f37) Depreciation (Note 7) (1,575,781) (3,730,518) (40,094) (5,346,393)
RIEHEMRB LR (FF32() Deemed disposals of subsidiaries (Note
32(e) (1,498,049) (3,086,702) - (4,584,751)
&K B2 ) (FizE32() Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32(q)) = (876,367) = (876,367)
g = Currency translation differences (357,628) (1,196,030) (10,941) (1,564,599)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 1,478,886 3,979,647 182,809 5,641,342
R-BE--f+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2022
B 7R Cost 4,466,807 11,972,737 498,974 16,938,518
B E Accumulated depreciation (2,987,921) (7,993,090) (316,165) (11,297,176)
REFE Net book amount 1,478,886 3,979,647 182,809 5,641,342

FEHE ANNUAL REPORT 2022 BIfHIZER AR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FEATHERA]  THHEFAN]  THERSHAX] R
[—RETEEXIOFESIFTMOT

(Continued)

Depreciation as included in “cost of sales”, “research
and development expenses”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “general and administrative expenses” is
analysed as follows:

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= ===k
2022 2021
T E
UsD usD
SHEBA Cost of sales 1,662,842 1,925,129
fEEF = Research and development expenses 2,420,949 1,921,247
HE kD HAX Selling and distribution expenses 1,526 3,059
— B RITERAX General and administrative expenses 1,261,076 563,141
5,346,393 4,412,576

HE 16 LEASES

() REEHBRRREINTE:

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—=E=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
E ZET
UsD UsD
EREEE Right-of-use assets
BF Buildings 1,549,165 2,471,727
HEEE Lease liabilities
me Current 686,951 652,233
FEMED Non-current 1,051,163 1,919,114
1,738,114 2,571,347

BHE T -+ _-_A=+—HBHLEEFRE
FREEE&1,449,796E% T (Z B = —F ¢
2,545,937 1) ©

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022 were USD1,449,796
(2021: USD2,545,937).



(i)

(iii)

C"tmnud)

REEWNRREANESEE (ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement:
BE+-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-—F —mE =
2022 2021
£ e
uUsD usD
FRAREETEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
(P 5E7) (Note 7)
$HE AR Cost of sales 97,281 82,923
HERDHAS Selling and distribution expenses 12,105 22,494
— M NITHF General and administrative expenses 326,840 217,737
MEERAx Research and development expenses 430,941 235,123
867,167 558,277
FERZ GTAREKA) Interest expense (included in finance cost)
(Bt3E9) (Note 9) 120,011 52,509
B HR S AR A Expense relating to short-term leases
(Bt3E7) (Note 7) 2,135,826 2,325,160

BE_T-_—_F+_-_F=+—HItEEHERN
I8 & H 48 %8 52,955,545 T (ZF = — 4 :
3,053,755% 7T) ©

REBNEETE R E WM AR

AEEHEZERLCERRE - BB K
B F 8 A2ME A =65 - HEGRRIRERIER
B8 EZ TR GER RS - REBAAFAN
HMEBEERERIN  HEHZETIEIMER
2  MEBETSRAEERER -

(iii)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was USD2,955,545
(2021: USD3,053,755).

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and warehouses.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 months to 6 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

209



mEMBRRWE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEEFREEE 17 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4 A A &t
Computer License use
software rights Total
£7T ET ES
usb UsbD UsD
R==2=-—%—H—H At 1 January 2021
B 7R Cost 4,664,159 30,927,416 35,591,575
B3 Accumulated amortisation (2,582,685) (339,745) (2,922,430)
AREDFE Net book amount 2,081,474 30,587,671 32,669,145
BE=-ZE-—F Year ended 31 December 2021
+ZA=1+—HILEE
FYREFE Opening net book amount 2,081,474 30,587,671 32,669,145
wNE (FsE) Additions (Note) 5,733,384 4,146,786 9,880,170
55 (f3E7) Amortisation (Note 7) (1,024,860) (3,441,507) (4,466,367)
BEEmE = Currency translation differences 40,862 701,674 742,536
FRBREFE Closing net book amount 6,830,860 31,994,624 38,825,484
R=-ZE=-—F At 31 December 2021
+=A=+—H
[N Cost 10,511,494 35,798,871 46,310,365
2 5t Accumulated amortisation (3,680,634) (3,804,247) (7,484,881)
REFE Net book amount 6,830,860 31,994,624 38,825,484
BEE=-ZE—_C Year ended
+ZA=1+—HBLFE 31 December 2022
FHEEEFE Opening net book amount 6,830,860 31,994,624 38,825,484
WNE (KaE) Additions (Note) 3,382,980 961,984 4,344,964
55 (f3E7) Amortisation (Note 7) (2,342,184) (6,172,543) (8,514,727)
BEHEME AT (H:E32(e)) Deemed disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 32(e)) (5.661,377) (401,762) (6,063,139)
Bk E =g Currency translation differences (435,179) (2,296,684) (2,731,863)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 1,775,100 24,085,619 25,860,719
M-ZZE=-—H+=-HA=+—H At31December 2022
AR N Cost 5,535,983 30,884,229 36,420,212
B Accumulated amortisation (3,760,883) (6,798,610) (10,559,493)
BREFE Net book amount 1,775,100 24,085,619 25,860,719
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AR ) R [ — MR RATEF S (Y B DT A T

B

A

Amortisation included “research and development
expenses” and “general and administrative expenses”
are analysed as follows:

HE+T-_A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—s=-= —E - —4F

2022 2021

E0n e

UsD UusD

EEFE > Research and development expenses 8,149,583 4,458,241
—MRRITHAX General and administrative expenses 365,144 8,126
8,514,727 4,466,367

Bt

BREBE-_TS-_—F+ A=+ B LLFERENIAEHE
961,984 T (=T = —4F : 4,146,786 JT) S AEFE I BET
FETENME  RERZERAX T EWRAANUARREZPIH
A mAY - BEREER EXTRFEM 2. 7(0FE 5 K & A
=2

rE&

Note:

Except for the license use rights of USD961,984 (2021:
USD4,146,786) acquired during the year ended 31 December 2022,
research and development expenses are not generally capitalised
as they are primary considered as expenditures to upgrade existing
technical knowhow, and do not fulfil the strict capitalisation criteria
as listed out in Note 2.7(c).

18 INVENTORIES

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—_E_— =m==4
2022 2021
ET E
UsD UusD
R Raw materials 4,554,472 4,680,575
F K Work in progress 1,090,966 2,107,121
BB i Finished goods 2,630,128 2,749,978
8,275,566 9,537,674
B FERERE Less: Provision for impairment of inventories (3,552,601) (3,782,489)
4,722,965 5,755,183
BE-_T-_—_F+-_A=1+—"BILtFE HHERAEH The cost of inventories recognised as expense and

T WET A ER AT ER AR A12,106,111E7L (=
T — —4F : 13,846,619 ) ©

included in cost of sales amounted to USD12,106,111
(2021: USD13,846,619) for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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NANCIAL INSTR

CATEGORY
R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-= — T —F
2022 2021
ETT e
usD UsD
RBFEMBRRRNEE Assets as per consolidated statement of
financial position
R A RN S RS E Financial assets at amortised cost
— B EW A — Trade receivables 3,132,150 3,691,674
— BN H A E W R IE — Notes and other receivables 2,839,199 13,981,804
— RehBEEEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 48,232,794 18,799,131
54,204,143 36,472,609
BREBEmEAFEARNSR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BE
— BRBREAFEARSN — Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 25,010,050 25,049,366
79,214,193 61,521,975
RIBLREMBRRARNEE Liabilities as per consolidated statement of
financial position
REHER AT RN SR EaE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— B EfIE — Trade payables 902,221 1,246,139
— JEEtE A R E M ENKIE — Accruals and other payables 1,842,086 2,128,706
— RITEXR — Bank borrowings 16,856,675 28,389,040
— HEAE — Lease liabilities 1,738,114 2,571,347
21,339,096 34,335,232
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Rt+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December

—E=-= T4

2022 2021

P ETT T

Note usD (VAYD)

BUWE=FHNESHE Trade receivables from third parties (a) 3,747,512 5,808,980
JEU— & BEE S E S FIE  Trade receivable from a related party

(KF&E35(e)) (Note 35(e)) (@) 642,902 -

B B 5 UG IR E R Less: Provision for impairment of trade

receivables (1,258,264) (2,117,306)
B S EWFRIE- F58E Trade receivables — net 3,132,150 3,691,674
BN EZFHFRIE Prepayments to third parties (b) 3,319,210 13,905,595
TE 1 BAHE 77 M 5RIE Prepayment to a related party

(¥ =E35(e)) (Note 35(e)) (b) 5,169 15,057
TET B A B M RE Prepayment to an associate (Note 35(e))

(Ffi7E35(e)) (b) 287,167 1,168,499
e U = 1% Notes receivable (b) 73,163 48,508
F=FRE M EMEUGKTE  Deposits and other receivables from

third parties (b) 2,182,847 13,120,718

BRE e R EMAEUFIE  Deposit and other receivables from
(Pft5E35(e)) related parties (Note 35(e)) (b) 583,189 812,578
9,582,895 32,762,629
- FEEVEAEL Less: Non-current portion (217,971) (5,053,931)
9,364,924 27,708,698
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@ EZRWKHAE

RIBZ—F+ZA=+—H EREZEHNEFRK

Note:

(a) Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade

RIERBROTOT ¢ receivables based on invoice date is as follows:
R+=H=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-= =l —kE
2022 2021
ETT ET
usD usD
30K AR Within 30 days 3,078,779 3,574,196
31E60KX 31 to 60 days - 7,591
61290K 61 to 90 days 48,283 44,898
91E180K 91 to 180 days 17,676 51,120
181E365K 181 to 365 days - 14,689
HBIA365K Over 365 days 1,245,676 2,116,486
4,390,414 5,808,980

AEEESRUFIREERERENESHNT

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of the

trade receivables are as follows:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—s=-= e S
2022 2021
T E
UsD UsD
R—A—H As at 1 January 2,117,306 2,048,048
FLEREE Provision for impairment 42,721 15,520
5 Write off (739,502) =
B E =R Currency translation differences (162,261) 53,738
W+-—A=+—H As at 31 December 1,258,264 2,117,306

BRAZEERRBOASE S BKSENREE - AEEL
BRZER/EBRFEEAERRREMEEMAER -
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The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of trade receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.



AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

P eE - (4&) Note: (Continued)
(@) 2 5 WA (8) (@)  Trade receivables (Continued)
AEEE S EYRENREEREEL QR TERSE - WA TS The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
EMEE approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:
R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—g=-= —T_—F
2022 2021
ET E
uUsbD UsbD
T usb 2,041,748 1,374,236
AR RMB 936,519 2,054,316
Hit Others 153,883 263,122
3,132,150 3,691,674
(b) FBRFKE BREBERHEAEKKE (b) Prepayments, notes receivable and other receivables

AEEFENFR - BEREEREOERANREERE
AFEEE  WEBATIEEEHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, notes
receivable and other receivables approximate their fair values
and are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

Rn+=—A=+-—A8

As at 31 December
—E—= —E-—F
2022 2021
=T *T
UsD USD
AR RMB 3,193,101 20,617,948
ETT usD 2,989,745 7,685,293
HAth Others 267,899 767,714
6,450,745 29,070,955

R-ZB-—#+—-_F=+—H BENE=FHREBES
RIS PR BB AR R 5 RETS R TE BRI X 482,905,745 7T (=
T —4F : 8,448,638% ) °

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—R0 HEKE=FHNzE
BIEEEREXIE R A MO EYORIIT RN RIEARE
52,325,3007T (#8155 748,206,989 T) ° Z&HEREE =
T —_F+-A=t+—RHILFEEHKE -

E A TR T I R E B E o AR YRR A KR
miERIER ©

As at 31 December 2022, prepayments to third parties
include prepaid service costs in relation to the IC solutions
business of USD2,905,745 (2021: USD8,448,638).

As at 31 December 2021, other receivables from third parties
include receivable from Shenzhen Municipal Government of
RMB52,325,300 (equivalent to USD8,206,989) in relation to
the national science and technology project. The balance was
fully recovered during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.
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IA .'..‘ 'A" e,
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R+=—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=-= T4
2022 2021
ETT e
UsD usD
FEEMES (Fi3E@)) Unlisted fund (Note (a)) 551,942 591,265
IE E AR AN FE Unlisted equity securities (Note (b),(c),(d),
(M 3EDb) ~ ()~ (d) ~ (e) ~ (DF(@)) (o), (f) and (9)) 24,458,108 24,458,101
25,010,050 25,049,366

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

RIELETESNKE

RZTE—tFMNANRB  AEEFEBERE5000RERE
B2EBEERMN —RIELTES (ERFSESEM)
#%%1,500,000% T - R E-_—F+=-A=+—H ' 2F
{B551,942% L (ZF = — 4% : 591,265% T) EAFESZ &
%%&W(Fﬁ?m) HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILHF
B ATF(EE1E39,323% T (Z T = — 4 : 98,483%7T) i
A RATER ©

RBELRE CRIDBRAR (TEWL]) A

RET—tFRENFELETRAFTFER L (—KRFEH
EﬂHﬁX_LE’JAT FEAEFEARFELS A BEEET
B) H98.89% A1 - B ILRERIREZ ARRAFAR LT -
AlZIRE AT IRASEE X HHREN ETF8%HF S KA
WEBWREEE R_TE-_—_F+_A=+—H &2
FEEHFIBARTEE(HF33) A (CTE_—F+=
A=+—0:8) #HE-_ZE-_—&F+-_A=+—HIFE -
AFELESEE (T _—F &) -

Note:

(a)

Investment in an unlisted fund

On 6 April 2017, the Group made an investment of
USD1,500,000 in an unlisted fund by way of a subscription
for 15,000 non-voting participating redeemable shares,
which are registered in the Cayman Islands. As at 31
December 2022, the fair value of USD551,942 (2021:
USD591,265) is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
(Note 3.3). During year ended 31 December 2022, a fair
value loss of USD39,323 (2021: USD98,483) is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment in Mainsweb Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Mainsweb")

The unlisted equity security acquired in 2017 represents
8.89% interest in Mainsweb, a company incorporated in
the PRC being principally engaged in the operation of a
one-stop cross-border e-commerce platform in the PRC.
The investment is redeemable at the consideration paid by
the Group plus an interest income of 8% per annum less
dividends received if Mainsweb is unable to be listed within 5
years from the date of investment. As at 31 December 2022,
the fair value within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note
3.3) is Nil (31 December 2021: Nil). There was no change in
fair value during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).
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()

RAYEFTERBHRER AR (DRINEF]) &

RZT—N\FZAREHIE EMRAZHFERRYEFTH
ma%%m'%AﬂﬁéﬂP%}ﬂﬂﬁxi'zﬁfﬁé$%ﬁé{,w
TR HBETRBEBREETENRTFEERR « %%
BEASBEREFYEFT LN GRE Bk P a6 £
BERET  AIRASEXFHREARE208ET (8
F R #93,166,000% 7T) 1l _E 5 F10% M F 2 M AR E B UK
BREFUER R_T_—_F+_A=+—H EAFE
EMEMMARNTE(RMF33) AT (ZE=—4F+=A
=+—HB'%) BET-__FF+A=1t—HLTFE"
AFELEESH (T _—F  F) -

FIBOXPAY International Inc. ([& F %)) W& &

RZZ—NFNA=+—8B  AEBEALEKE1,800,0005%
TREETE=7) WENRASHESEMEIZHRFSMIT
Investment Limited ([ SMIT Investment|) )oK £ T & 5L % -
{5SMIT Investment#710.11%#E z ° SMIT Investment& — &
REERAR  BRHEE2ENBARFEEFZT4837%
RIERIRE - @ F XN RELENBB L NRGRER LA
SEREEF - ARANITEE HERTERIERRE
5 A IREESMIT Investmentf) B = o

—ZT—AFNA+TEH  SMIT InvestmentE. & B 5 KR
ZAHESMIT InvestmentFT#F & F X 18 L i e A A H & F A%
FEBEELER REBETKRE  AEEMEETIAR
L 1%E I #EF BSMIT Investment(E fa] B i - R =&
——F+=A=+—8" ' AF(E1,273299% L (=T =—
F£+=-F=1+—H :2,063938%7) £ AFEZHFIRN
(RKisE33) BE_ZT-_—F+_A=1+—RHALEE" A
FEFIEA790,6395 T (Z T —4 : &) -

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(@]
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Investment in StorArt Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
(“StorArt")

The unlisted equity security acquired in February 2018
represents approximately 3% interest in StorArt, a company
incorporated in the PRC being principally engaged in
development of flash memory main controller integrated
circuits which are mainly supplied to the communications,
consumer electronics and data processing industries.
The investment is redeemable in the event of any of
the prescribed conditions set out in the investment
agreement signed between the Group and StorArt at the
consideration of RMB20 million (equivalent to approximately
USD3,166,000) paid by the Group plus an interest income of
10% per annum less dividends received. As at 31 December
2022, the fair value within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
(see Note 3.3) is Nil (31 December 2021: Nil). There was no
change in fair value during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

Investment in IBOXPAY International Inc. (“iBoxpay”)

On 31 August 2018, the Group has acquired unlisted
preference shares of SMIT Investment Limited (“SMIT
Investment”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
at a total consideration of USD1,800,000 from certain third
parties, representing approximately 10.11% interest in
SMIT Investment. SMIT Investment is an investment holding
company which held, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
an investment in approximately 8.37% equity interest
of iBoxpay. iBoxpay is a leading mobile payment services
provider and an existing customer of the Group. Mr. Huang,
the executive director, the CEO and controlling shareholder
of the Company is also the director of SMIT Investment.

On 17 June 2019, SMIT Investment has completed a
repurchase of its preference shares from certain of its
shareholders by way of distribution of the preference
shares of iBoxpay originally held by SMIT Investment. Upon
completion of this repurchase, the Group held less than 1%
equity interest of iBoxpay and did not hold any equity interest
of SMIT Investment. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value
of USD1,273,299 (31 December 2021: USD2,063,938) was
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3). A
fair value loss of USD790,639 during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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- ()

Sensel, Inc. ([ Sensel ]) #)#% &

RZFT—NFZA/\B ' "EEREH HBSenselEE H %
A —(EBRBE R ((BBBEHZ)])  TRT
#fSensel#2,000,0003 L1 & © Sensel@ — R A EE & &
B SR S B IR R T A 7] - MR B D ABAR BT - R B AT ER A
NEFHR - BETERNEBL MR REIMNEEES - %X
SEKE AEEERB(REBEE R NIERRBT
2,000,0003% 7t 7] 8% A% Sensel 3 38 A% sk (8 5t ik 1 A 4 5, 52
o

RZZ—N\F+—ANLB AEEREREBEHE ([H
BRIBE]) - BiBE ESenselBAR ([REBE]) E—F
5EAX5,000,000E T H 4% & © [FIBF + FSenselZE /TR =T
—N\&F = ABA£EREEM2,000,0003 7T A 25 F G Z &
PRI R B 5T K R 1518 R 1R ASensel B 5 iR - R &
MBI e« AN5 B T AN B AT AR A K IR T W 2 25K IA
B 22 FSensel AR E LR - REBE T E - AEE
122 E E 2 A Sensel#19.22 % 55 ©

R-ZT_TFE_A+—RB AEERERZEEHE &
B EE B Sensel B AR - i —FTTKT41,497E THIRE ©
IREIE B Tk & - AN BliR 2 E#E E LB Sensel#19%

R-TB-—&F+HA-+_-H SenselZEETHEBEEBRS
KOBUBAARCEREETIREBEHE  BRED
748,900,000 7T * BMA KB FTHRESREEL8% ©

RZZEZZF+=-A=+—H " R¥E6,236,589% 7T (=
T-—®#+—-H=+—H :6,236,589% ) EAFEZEHK
FIW/A(RWE33) BHE_TE-_—F+=-_A=+—HIt
FE RNRERERAERNATFHETHESH (ZF=—F:
AF{EEEA1,922,670%7T) °

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e)

Investment in Sensel, Inc. (“Sensel”)

On 8 February 2018, the Group completed a USD2,000,000
investment in Sensel pursuant to a note purchase agreement
entered into between, among others, the Group and Sensel
(the “Note Purchase Agreement”). Sensel is an advanced
sensory technology company based in the United States,
which owns the pressure grid technology that combines
industry-leading performance and the extra dimension of
control in the form of force sensitivity. Upon completion of
the transaction, the Group subscribed for a USD2,000,000
promissory note which may be converted into common or
preferred shares of Sensel pursuant to the terms of the Note
Purchase Agreement.

On 9 November 2018, the Group completed a further
USD5,000,000 investment in Sensel by way of preferred
stock purchase (the “Stock Purchase”) pursuant to a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”).
Simultaneously, the USD2,000,000 convertible promissory
note issued by Sensel and previously subscribed by the Group
in February 2018 was deemed converted into preferred
shares in Sensel at completion of the Stock Purchase, and
the entire amount owed to the Group under such convertible
promissory note was tendered to Sensel in exchange for
preferred stock pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement.
Upon completion of the Stock Purchase, the Group held
approximately 9.22% interest in Sensel on fully diluted basis.

On 11 February 2020, the Group completed a further
USD741,497 investment in Sensel by way of preferred
stock purchase pursuant to a stock purchase agreement.
Upon completion of the Stock Purchase, the Group held
approximately 9% interest in Sensel on fully diluted basis.

On 22 October 2021, Sensel entered into a stock purchase
agreement with certain independent individual and
corporate investors from Hong Kong and globally at a total
consideration of approximately USD8,900,000, resulted in a
dilution of equity interest held by the Group to approximately
8%.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of USD6,236,589 (31
December 2021: USD6,236,589) was within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3). During the year ended 31
December 2022, there was no fair value change during the
year (2021: fair value loss of USD1,922,670) recognised in
the consolidated income statement.



21 EREXREAFTEABRNSHMEE ) 21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

s - ()
H  AETEHRERAR(TEITLE]D) mkE

R-ZE-_ZTF+—A+hB AEBAEREBEARE
5,000,0017C (B Z1752,83135 7T) Uk BB 1 B s AR A2 9
NAIBITAMI10%MHE - BITLEBRBRETHZFR
f%o

HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEE SILEFHE
FHBICERERIT LIA RS  ZFREERBURE
AR #280,200,0007T & B 1 T4 HIBEIMNR 1D+ AN EE BRI
TTRRHIRHER10%#EE45% ©

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=1+—HLEFE STLEFZT
FEBYCELREE L IERSE BREREURE
30,000,0003% 7t 2 A R #35,000,0007T i B /517 42 B0 B Sh
Bt - Bt - AREBERBITALHREREZH4% -

R-T-_—_F+=-_A=+—H ' AFfE15512,387% (=
T = —4 :14,589,119% L) BRAFEEREIRA (FH
333) HEE-_—E+-A=+—RHILEE  REE
R NERH A FERE 52,355,610 (ZT=—%F:
13,811,823%7T) °

REEMFER (EFD BRAR (TRMA]) mikE

RZZE_—FMA—H EFTREERAEEENF EF
MR AR EMABEI LR E % BRMEMAEEA
IR #85,000,0007T (8 & 7 4913,000,000% 7t) LA BUS 2 A
RIANS%MRIE - RZSIREER  AEENLEREARE
10,000,0007T (48 % 741,546,264 7T) U B &= 15 48 492 %A%
- mREREE (BEASE) REKEEHER @ 8%
BEREERARATENE - EWAXTZHEREEKRE
& % o S RS AR 7S o

RZZTZ—F+=ZA=+—H  AFE1435833%x (=
T = — % :1,568,455% L) BAFESRE3IR (R K=
33) HE_E_—_F+_-_A=+—HLFE AFEL
EHEEYH (T _—F:E) -

Note: (Continued)

(f) Investment in X-Times Design Automation Co., LTD
("X-Times")

On 19 November 2020, the Group acquired 10% equity
interest of X-Times, a company incorporated in the PRC,
at a total consideration of RMB5,000,001 (equivalent to
USD752,831). X-Times is mainly engaged in the provision of
IC design services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, X-Times
entered into a capital injection agreement with certain
independent corporate investors from the PRC who agreed
to purchase additional share of X-Times at a consideration of
RMB280,200,000, the equity interest of the Group in X-Times
was therefore diluted from 10% to approximately 5%.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, X-Times
entered into a capital injection agreement with certain
independent corporate investors from the PRC who agreed
to purchase additional share of X-Times at a consideration of
USD30,000,000 and RMB35,000,000, the equity interest of
the Group in X-Times was therefore diluted to approximately
4%.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of USD15,512,387
(2021: USD14,589,119) is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see Note 3.3). During the year ended 31 December
2022, there was a fair value gain of USD2,355,610
recognised in the consolidated income statement (2021:
USD13,811,823).

(9) Investment in Xiamen Microplus Information Technologies
Limited (“ijiwei.com”)

On 1 April 2021, certain investors and the Group entered
into an investment agreement with ijiwei.com, a company
incorporated in the PRC, to inject RMB85,000,000
(equivalent to approximately USD13,000,000) to ijiwei.com
for approximately 15% equity interest of the company.
Among the investors, the Group acquired around 2%
equity interest of ijiwei.com at a total consideration of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to USD1,546,264). Since the
acquisition price of the equity interest were the same among
various investors including the Group, it was considered that
the investment consideration was at fair value. ijiwei.com is
mainly engaged in the provision of IC consulting and advisory
services.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of USD1,435,833
(2021: USD1,568,455) was within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see Note 3.3). There was no change in fair value
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
=== T —F
2022 2021
E Ey
UsD usD
RITRE Cash at banks 48,208,544 18,527,196
FHERE Cash on hand 24,250 271,935
48,232,794 18,799,131

RekReFEYNREERLAFERE  LUT
FIEH¥EHE -

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
the following currencies:

R+=ZA=+—8H

As at 31 December
—s=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
En e
UsD UsD
ETT usD 9,681,117 6,456,338
AREE RMB 36,840,391 10,181,122
BT HK$ 472,973 964,705
BT EUR 1,233,530 1,191,651
Hih Others 4,783 5,315
48,232,794 18,799,131

PEAEFOARETEERLBAEMER - A -
RAECR B A R 503 IMNE B GBI ) K (A5 TE - &S [&
ENEEERAE) AEEAZRAEREERERAR
INEEBRRT BARELRRAHMER - BAR
ZER G AR S RIE S S E MR IREE 536,784,227
ERL(ZT=—%F:9,871,914%T) °

R—_ZTE-_—_FE+-_A=+—8B XEBAHK
39,666,615% 7T (= F = — 4 : 11,890,309% ) W E
S RBECEEMEREFREERRITERES  MABBE
© W1 IE 2 B SNEE FI o

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

RMB maintained in the PRC is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks
to conduct foreign exchange business in the PRC.
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents to
which these restrictions apply is USD36,784,227 (2021:
UsD9,871,914).

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounting to USD39,666,615 (2021:
USD11,890,309) were deposited with banks in the PRC
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign
exchange control.



INCUIVIE | A/

REFMEBHEERBEITET : The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
is as follows:
R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—s=-= —mE =
2022 2021
ey E
UsD (JAYD)
RIEFTSHEE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
- ER121E A mE R — to be realised within 12 months 725,707 775,507
- BRBE1218 A %2R — to be realised after more than 12 months 763,141 5,936,693
1,488,848 6,712,200
REFFEHEEHEEFRELT : The net movement on the deferred income tax account
is as follows:
R+=BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E=-= —T_—4F
2022 2021
E E
UsD usSD
R—A—H At 1 January 6,712,200 5,055,497
(1) Ft Ak A 1E% (MT5E12) (Charged)/credited to consolidated profit or
loss (Note 12) (4,845,302) 1,526,724
ERiBE =R Currency translation differences (378,050) 129,979
Rt+t=A=+—8 At 31 December 1,488,848 6,712,200
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Eontinued)

BEMBEERAGBNED CREEIKHEE —FE A Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
ERERAMARR) AT - taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:
BEFEHEE : Deferred income tax assets:
IR 18
e BB BIEEE &5t
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions Tax losses Total
T ET ET ET
UsD UsD usD usD
R-TE-_—%F—fF—H At 1 January 2021 8,231 1,665,454 3,381,812 5,055,497
A (FBR) Credited/(charged) to
fReBm consolidated profit or loss 11,618 (27,390) 1,542,496 1,526,724
EBRE = Currency translation differences = 38,635 91,344 129,979
RZTZ—F At 31 December 2021
+=-—A=+—8 19,849 1,676,699 5,015,652 6,712,200
R=-BE-_—F—HA—H At 1 January 2022 19,849 1,676,699 5,015,652 6,712,200
A (F0R) Credited/(charged) to
iFeEn consolidated profit or loss 4,525 (94,595) (4,755,232) (4,845,302)
EHBRE = Currency translation differences = (138,552) (239,498) (378,050)
R=ZZFE=-=%+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2022 24,374 1,443,552 20,922 1,488,848

BEFMSHEED R EENRIEEBRER « AT
FRRRERTRMNERBAEZRR - KAEEIW
MPL1,273,962F T (ZE = —4F : 6,112,1355 71) &4
BB RIEL TSR & E324,281% 8 (=T = —

1,503,825E7T) ©

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
the related benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of USD324,281 (2021: USD1,503,825) in
respect of losses amounting to USD1,273,962 (2021:
usDe6,112,135).



AERBELEHEHNEENHEBERER A -

- FERRED

(Continued)

Expiry date of tax loss not recognised as deferred
income tax assets:

R+=-ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
—s=-= —mE =
2021 2020
ETT e
UsD (JAYD)
—F AN EH Expired within 1 year 414,865 -
R—ZMFEAER Expired in 1 — 2 years 562,363 418,518
RRE=FAEm Expired in 2 — 3 years 180,647 1,069,844
R=ZMFEAER Expired in 3 — 4 years 114,455 560,193
RUZERFRANER Expired in 4 — 5 years 1,632 4,063,580
At 31 December 1,273,962 6,112,135
RIEFEHRARE Deferred income tax liabilities:

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H AEEFEFERQ
&) H A BB 2= AR B3 O ok it B 32 15 AR A R B 1R 2R & F)
(18 RETHRIE IE AT 15 B & 15 % 1% 494,413,000 7t (=
T — — 4 :1,254,000% 7T) 49 5 A K #608,092,000
7 (1B E 7 4988,265,000 ) (ZZT=—F : AR¥
160,863,0007T (8 & M #925,084,0003 7)) ° B HI#%
ZRAEHFREMBAMRBIEBRERAS - BIRE
EREHEIINESERNMGE  TERARLKRREH
EEINREEE -

KRB —FR-_ZF-_—F+-_A=+—H ' x5E
WEHEMEARERELCHEHEERERE -

As at 31 December 2022, the retained earnings of the
Group’s PRC subsidiary not yet remitted to holding
companies incorporated outside of the PRC, for
which deferred income tax liability of approximately
USD4,413,000 (2021: USD1,254,000) had not been
provided, were approximately RMB608,092,000
(equivalent to approximately USD88,265,000) (2021:
RMB160,863,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD25,084,000)). Such earnings are expected to be
retained by the PRC subsidiary for reinvestment purposes
and would not be remitted to a foreign investor in the
foreseeable future based on management’s estimation
of overseas funding requirements.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not
have other material unrecognised deferred income tax
assets or liabilities.
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24 GOODWILL

EF7
UsD
R-ZE-_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 6,579,443
BEMmE xR Currency translation differences 153,968
R=ZB-Z—-F+=ZH=+-BK At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
—_E-__%£—H—H 6,733,411
BEmE = Currency translation differences (569,352)
R=-B=-=_F+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2022 6,164,059

AR#42,930,000c A EREHARFAR —_TTH
F 0 A WHESMITAR Y /& U BE & 5% - I%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁé—f
B - Fﬁéﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁéﬁiSMlT/ YIFr A8 & E B A FRHR
?KZ&/?:WJ A -R_FT__F+_HA=t—H &
ii!iEﬂﬁﬁ-ﬁ%ﬂ‘%ﬁ@ﬁ@éi%&(ﬁﬁﬁ@é
Eiuj) £ 1T MR W EEERE -

ReEXENNA ORI BERBEERAEETE
B o An‘l‘:ﬁ—/i%ﬁﬁﬁ%(« }ETJZE/EE}]/QEESEHHFEEJE@
HHRBEENTANE S REE R R20% (22 =—
20% ) BB IR 2 o FEA A BE IR E R B Al EEJE%T&&B%

HEEKAHNARBER BE_T _—_F+-
A=t—HBLFE KANKRERESFIERX

(AIRFRAMNESFIBRE) B0% (ZT——F:
0%) - AFHENENRERETIRKA0% (ZF=—
F0%)MERRETHER - SHENHEESKE R
FRARH) E 2B A - s RABBKANIE R ITIRE
BERRNEEE M5 ERNBHETEE

eI E EFS0EEER R -_T - —F+-_A=+—
EIE’]TH&@?E%WBH#E}EEEEE@ IR W s A
FERRXGFTRIEEIH R-_FT__F+_A
=t —ANAKRE S B HEBEREE

JE ¥ ANNUAL REPORT 2022 BI#§#ZRR AR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Goodwill of RMB42,930,000 arose from the application
of acquisition accounting to the acquisition of SMIT
Shenzhen by the Company in April 2005 and has
indefinite useful lives. The goodwill amount relates
to the value of expected future economic benefits
of the business operated by SMIT Shenzhen. As at
31 December 2022, management of the Group had
conducted a review of the cash-generating unit (“CGU")
of CAM business and determined that there is no
impairment of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation
uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and a discount rate of 20% (2021: 20%). The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
related to the relevant operation. The revenue growth
CAGR (i.e. compound annual growth rate over the
five-year projection period) used is 0% (2021: 0%) for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 0% (2021: 0%). The volume of sales in each period
is the main driver for revenue and costs. The growth in
revenue and the relevant costs are estimated based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

If the discount rate had been increased by 50 basis
points, the recoverable amount as at 31 December
2022 would still exceed its carrying amount. If the
forecasted revenue growth CAGR had been lowered by
one percentage point, the recoverable amount as at 31
December 2022 would still exceed its carrying amount.



25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE

PREMIUM
ZEREE ZEREE R A EE
No of Normal
ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares premium
£ £
UsD UsD
VARE 8 Authorised:
RZE—_—F—HF—H " Ordinary share of USD0.00002
T —FR each at 1 January 2021,
— T —&#+4+—H 31 December 2021 and
=+—H&KRMEE0.00002 2022
LR E B 2,500,000,000 50,000 -
BITRBRE Issued and fully paid:
R-_Z_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 319,490,861 6,390 101,642,531
1T{E B AL AE (P =E(a)) Exercise of share options (Note (a)) 862,480 17 387,457
KRB - —FRNAIKRRM Dividends relating to 2020 paid
—E-TEHEBRE in June 2021 = = (411,605)
R=Z=—%F As 31 December 2021
+=A=+—H 320,353,341 6,407 101,618,383
1T RS IR #E (BT aE(a)) Exercise of share options (Note (a)) 30,000 1 12,376
KRB —FXAKRN Dividends relating to 2021 paid
—E - FHBKRE in June 2022 = - (408,208)
i i As 31 December 2022
+=—BA=+—H 320,383,341 6,408 101,222,551
B3 - Note:

@ TR

REBE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE ' 30,0007 ER&
H(ZZT=—F : 862,48010 AR 4E) BT EAREARRA A
30,0008% (== — —4F : 862,4800%) L @M% - K18 54,058
ERX(ZT=—%F :145208% L)  EFI1ET (=T =—
F17ETD) EARAE - M #4,057E T (ZT=—F:
1451912 70) st AR BB ER - E It - 8,319%F T (=%
——F:242266E ) EEB BN BERMN N RFHEE
BRERMEERE R—_E-_—&F+-_A=+—RH &4#
8,837,627 (T = —4F : 13,201,180) {7 BB AR HE () 14 AR 1T 15
(Fft#E31) °

(a)

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 30,000 options
(2021: 862,480 options) were exercised to subscribe
for 30,000 ordinary shares (2021: 862,480 shares) in
the Company at a consideration of USD4,058 (2021:
USD145,208) of which USD1 (2021: USD17) was credited
to share capital and the balance of USD4,057 (2021:
USD145,191) was credited to the share premium account.
An amount of USD8,319 (2021: USD242,266) was therefore,
as a result, transferred from the share-based payment reserve
to the share premium account. As at 31 December 2022,
there were in total 8,837,627 options (2021: 13,201,180)
remained outstanding (Note 31).
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(@)

EERE

WRIEA S B E T p B B B8 & &) ([ B Y
BRARDABERMAANNRTE  PEMBELA
BFEAEBELAEMBREATHEBARIGE
BER PR IE N M 10% BB EE B R (BRIFZ
AREBEEZERIEMBRAN50%) - F BB
RAIA SRR REE SN BEAEEBRERE
HMAKKRRAGBERABRRILE - RREBRL
MBI REREETISRERMCRZ - ARE
FEBATKBRRRERRAS EERMESN
BRI BERREBETADIK

EERERARBEBETEARAETENBEARBE
FENETAERE AFENER ARGERN
EEBRELAERKRREMNALRERMBER -
TEBARMNEERGRER TERRFE
MR ERE QT ENERBNRA A
RERASBBRERMLE  IATAHEME
BERERELEBRFHENFREBTIEIR
FEM A A #925%) °
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26 RESERVES

(a)

Statutory reserve

According to the provisions of the articles of
association of the Group’s subsidiaries located in
the PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries
shall first set aside 10% of the entity’s profit
attributable to owners after tax as indicated
in their statutory financial statements for the
statutory surplus reserve (except where the reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered share
capital) in each year. The PRC subsidiaries may also
make appropriations from its profit attributable
to shareholders to discretionary surplus reserve,
provided it is approved by a resolution passed in
a shareholders’ general meeting. These reserves
cannot be used for purposes other than those for
which they are created and are not distributable
as cash dividends without the prior approval
obtained from shareholders in a shareholders’
general meeting under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not
sufficient to make good for any losses of the
PRC subsidiaries from previous years, the current
year profit attributable to owners shall be used
to make good the losses before any allocations
are set aside for the statutory surplus reserve.
The statutory surplus reserve, the discretionary
surplus reserve and the share premium of the PRC
subsidiaries may be converted into share capital
of the PRC subsidiaries provided it is approved
by a resolution passed in a shareholders’ general
meeting and meets other regulatory requirements
with the provision that the ending balance of the
statutory surplus reserve does not fall below 25%
of the registered share capital.



(0)

LR B ER AN RFERE

RZZEZENF_A AEEBEKN—BERH
FE([ZZEZENFRMETEI]) KState Micro
Technology Corporation ([ SMIT Corporation]) (7
—ET—RFt+—At=A=KEA([E48]) 78]
REE R AR RAERAR]) [#1%516,936,1350%
Lk (EIFMARE)  UIREFT S BT - R
T-ZFNA EFg(ESFg)HEBT=
ZENFRMDEE - BEBTHEBREE E
$116,523,0600% 233,459,195 8 E i@ - X — &
— = H EEgEBIT ST \FRHE
2 - S TE) AR SN B M — 2538 06,160,000
B %39,619,1950% I i@ A% o

—E-RFNA+HA  EAEEN—HH &K
A aBRESMIT Corporationty —Z T )\ & p 5t
SAERAREENERESE (BRAARE
ERRMEED  WEHZEBEREGRIEDE
FHERT

B2 6 B DA PR A R ) 3 55 R A A3
B -

BEXRfHE

REHE BN E NG FE RIS BER RSN

' S (ontnued)

(b) Share-based payment reserve

(c)

In February 2008, the Group adopted a share plan
(“2008 Share Plan”) and State Micro Technology
Corporation (“SMIT Corporation”), the ultimate
holding company of companies of the Group
before the completion of a reorganisation on
13 November 2015 (“Reorganisation”), reserved
16,936,135 ordinary shares, split adjusted, for
issuance under the plan. In September 2010, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to increase
the number of ordinary shares for issuance by
16,523,060 to 33,459,195 ordinary shares.
In February 2011, the Board approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to further
increase the number of ordinary shares for
issuance by 6,160,000 to 39,619,195 ordinary
shares.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Plan”) as part of the Reorganisation with certain
modifications of the terms of such options.

Details of the equity settled share-based
transactions are disclosed in Note 31.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve as at each reporting date

represented the additional contributions received
from the shareholders.
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(e)

R

AEBRNAHFEHEEEEAMBEANBE R RS
% & BRI (868,077,551 LR A KT B A a8
EHERREBECBRNELE -

BE 5k

BEHBISEEREANENZBAREMEE
Yo 2 FE B8 (A Pl 5E2.5(c) ATl ) e 70 4 &5 1) B8 08 1ok
‘R - RFASENLEREFERENROH

b

27 EZENFIE

228

(d) Merger reserve

(e)

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount of
investment in subsidiaries of USD68,077,551
acquired as a result of the Reorganisation and
the carrying amount of combined capital of the
acquired subsidiaries.

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the
foreign controlled entity are recognised in other
comprehensive income as described in Note 2.5(c)
and accumulated in a separate reserve within
equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to
profit or loss when the net investment is disposed
of.

27 TRADE PAYABLES

R+t=-—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021
ETT o
uUsD UusD
EBRE=F857E Trade payables to third parties 902,221 1,246,139
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RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H BEZXZAHHEES

RN SRR BRI DAL T

As at 31 December 2022, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

HR+=B=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-—F ==
2022 2021
=T ETT
UsD UsD
30K AR Less than 30 days 597,329 972,356
31E90K 31 to 90 days 133,709 12,306
91Z 180K 91 to 180 days 14,462 19,502
181%365K 181 to 365 days 51,423 72,642
BiB365K Over 365 days 105,298 169,333
902,221 1,246,139

AEEESRERNFIANKREES

oI EHE -

HAFERE WA

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in

the following currencies:

Hn+=B=+—8H

As at 31 December
—s=-= T4
2022 2021
E ZT
Usb UsDb
AR RMB 882,221 1,241,139
ETT usD 20,000 5,000
902,221 1,246,139
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UALS AND OTHER PAYA
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—s=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
En e
UsD UusD
EEHEERAAX Accrued employee benefits expenses 2,347,065 5,766,498
et AT R & Accrued royalty fee 771,589 1,030,085
H fth fE A B 18 Other taxes payables 665,719 265,576
H b i £ BE B 77 708 (M 5E35(e))  Other payable to a related party (Note 35(e)) 71,450 =
EHAth Others 1,050,992 1,098,621
FEsHE AR HE A RIE Accruals and other payables 4,906,815 8,160,780
B IEmBNEL D Less: Non-current portion (51,945) =
MMENER Current portion 4,854,870 8,160,780
EHEE (PO (i) Contract liabilities (Note (i), (ii))
Bt N B A # & & (Fi3E35(e)) Contract liabilities from associates (Note 35(e)) 3,972,505 -
E=FWMEHNEE Contract liabilities from third parties 1,705,731 10,427,440
5,678,236 10,427,440
B & Note:
(i) HEAHaEEAN kK (i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:
BE+t-—A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—EZ=F T
2022 2021
T e
UsD usb
BIERFENANEELEHD Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
R S liabilities balance at beginning of the year 8,883,028 4,379,369
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AETRHMERBEL :

TRITEEEBRENERGSNELNRBITENEE:

S AND OITH|

AND CONTRACT LIABIITIES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii) Unsatisfied long-term cloud services contract:

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from a fixed-price long-term cloud
services contract:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-= —E—
2022 2021
ET E
UsD usD

EA_ZZ:¢+ A=+—BoERZE Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated
fo k2 ABITHRERS to a long-term cloud services contract that are
BN 5 EREHE partially or

fully unsatisfied as at 31 December 2022 933,063 5,096,231

EREEH BE2E_FT-_—_F+-A=+—HHEEX
BITBRABEANRSEBRERBE-_S_=F+=A4
=t+—BLFEERANKE (AR®E6,498,4087T (HHE R
#9933,063%%7T)) © A E BN S BT BIEI R HIATERE -

HREMAEONBRAS—FRAT  AEBEEEATREE

7% TERBEEGAONTIBREOERE -

Management expects that the transaction price allocated to
unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31 December 2022
will be recognised as revenue during the year ending 31
December 2023 (RMB6,498,408 (equivalent to approximately
USD933,063)). The amount disclosed above does not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and omit
disclosure of remaining performance obligations for the
other contracts as the contracts have a duration of one year
or less.

231
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AEEEHERREMENKANEREEEAFE

HE - WA THEERHE

AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and

other payables approximate their fair values and are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E=-= T4
2022 2021
T Em
UsD (JAYD)
AR #& RMB 3,947,024 6,486,875
ETT usD 456,974 758,630
HAh Others 502,817 915,275
4,906,815 8,160,780
29 EZEWA 29 DEFERRED INCOME
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—s=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
e e
UsD usD
R JE BT 47 BN Deferred government grants 24,274,339 42,858,927
B FERBEE S Less: Non-current portion (21,630,569) (36,559,810)

mENER D

Current portion

2,643,770 6,299,117
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REZBZ—F+—A=+—H LHEEFEPRK
BAEREREFREAEENETBEFHBOARE
131,000,0007¢ (= & = — 4 : A R#184,000,0007T)
(8 & 1 £919,000,000% 7T (= F = —4F : 29,000,000
E7m)) N-ZBE-—F+-A=+—HBH&EesH 2
R_E-——F+ - A=+ B LFEXRINTHRFR
B %9 A R #52,000,0007T &) 3 18 (48 & 7 498,200,000
EITL) °

RIER AR BRE(EAARKFE -

RAT AKX

E (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the balance includes deferred
government grants of approximately RMB131,000,000
(2021: RMB184,000,000) (equivalent to approximately
UsD19,000,000 (2021: USD29,000,000)) from the
PRC Central Government for the implementation of
several national science and technology projects. Out
of the balance as at 31 December 2021, an amount
of approximately RMB52,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD8,200,000) to be received from
Shenzhen Municipal Government has been received
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The carrying amount of deferred income is denominated
in RMB.

30 BANK BORROWINGS

R-B--f#+-A=+-H
As at 31 December 2022

RZZZ—F+-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

MRS FENEHD |t HEEs  FFNHRH At
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
portion portion Total portion portion Total
E E E £ E £
usb usb usb usb UsD usD
BHERITE R HEM  Short-term bank loans,
(B (@) * (b)) secured (Notes (), (b)) 9,677,512 - 9,677,512 10,979,187 - 10,979,187
WBHRITER EEM  Short-term bank loans,
(P 5H(@) unsecured (Note (a)) 7,179,163 - 7,179,163
RERITEZR A Long-term bank loans, secured
(Fitzk(a) - (b)) (Notes (), (b)) - - - - 4077,984 4,077,984
REIRITEZ EEM  Long-term bank loans,
(Bt % (a) unsecured (Note (a)) - - - 2352683 10,979,186 13,331,869
16,856,675 - 16,856,675 13,331,870 15,057,170 28,389,040
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REZZE-_—F+-A=+—H RITEFNERFNESL

FF3.96% (ZT=—4F:3.92%) °

(a) The effective annual interest rate of bank loans as at 31
December 2022 was 3.96% (2021: 3.92%) per annum.

b) RZZBZZ—F+ZA=+—8 BRIR{TENR4L,221,348%T (b)  As at 31 December 2022, bank loans were secured by
(ZF=—% :6,273821%7) BHALEBRIN - HfhiR both corporate guarantee given by the Company and
TEFAURRTHREN AT EREEREENEAERE personal guarantee by Mr. Huang except for bank loans of
A o USD4,221,348 (2021: USD6,273,821) which were secured by

Mr. Huang only.
AREBNEREZEBFTRLOT : The Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:
R+=H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—— —E-—4F
2022 2021
ET E
uUsD usb
—F R Within 1 year 16,856,675 13,331,870
—FEMF Between 1 and 2 year = 15,057,170
16,856,675 28,389,040

LU BISEEFE N RBER BEATHEEEXRA S
=

ANEBRITEZTNRAETIAARBE :
RZBE-_—FR-_ZF-_—F+=-_A=+—H ' x5E

AEPHARREMARITERBENT :

The above amounts due are based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's
available and undrawn bank loan facilities were as
follows:

Rt+t=ZA=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
ET ZET
UsD (JAYD)
BENENE N2 o= Total available and undrawn facilities 8,902,162 31,996,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

URESEEUROD/ERNIS

“TTN\EF_R - ARERAT T N\ERMETE
HgR_Z—ZFNART——F - AETER -

—E-RAFNA+HRB - EREHAN—FHH AAH
R ESMIT Corporationf] —ZEZ NFRH:HE A E X
N ERERETE - BLAR B ESMIT Corporation
N-ZFETENFRHAENREMS BREHXALH
BERBRES SN EBRENGERER_FZ )N\
FRADETEIAER - S R ESMIT Corporation&) T4 12
iES AR AR BRI IR - B EAREREIT(EmEIT
B A% 15 #5 B SMIT Corporation®9 % 15 5 2 & 248 A &) A ik
% o 8 BB R A I A F(E %91,573,000% 7 (5B
ZHERE) AEBEENREE N EEERBR TR -

KRAT2,574,775REBRHEREBTER-F
—RNEZANBEA - BERTEERENZSEIR
BEAX A ARAZEEREFSNRESETHEARS
58,470,406f0 - MBI E T -_—_FR T -_—F+ =
BA=+T—BLFE YEREHRXAMAZEEERE
STEIIR H BN B AR A -

RECZB-—F+-_A=+—B BRARAEEMBER
BB W R TTE BB BB R IR AT

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

In February 2008, the Group adopted the 2008 Share
Plan and subsequently amended on September 2010
and February 2011.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed the
2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme as part of the Reorganisation.
In connection with the assumption of the 2008 Share
Plan of SMIT Corporation by the Company, all options
transferred to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall
carry the same terms as the 2008 Share Plan, except
that all references therein to SMIT Corporation shall be
modified to be references to the Company. The shares
issued upon the exercise of options will change from
shares of SMIT Corporation to shares of the Company.
The incremental fair value of the relevant options of
approximately USD1,573,000 which are all fully vested,
as a result of the modification were charged to profit or
loss on a one-off basis.

On 6 March 2016, the capitalisation issue of 72,574,775
ordinary shares of the Company was completed, upon
which the number of outstanding share options was
adjusted to 58,470,406 pursuant to the anti-dilution
arrangement in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No
additional options have been granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The details of the options outstanding as at
31 December 2022 for Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are as follows:

RELAH EXAH RIEBL HATEEL TRE EWRBEH BTERS

Granted  Outstanding Exercise Remaining
Original date of grant Date of modification unit unit price Expiry date vesting period
“ZT-=f=H-H “Z-RFARTEHA 274,390 274,390 0625t —B--F-A=t)\A THEE
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 UsD0.62 28 February 2022 Fully vested
“Z-=f)\H-H “Z-RFAATERA 3,483,687 2,825,804 056%mr —E-=FtA=t+-H ot
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 USD0.56 31 July 2023 Fully vested
—2-=%)\R-H “Z-REARATHRA 1,084,394 1,084,394 056%mT —E-=FtA=t+-H ot 4
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 USD0.56 31 July 2023 Fully vested
“Z-=f\H—H —E2-RENATEA 6,544,129 4,548,649 0.14%2r —B-=FtA=t-AH THRE
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 Uspo.14 31 July 2023 Fully vested
“Z-ME=A-H “Z-RFAATEA 274,390 104,390 041%FL —E-ME-A=tN\A THRE
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 UsD0.41 28 February 2024 Fully vested
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
hn#E hniE
BREHE FHTEE BREZHE  FHOTEE
Number Weighted Number Weighted
of Share Average of Share Average
Options Exercise Price Options  Exercise Price
EY 4 ET
usD usD
REAE) A5 84 Balance as at beginning of
the year 13,201,180 0.45 22,973,388 0.65
BRAREZEERIRMETEl  Pre-IPO Share Plan
BRI FESE AR R Share options forfeited/
cancelled (4,333,553) 0.67 (8,909,728) 1.00
SITIEB R E Share options exercised (30,000) 0.14 (862,480) 0.17
RERN & Balance as at year end 8,837,627 0.34 13,201,180 0.45

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H  FIERKRTENER
YA TIE(ZEZ—F - BR) - RZTZZF17
FEREREE IR INETHESR14EL (ZE=—
1 0.17370) #1730,0000% (= F ——4 : 862,480/%)
B& 15 o 77168 B A AR B8 D04 7 19 IR 8 B B AR AR 150. 1455
TL(ZE=Z—%F :017F7T) °

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31 December 2022, all the outstanding options
were exercisable (2021: Same). Options exercised in
2022 resulted in 30,000 (2021: 862,480) shares being
issued at a weighted average price of USD0.14 (2021:
USDO0.17) each. The related weighted average share
price at the time of exercise was USDO0.14 (2021:
UsDO0.17).



RERHARITEBBRENER B R RTEENT

Expiry date

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have
the following expiry date and exercise prices:

R+=HA=+—~H
As at 31 December
=== —E——fF
2022 2021
BHERE B ERE
ENTHEE BREHB Eao0E  BREHE
Exercise price Exercise price

in USD per  Number of in USD per Number of

share option

share options

share option

share options

E/’K’D\E‘tﬁ%’é%ﬁﬁ%f‘#iﬂ

Pre-IPO Share Plan

—T—_—4F—-A=—+/\H 28 February 2022 - - 1.22 348,197
=5 ::inﬂ +/H 29 September 2022 - - 0.62 3,985,356
-z __E HA=+/\H 28 February 2023 0.62 274,390 0.62 274,390
Z=FtHA=+—8  31July2023 0.56 3,910,198 0.56 3,910,198

—= __itﬂ +—H 31 July 2023 0.14 4,548,649 0.14 4,578,649
—ZT-_MF=_A=+/\H 28 February 2024 0.41 104,390 0.41 104,390
8,837,627 13,201,180
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32 HeREEH

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) KREFIEBHANEAELEFFEBRENYIR (a) Reconciliation of profit before income

tax to cash generated from operations:

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-—F ==
2022 2021
B =TT Ew
Note usD usSD
Rk BT 15 56 A A Profit before income tax 67,222,923 8,353,572
HATEBELFE : Adjustments for:
BB R AR EE Finance costs, net 9 1,199,410 1,010,169
B 5 R IB R B R Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 7 42,721 15,520
GERERE Provision for/(reversal of provision
(B R E) for) impairment of inventories 7 87,489 (156,460)
HEWE  BER Loss on disposals of property, plant
RIEBER and equipment 7 553,998 18,946
M - BB RERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 7 5,346,393 4,412,576
H th T B B 8 Amortisation of other intangible
assets 7 8,514,727 4,466,367
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 867,167 558,277
R E M B2 W= Gain on deemed disposals of
subsidiaries 6 (63,649,651) -
o B B A Al e Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 6 (22,278,040) =
R B A Bl U e Gain on deemed disposal of
associates 6 (65,585) (886,484)
JE(EIE R A ABRIEER  Share of losses/(profits) of
&8, CaFl) investments accounted for using
equity method 10 6,764,652 (1,434,060)
FHiBIBEIRAFEAIRS  Fair value gains on financial assets
SRHEENANFERTS at fair value through profit or loss 6 (1,525,648) (11,790,670)
HEE W Gain on lease modification — (15,000)
SHE P15 R 2 31 i A1) 1 Elimination of unrealised profit from
ZiEm i ARRER sales to an investment accounted
Ea e for using equity method 10 = (192,730)
3,080,556 4,360,023
EEEREE Changes in working capital:
-F8 — Inventories 477,340 (238,556)
— B NEMEWFKIBLY - Trade and other receivables and
TE R E prepayments 13,657,358 12,540,480
— B REAMMBEMFIE - Trade and other payables 17,480,904 (127,083)
— AKAafkE — Contract liabilities (4,613,659) 4,804,780
— JREWA — Deferred income (2,099,458) (10,768,432)
KEFRBRE Cash generated from operations 27,983,041 10,571,212
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(b) HWERERERNNEEYE BER®Z (b) In the consolidated statement of cash

BB REEE flows, proceeds from disposals of
property, plant and equipment comprise:
BE+t-HA=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-_—F —E-—fF
2022 2021
T S
UsD UsD
BREFE (F47E15) Net book amount (Note 15) 3,239,676 22,736
HEWE  BEREREEE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
(BE=E7) equipment (Note 7) (553,998) (18,946)
HENE BMERREFRS Proceeds from disposals of property,
A plant and equipment 2,685,678 3,790
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(0 BMEFBELREBMHHR

32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(9]

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

SRITERK
EARE HEESE &5t
Bank
borrowings
and interest Lease
payable liabilities Total
E7 ETT E7
UsD uUsD UsD
R=2=—%—A—H At1January 2021 38,149,582 701,576 38,851,158
BMERESRE Financing cash flows (10,395,803) (676,086) (11,071,889)
EARE Lease additions - 2,545,937 2,545,937
HEEET Lease modification - (22,381) (22,381)
HNEE 7 2 Foreign exchange adjustments 635,261 22,301 657,562
H fth B ) : Other changes:
F B RS Interest expense 1,233,894 52,509 1,286,403
EMFE (274544  Interest paid (presented as
HeEmRE) operating cash flows) (1,186,292) (52,509) (1,238,801)
R-B=—F At 31 December 2021 and
+=A=+—-HK 1 January 2022
—ZE-_%—A-—H 28,436,642 2,571,347 31,007,989
BMERSRE Financing cash flows (8,561,676) (699,708) (9,261,384)
HRHEE Lease additions - 1,449,796 1,449,796
EER] Lease modification - (69,331) (69,331)
HNGE 38 2 Foreign exchange adjustments (1,562,199) (200,194) (1,762,393)
Hth &8 Other changes:
BIEHEB 2 A R)ZE  Deemed disposals of subsidiaries
(BtzE(e)) (Note (e)) (1,408,490) (1,313,796) (2,722,286)
F B R Interest expense 1,185,032 120,011 1,305,043
EMFE (27 A%  Interest paid (presented as
HeERE) operating cash flows) (1,212,416) (120,011) (1,332,427)
R-ZZE-—_F+=AH At 31 December 2022
=Eqr=15 16,876,893 1,738,114 18,615,007

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

241



242

(d)

(e)

FTEFRERS

AEBANMTEIEHRERS

o WEERAREE (M) &

o  WRELEHERRRERIAEREARN
®BE (M) -

REZB-Z_FRELENE AT

REAHA-Z - —FAA -+ =HHKRES
EE - SMTRIIRERE TEIREERES
FEAR T & 8 R 0 R ik i A R 420,000,0007T -
FEE R BIRUSEHS 2 HAiE S L 4951.22 % Ak -
R-ZTZ-_—F+A+TNERGERE  AEE
Fris A BB B B RO R 1 8 548.78% + H
THEANEE2ENBAR  MEAABEAR -

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(d) Major non-cash transactions

(e)

The Group has the following major non-cash
transactions:

. Acquisition of right-of-use assets (Note 16);
and

o Deemed disposals of subsidiaries and
recognition of investments in accounted for
using the equity method (Note (e)).

Deemed disposals of subsidiaries in 2022

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated
23 September 2022, SMIT Shenzhen agreed
to transfer the non-paid up equity interest of
RMB420,000,000, which represents an aggregate
of approximately 51.22% equity interest of the
entire equity interest SMIT Xintech, to several
independent investors and employee shareholding
platforms. Upon completion of the transaction
on 14 October 2022, the equity interest of SMIT
Xintech held by the Group was diluted to 48.78%
and ceased to be a wholly-owned subsidiary and
became an associate of the Group.



REZB-ZZFRELEMBATE (B)

(e) Deemed disposals of subsidiaries in 2022

(Continued)
ETT
UsD
B R 50 48. 78 % AR #E Y A B Fair value of 48.78% equity interest of SMIT Xintech 56,339,615
HEMAX Direct expense (230,797)
56,108,818
B HEAaEFE Less: net deficit disposed of
BENIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents (6,211,617)
EWE 5 I8 Trade receivables (102,623)
H b e W I8 & FE N FE Other receivables and prepayments (3,625,941)
M - E R (MisE15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) (4,584,751)
FREEE Right-of-use assets (1,251,069)
HifmaEE (MizE17) Other intangible assets (Note 17) (6,063,139)
FREZEAENKRE (M:E10) Investment accounted for using the equity method
(Note 10) (6,045,288)
B SRR Trade payables 118,651
FEET 2 A R H i R A< 5K IE Accruals and other payables 4,106,816
RITHER Bank borrowings 1,408,490
FE < — R BB A B3R IE Amount due to a related company 15,648,406
HEARE Lease liabilities 1,313,796
EEWA Deferred income 12,214,528
RRVEL S4B D MIE X HE Exchange reserve released upon deemed disposals 614,574
BIEHEH B AR AU S (M 5E6) Gain on deemed disposals of subsidiaries (Note 6) 63,649,651
BIEHEEEMNIE & RML FEE Net cash outflow arising from the deemed disposals
BEHERENBESEEBY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 6,211,617
BEERAY Direct expense 230,797
6,442,414
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EREEE @

R-EBE-_—_FHE—RHNBEAA
RZEBEZZF+ZA=+=H B#HEEK
SMITRYI 2 2 &K B A al R I B & 8 B if g
RAR (THMMEE]) BERS BT R
Ew Bt BRSERELERERE LS
FAERERMRHENEBRE REAARE
160,000,0007T (48 & 722,715,657 L) ° X 5
SERKIA ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁw‘ﬂwﬁ%@aﬂ
AR R EE R A B A A

Disposal of a subsidiary in 2022

On 23 December 2022, SMIT Shenzhen and
Shenzhen SMIT Jingrui Co., Ltd. (“SMIT Jingrui”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of SMIT Shenzhen,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with
S2C Shanghai, pursuant to which SMIT Shenzhen
agreed to sell, and S2C Shanghai agreed to
purchase, the entire equity interest in SMIT
Jingrui for a consideration of RMB160,000,000
(equivalent to USD22,715,657). Upon completion
of the transaction, SMIT Jingrui ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company and become
an indirectly held associated company of the
Company.

ETT
uUsD
BeRE Cash consideration 22,715,657
HERX Direct expense (41,154)
22,674,503
W HEEESE Less: net assets disposed of
BeRIASEEYD Cash and cash equivalents (138,713)
Hh fE WK IR R TR A 3R Other receivables and prepayments (17,143)
L7/ 3 Jﬁ%&&ﬁ(f‘ﬁ?w) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) (876,367)
FEET B A R H b A5 5RIE Accruals and other payables 612,459
T S 18 1B 1B A BB 5 1 18 Exchange reserve released upon disposal 23,301
HE—EWEA Rk (EE6) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 6) 22,278,040
HEEEMRERAFRE Net cash inflow arising from the disposal
B UWER & K& Cash consideration received 22,715,657
B EHERERBESEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (138,713)
HERY Direct expense (41,154)
22,535,790
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NR-ZE-_—F+=-B=+—"H KXEBRKREEKEZ QT The Group and its associates and joint venture did

A CETEIREARNREBE(ZT_—F &) - not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).
34 KIE 34 COMMITMENTS
(a) REHEHAIE (a) Operating lease commitments
NEFBREIREKETHE R SHEE 2 @y The Group leases various offices and warehouses
REREE  BHENMR_@AZENREF - under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
with lease terms between 2 months to 6 years.
NREBRZEHERRATRAELSE  HEHL The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
EKEERSRIN £ FFHIEFL20M 16 - these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases, see Note 16 for further information.
HHRE TS ZIE NAKRSEEENZasE The future aggregate minimum lease payments
(N under short-term operating lease agreement are
as follows:
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_= == =4
2022 2021
ES e
usD UsD
TIBR—F Within one year 784,750 677,142
(b) BAREIE (b) Capital commitments
RBERAREESNEAESAB Y BEARERESE Significant capital expenditure contracted for at
BEENT : the end of the reporting period but not recognised
as liabilities is as follows:
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—s=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ES e
uUsD UsD
L E Property, plant and equipment 106,000 1,288,371
H i aE Other intangible assets = 5,175,902
106,000 6,464,273
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LATED PAR

M—H AR N B EEEH S — A E S — Parties are considered to be related if one party has the

BREBRBIEEATE  NETRELE@H - ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
Sk o & (=7 § 7 y. 4% o . T 2 a

RAREBRKFAERT EOET IR R or exercise significant influence over the other party in

making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

(a) BALGAVBHRESAWEEIN B35 T (a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
FIMAARABIAERBE T -_—FK_F - — financial statements, the directors are of the view
FTZA=T—BLFEEAEEFERZSH that the following individuals and companies are
BRE TS - related parties who had transactions with the

Group during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021:
BBAtE/ A8 TEEREY BASENEE
Name of the related parties Principal business activities Relationship with the Group
WERLE TEA ARRFRTESE
Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen N/A Non-executive director of the Company
Akt (R=Z_2F=A=1tH NER ARAFRTES
BZERN-Z-_—F=A=+HA
BT
Mr. Liu Yang (appointed on N/A Non-executive director of the Company

27 March 2020 and resigned on
25 March 2021)

gEEE (R —FNAT=REZE) TER ARAFRTES

Mr. Cai Jing (appointed on 13 April 2021)  N/A Non-executive director of the Company
BEE TER ARFMTEE  BRATE RIZRKER
Mr. Huang N/A Executive director, the CEO and controlling

shareholder of the Company

BENERE A TER ARRARATEZRERABE
Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun N/A Executive director and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company
MAFEE (RZZEZZFNATLBEE) TER ARRARTEEZREREET
Mr. Shuai Hongyu (resigned on N/A Executive director and the Chief Operating
19 August 2022) Officer of the Company
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(a)

RAGEVBRESERBREIN  EFERE T
IEARRARRABREBEE_E__FR_F=—
F+ A=+ HLEFEEAZEBETERSN
B - (8)

(Continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the view
that the following individuals and companies are
related parties who had transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2022

BBEnE/ 8

Name of the related parties

Mr. Jin Yufeng

ARREE
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

RRHERE
Mr. Zhang Junjie

RYNTEBREERAF

Shenzhen State Micro Science and
Technology Co. Ltd.

RBFEREARIRERERNDER
KRR EFER]D

Shenzhen Digital TV National
Engineering Laboratory Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Digital TV")

LRBEMEXERAR AR ([ LEEM])

Shanghai Guo Wei Industrial
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Guo Wei")

YRR E AR AR
Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei Investment Co.,
Ltd.

Ever Expert Holdings Limited
Ever Expert Holdings Limited

and 2021: (Continued)

TREREH

Principal business activities

NEM
N/A

TiEH
N/A

PEH
N/A

SR B R B

Research and development of
integrated circuit design

YrERHBERNRE  £ERKE

Research, development, production and
sales of products related to digital TV

EFERNAEREE

Research, development, and sales of

electronic products

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

GRS ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIf# 2B MR AR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASENEE
Relationship with the Group

BUE=S

Independent Director

BUE=S

Independent Director

BUE=S

Independent Director

BARARRTESE BFNTE RERRE
)

Controlled by executive director, the CEO and
controlling shareholder of the Company

ARRNTES HEITE RIERRRE
EZAREF

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

ARRRTES HEITE RIERRRE
EZAREF

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

BIEER A A
Ultimate holding company

HEEERAA

Immediate holding company
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LATED PAR
(Continued)

BARGEVMERREERBEEN  EFRE T (a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated

HEARARRIARBE S _—_FR=_F——
F+_A=+HLFEEAERGFER SN

financial statements, the directors are of the view
that the following individuals and companies are

s - (&) related parties who had transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021: (Continued)

BBAtE/ A8 TEEREY

Name of the related parties Principal business activities
SMIT Investment REEK

SMIT Investment Investment holding

AT At RART

iBoxpay Investment holding

AN EFERRRARAH BB X (IR ER
Shenzhen iBOXPAY Information Mobile payment service provider

Technology Co., Ltd.

AYeIETARAR ([42811) MEREE_GERTEIEREE

Shenzhen Jianchuang Electronics Co., Ltd. Research and development and sales of
("Jianchuang”) intelligent thin film transistor instrument
for two-wheeled vehicles

EBEH BRPIHT R IR E RHE
Shanghai Qingge Research and development and sales of
smart door lock chip

BRLLEE RREBRE R G AT NAEREE
$2C Shanghai Research and development and sales of

rapid verification systems and software

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASENEE
Relationship with the Group

ARRRITES  BRITE RIERERE
EZRAEE

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

AREMTEE  ERATE RERREE
EZDAIES

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

ARRRITES  BREMTE RERBRE
EZRAEE

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

ARRPTEE HEWTE RERRRE

EZARES

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company has significant
influence over this company

kYN

Associate

Ll YN

Associate



(Continued)

BARGEVERERSERBEEIN  EFRE (a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
NEAARRRARBE_ZE__FR_FT = — financial statements, the directors are of the view
FTZA=T - HEFEEARETERSH that the following individuals and companies are

WETy : (8

BBEnE/ 8

Name of the related parties

Giga

B R
SMIT Xinxin

BEAEES

Hungtai Angel Fund

BHE R
SMIT Xintech

ABHEERMERAR ((BE)

Shenzhen SMIT Fuxin Technology Co., Ltd.

(“Fuxin™)

Chipattern
Chipattern

related parties who had transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021: (Continued)

TEERTED BASENEE
Principal business activities Relationship with the Group
REFFRTED([EDA]) 1 YN

mRR T B

Provision of electronic design automation  Associate
(“EDA") back-end solutions

F BB E KRS - UNG]
Research and development and services of ~ Associate
semiconductors

HEZAFEMERONARTETR B
BRERREEERS

Angel investments in, and provide Associate

E=

/N

ol

management services to, start-up
companies operating in innovative
technology sectors

EDAT Afyfs =N
Research and development of EDA tools  Associate

EDAT A # YN
Research and development of EDA tools ~ Associate

EDAT Afyfta REDHE
Research and development of EDA tools Joint venture
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(b)

(Contlnued)

HEBLTHRS (b) Transactions with related parties

BAGEMBBREZAREEN ~AEHEH
BERETIATRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions
were undertaken by the Group with related

parties:

BE+t-A=1+—BHLFE

Year ended 31 December

—_=E-= — T —4F
2022 2021
T #T
uUsD UsD
BRI FERNMESBBAN  Operating lease payments and the costs
AR EMNZREARMZEFAR  and fees relating to air-conditioning and
AHEZHRARER public utilities in respect of properties of
Shenzhen Digital TV (2,073,611) (2,413,933)
)55 10 Ak 4 12 (EDA AR 75 Provision of EDA service to Giga 1,210,973 759,600
1) B f RS 05 12 EED ARR 75 Provision of EDA service to SMIT Xinxin 33,933 =
MQingget? FEDARR % Provision of EDA service to Qingge 39,349 =
MiEEISHER T RE R Sales of CAM products to Jianchuang 586,477 =
M EEBSIEEREREM  Sales of CAM products to Shanghai Qingge - 94,709
MEBBRS S NHFAER  License fee and technical supporting fee
Bl < & & (fE7) paid to S2C Shanghai (Note 7) (1,191,529) (1,239,465)
A B R R 3 Sales of property, plant and equipment to
S SMIT Xintech 2,685,678 -

ERSTEBRE T HEE HE I ER R IGER

ﬁﬁ_nl

1

’/f
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These transactions are conducted at prices and
terms mutually agreed by the relevant parties.



()

(d)

FTEEEEFMH

FTEEEERRERNTRIERTESTURSRE
BE - BffskENEEEEE N E S R E
FIREATR ¢

(Continued)

() Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management

for employee services is shown below:

BE+t-A=1+T—BHLFE

Year ended 31 December

- —E-—F
2022 2021
£ T
uUsD UsD
EARFH S EBREYWEA Basic salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 2,031,692 2,318,443
(RN Discretionary bonuses 1,187,099 698,993
RIRTEA —FE kGt &l Retirement benefit — defined contribution
plans 63,756 48,722
3,282,547 3,066,158

REBHNRE

PRt F4R A M AR M R 10FT A AL OB 2 2 7]
R—HEEEENREN  AEERBEH T
KRESIRMT

(d) Investment in a related party

Other than the investments in associates and
a joint-venture as detailed in Note 10 of these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
an investment in a related party as follows:

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E—— e~
2022 2021
ET T
usp UsD
RETFTZFHIELE (B5E21(d)) Investment in iBoxpay (Note 21(d)) 2,063,938 2,063,938
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(e)

REHERFRBE MR RS2 FRER

(Continued)

(e)

Year-end balances arising from sales and
purchases of goods and services

W+=A=+-H
As at 31 December
—E-C-HF —E-—F
2022 2021
B zE EFA e
Note usbD usD
JEU RS 5 0 B 5 5E Trade receivables from a related party
(PFit#E20) (Note 20) () 642,902 -
") B EsE 75 2 B iR & (F97E20) Deposit to a related party (Note 20) (ii) 506,977 747,580
JFE Uiz B Bk 77 3k 38 (Fff 5520) Receivable from a related party
(Note 20) (iii) 76,212 64,998
A1 BA B 5 078 (M 5£20)  Prepayment to a related party (Note 20) (iv) 5,169 15,057
FE{HEE 2 D A A A (F15E20) Prepayment to an associate (Note 20) (v) 287,167 1,168,499
RERTME A& (f15E28) Contract liabilities from Fuxin (Note 28) (vi) 3,818,493 -
28 & Shanghai Xinxin&Y Contract liabilities from Shanghai Xinxin
AfafrE (HE2s) (Note 28) (vi) 154,012 -
JE BB 7 #0708 (M 528)  Payable to a related party (Note 28) (iii) 71,450 =

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

R-E——F+-A=+—HANEKRKREBEEIERE
HEAIMHEER S - WHIHE BHI%0R 5 - &
W SR TE B M A A R R AT S, o ARE 4 Ik Uk B
&N AR FIE 7 B A o

REER AR TRRTANEBES - BUA
RwsE -

ek, S BRES 75 B0 BB M BR B S H A TEARE -
WEBAXT R AREEHE - U FETBEEE T A
FORRBEER - RERBABERMEE -

ZRBEEARBFEEINOBRSANT KA

R¥HE -

FORBETRN T — KB & R AR FF A B R &

°

o

%R 2 D R B IR RO SR B R AR R T AR
BV TR 5RR

Note:

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The receivables as at 31 December 2022 arise mainly from
sales transaction to Jianchuang and are due on 90 days
after the date of sales. The receivables are unsecured in
nature and bear no interest. No provisions are held against
receivables from the related party.

The amount represents rental deposit paid to Shenzhen
Digital TV denominated in RMB.

The carrying amounts of amount due from/to related parties
approximate their fair values and are mainly denominated in
USD and RMB. The amounts due from/to related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The amount represents rental prepayment made to Shenzhen
Digital TV denominated in RMB.

The amount represents prepaid license fee and technical
supporting fee to an associate.

The amount represents prepayment from associated
companies for IC Solution service to be provided.



AT

AND RES

\I-Il:-:IIU'“ \

ERVE MOVEMEN

OF THE

COMPANY
R+=—B=+—H
As at 31 December
—s=-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
B 5 E ZET
Note UsD usD
= ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R B AR RIEE Investment in subsidiaries 70,118,103 70,118,103
FERBERRATEARSN Financial assets at fair value through
ERMEE profit or loss 2,063,938 2,063,938
72,182,041 72,182,041
REEE Current assets
JiE W Bt /8 & B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 35,551,538 36,631,367
TEfT 5RIE Prepayments 19,371 19,371
BeRBEEEDY Cash and cash equivalents 1,769,328 2,179,973
37,340,237 38,830,711
HEE Total assets 109,522,278 111,012,752
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-

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-—4F
2022 2021
b= ET E
Note usD UsD
EERkAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AREHEE AEMLER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
[N Share capital 6,408 6,407
f& 15 4 B Share premium (a) 101,222,551 101,618,383
LARE 1D B EREA R FH B Share-based payment reserve (a) 1,728,425 1,728,425
258 Accumulated losses (a) (6,987,144) (5,917,557)
RS Total equity 95,970,240 97,435,658
=R Liabilities
REEE Current liabilities
FE T B FA I Ho A FE < 508 Accruals and other payables 562,442 587,498
FES —RB B A R FRIE Amount due to a subsidiary 12,989,596 12,989,596
wme Total liabilities 13,552,038 13,577,094
BREXRAE Total equity and liabilities 109,522,278 111,012,752

ARAAPBHBRAR I BAEETEeR _ST_=F=A

“TmBESEIRAEE -

BB
EZE

FE# % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EIfSIZ A RA T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023
and were signed on its behalf.

Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
Director



36 ARRIMBEMRAREEEEE 2

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
RATFEES (@) Reserve movement of the Company
GRS 6 35 L 7l
B 17 5 18 ER3] ESy
Share-based
Share payment Accumulated
premium reserve losses
Y EYA ESA
usD usD usD
R-ZE-_—-%—-HF—H At 1 January 2021 101,642,531 1,728,425 (4,849,103)
FREBEREAEEELE  Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the year - - (1,068,454)
IR RE R Exercise of share options 387,457 - -
RZEZ—FRXARN Dividends relating to 2020 paid in
—E_TERHAKRS June 2021 (411,605) = =
R=B=-£+=A At 31 December 2021
=qr=g] 101,618,383 1,728,425 (5,917,557)
B Representing:
] Reserves 101,208,903 1,728,425 (5,917,557)
TS —FREFAREKE 2021 final dividend proposed 409,480 - =
101,618,383 1,728,425 (5,917,557)
R-E-—_%—-F—H At 1 January 2022 101,618,383 1,728,425 (5,917,557)
FRBENEAEEESE  Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - - (1,069,587)
I RERE Exercise of share options 12,376 - =
RZZZZFXRAIRM Dividends relating to 2021 paid in
T —ERERE June 2022 (408,208) - -
R=-B-—-£+=A At 31 December 2022
Er=1 101,222,551 1,728,425 (6,987,144)
B Representing:
B3 Reserves 100,811,629 1,728,425 (6,987,144)
T FREFERERE 2022 final dividend proposed 410,922 - -
101,222,551 1,728,425 (6,987,144)
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) ESREREEETH (a) Directors’ and senior management'’s
emoluments
The remuneration of the directors of the Company
ARRIEFHMEASNOT - is set out below:
BECB-CE{CACST-ALER
Year ended 31 December 2022
REBALF
EKEAR
AR RETEE  ERMAES
fhite HEE BBEAT  EMREEN  BOEREE
#E He #e BERL EERE (K&t (a) EhEH  SEUNEH Exiz fit
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Remuneration with the
paidor  management
receivable  of the affairs
Estimated in respect of the Employer's
money valueof ~ ofaccepting ~ Company or  contribution to
Discretionary Housing  other henefits officeas itssubsidiary  a retirement
Name Fees Salaries bonuses allowance (Note (a)) director  undertaking benefit scheme Total
£7 £n £ £7 £7 £7 £7 £7 7
UsD UsD Usb UsD Usb UsD UsD UsD UsD
b0y Executive director
AR Mr. Huang (Note (b)) 24,000 387,600 128175 = = = - 4614 544,389
BDA4% 4 (f35(d) M. Shuai Hongyu (Note (d) 16,000 297,170 213533 - 119 - - 3912 530,734
EEE Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun 24,000 339,150 96,131 - - - - 4,614 463,895
FUnES Non-executive directors
BEREE Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
BEEE(HO) M Cailing Note (0) - = - = - = = = -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
RipEE Mr. Zhang Junjie 24,000 = - = - = = = 24,000
BRRAE Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 24,000 = = = = - - - 24,000
SEERE Mr. Jin Yufeng 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
160,000 1,023,920 437,839 - 19 - - 13,140 1,635,018

(@) EHtiEMBEAHERLERE -
(b) FZEFNA/ARBDVEERTE LEREFERTE
HENEH EBIRE -

(© ZEFN _ZE-_—FNUAT=HAEZE-

(d) ZEBER-_Z__FN\ATNLBEEHE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 Ei##ZERAPR2A T SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(a) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.

(b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.

(o] The director appointed on 13 April 2021.

(d) The director resigned on 19 August 2022.
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

() EENRGREEREHM(E) (a) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)
RATEZHMEZIOT : (&) The remuneration of the directors of the Company
is set out below: (Continued)
HE-Z--5f-R=1-AL5E
Year ended 31 December 2021
REEALA
) SEIELT
R RERES  XEMHER B
\ LHEZ BREAE  ABRBES  RAENHE
#% #e e B [EERH (Ht&(a) BAEH  sEbnFH EXHR Ghl
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remuneration with the
pador  management
receivable of the affairs
Estimated in respect of the Employer's
money value of of accepting Company or  contribution to
Discretionary Housing ~ other benefits office as its subsidiary a retirement
Name Fees Salaries bonuses allowance (Note (a) director undertaking  benefit scheme Total
T oA T £ T T T T T
UsD Usb UsD Usb UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
YES Executive director
B (H3H0) Mir. Huang (Note (b)) 24,000 3811 128231 - - - - 4616 544,619
AT Mr. Shuai Hongyu 24,000 360,195 159,634 - 15 = o 4654 548,638
EXHEE Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun 24,000 339,300 9,174 - - - - 4616 464,090
F0ES Non-executive directors
HMEREE Mr. Kiwan, Allan Chung-yuen 24,000 - - - - - - = 24,000
BRRE(E0) M Caling (Note () - - - - - - - - -
B (M) Mr Liu Yang (Note (d) = = = = = = = = =
BUF4ES Independent non-executive
directors
Risrs Mr. Zhang Junjie 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
HRRAE Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,000
¢8R M. Jin Yufeng 24,000 - = - - = - - 24,000
168,000 1,087,267 384,039 = 155 = = 13,886 1,653,347
(a) H eI 015 H 5 R R AR - (@) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.
(b)) ZEFNAARAEENTE UERGEHNTE (b)  The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
FENE T BB B EE - separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.
(© REEN_T_—FNAT=HEZE- () The director appointed on 13 April 2021.
(d) REERN-_TEF-A-TLAEZRETR=Z (d)  The director appointed on 27 March 2020 and

(I

—F=A-+HAHI-
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resigned on 25 March 2021.
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

-

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2021: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to
any third parties for making available directors’
services for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were
made available in favour of directors, body
corporates controlled by and connected entities
with such directors subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December

—E-= —E-—F —T-_FTF —T—AFE —T—N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
U 25 Revenue 29,410,713 36,252,359 37,789,781 38,099,720 41,318,578
8 & B AR Cost of sales (17,271,933) (19,121,065) (24,478,340) (22,824,996) (27,641,807)
EF Gross profit 12,138,780 17,131,294 13,311,441 15,274,724 13,676,771
B AT 1S B Al Profit/(loss) before income tax
wm ], (E58) 67,222,923 8,353,572  (4,954,863) 11,621,320 (277,783)
5 e, (BIs) Income tax credit/(expense) (10,110,250) 1,526,724 1,521,092 700,991 1,593,307
ERERN,(BE)  Profit/(loss) for the year 57,112,673 9,880,296  (3,433,771) 12,322,311 1,315,524
T & IEEG Profit/(loss) is attributable
B (EE) to:
KAREAA Owners of the Company 57,186,976 9,844,174  (3,707,652) 10,602,142 1,317,734
JEFE AR i = Non-controlling interests (74,303) 36,122 273,881 1,720,169 (2,210)
57,112,673 9,880,296  (3,433,771) 12,322,311 1,315,524
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—ZF=-= T —E-TF ZTE-NF ZZE-N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
4B Total assets 247,235,256 232,028,184 232,528,780 177,468,937 140,918,711
KRARER A Equity attributable to owners
FEAE RS of the Company 185,385,902 135,951,184 123,967,697 121,634,110 112,018,954
AR = Non-controlling interests 2,198,818 2,423,327 2,342,185 1,967,240 240,480
1ERERS Total equity 187,584,720 138,374,511 126,309,882 123,601,350 112,259,434
BEE Total liabilities 59,650,536 93,653,673 106,218,898 53,867,587 28,659,277
BRESNEE Total equity and liabilities 247,235,256 232,028,184 232,528,780 177,468,937 140,918,711
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